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EDITORIAL

An extraordinary decade

hen the history of ufology 14 wntten, the decade

that has just passed is likely to be remembered as
the most important 10-year period in the four decades of
the UFO controversy. The stage has been set for what
will probably be an cven more remarkable next few
YEArs,
I have just finished writing 2 book on afology in the
1980s. 1 knew before 1 started, of course, that the decade
had been an unusually interesting one, bot it was not until
I planged into the research that I began 1o comprehend
just what had happened. The explosive developments of
recent years are all the more remarkable because they
ocourred in the absence of any major sighting waves,
although the relatve handful of repons included some of
history's most significant UFO events: the Cash-Landrum
CE2 (December 1980); the Trans-en-Provence, France,
CE2 (January 1981} — the most impressively-docu-
mented, evidential landing-trace case of them all; the
Westchester, Mew Yark, boomerang flap (beginning in
1983); the Japanese Airlines radar/visual sighting
(Movember 1986); the Golf Breeze, Florda, sightings and
photographs (Movember 1987-May 1988); the Mundra-
billa, Australia, CE2 (Janvary 1988). There were also the
complex and confusing events at Rendlesham forest in
England in December 1980, although we sull have no
idea of what did or did not occur there; samething did,
surely, and if it was nof a UFD encounter, if was some-
thing else the authorities sought desperately — and, alas,
largely successfully — to cover up. The fall of 1989 zaw
bizarre and dubious reports coming out of the Soviet
Union, from where we are likely 1o hear & great deal
more {(and presumably more reliably), now that glasnost
has freed Soviet ufolagy,

Interesting (and evidential) as these reports ofien
were, the most noteworthy developments related w the
radical new understanding ufologists — here I refer
primarily, though not exclusively, to American ulologisis
— regched about events that had happened long ago or
were happening, unknown to ufologists, all around us,
Consider what ufologists knew in late 1979 about these
1w issues, the cover-up and the abduction phenomenon:

(1} The cover-up: In the 19505 most ufologists
suspected that the 115, government knew more about
UFOs than it was telling and one of the major organiza-
tons, MICAP, lobbied for Congressional hearngs on the
subject. But what were being covered up, sober investi-
gators thought, were pun-camera films, spectacular radas/
visual sightings and other such things. Reports of crashed

Jerome Clark

discs wers in circulation, but among mainstream ufolo-
gists they were not even an issue, In the late 1970s
veteran ufologist Len Swingfield had the courage and
foresipht to raise the guestion, 1o much criticism {from
me among others), Todd Zechel was invesugating a
crash along the Texas-Mexico border, said to have taken
place in 1950, but not producing any especially compel-
ling evidence for it Stanton Friedman and William
Moore were quietly investigating an incident that was
little more than a footnote in TIFC history, an apparent
case of foolish hysteria generated by the crash of a
weather balloon near Corona, New Mexico, bat the two
researchers had yet 1o publish anything. Articles in the
UFO literature were bemoaning colleagues’ interest in
such obvious nonsanse and “proving” that such things as
crashed discs simply could nat be. Many serious ufolo-
gists doubted that a eover-up of any kind (even of
dramatic gun-camera films) existed; more likely, as Allen
Hynek among others argued, the Air Foree handling of
the UFC problem was more foul-up than cover-up.

(21 The abduction phenomenon: The UPD commu-
nity had known of abduction claims since 1965, when a
Bosion newspaper published the first account of the Hill
experience, and in the following years the names Herb
Schirmer, Travis Walton, Sandy Larson and Betty
Andreasson would become known o anyone following
the phenomenon. But no serious formal studies of the
patterns in the reports had been conducted and the much-
publicized 1977 experiments of Alvin Lawson and
William McCall, who claimed they had proven hypnou-
cally-induced imaginary abductions were identical to
“real” ones, scemed to hand ammunition to those who
contended “abductions” are nothing more than confabula-
tion, a ufological equivalent of hypnotic past-lives
fantasies. Because no psychological studies had been
conducted and so few mental-health professionals were
actively involving themselves in investigation, it was
easy for anyone who wanted 1o do 5o 1o wave his hands
and concoet any peychological "explanation™ that suited
his fancy. Lawson even sought 1o persuade the UFO
communily that abductees were not encountering alisns

continued on page 22
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Roswell, July 9, 194

by Don Schmitt and Kevin D. Randle

m= Don Schmitt Is CUFOS’ director of special
investigations. Kevin D. Randle, a former Air
Force intelligence officer, Is a prolessional writer
and author of The UFO Casebook (1989).
Schmitt and Randle's book on their investigation
of the Rosewell incident will be published in late
1980,

Imost everyone has seen the hegdline from the

Roswell Dally Record of July 8, 1947, In bold
type, the paper ammounced that the Roswell Army Air
Field had captured & flying saucer, Few have seen the
paper for the next day, Some researchers are aware of its
existence, but because it offers 2 mundane explanation
for all the evidence of the crash, they have ignored it

On the surface, that paper from July 9, 1947, is 2
devastating document. Mac Brazel says that he found the
object on June 14, that his wife, a son and daoghter were
with him, and that they carried most of it 1o ranch
headguarters. He ssys that the materzal was {limsy,
basically tinfoil and sticks, and that he thought nothing of
it until he heard about flying saucers a couple of weeks
later. Then, whilein Roswell 1o sell wool on July 7,
15947, he mentioned 1o the sheriff “kind of confidential™
that he had foond something unusoal.

According 1o the article, which describes the material
at length, 2 portion was smoky gray rubber and it was
scattered all over an area about 200 yards in diameter,
There were no wosds or writing on it aithough there were
some leticrs on some of the parts, Considerable scotch
tzpe and some tape with fowers printed vpon it had been
used in the construction, According to the article, there
were no strings or wires but there were some eyelets in
the paper to indicate that some sort of attachment may
have been usad.

The stary ends with Brazel's saying that he had
found weather chservation devices on two other occa-
giong but what he found this time &id not resemble those,
“I am sure what I found was not any weather ohservation
balloon,” he szid, "but il I find anything clse besides a
bomb they are going 1o have a hard time getting me to
say anything about it

4 IUR MovembenDecember 1585

The facis

Dwr investigation over the past 18 months has shown
conclusively that the newspaper account of July 9 is [alse,
the product of coencion 1o which Mac Braze] was sub-
jected by military investigators. Testimony from other
primary wimesses who were af the site in the days afier
the crash contradicts what Brazel iold the Daily Record.
We also have descriptions of the recovered material from
several witnesses whose reports differ radically from the
July 9 account,

Firs1, we have leamned that the alleged date of
Brazel's find, June 14, is incorrect, In an interview
condocted in early November 1989, Don Schmitt learned
that Braze] himself told investigators from the Roswell
Army Air Field on July £ that he found the debris on July
3. Moreover, he knew thers could have been oo material
in the feld as early as June 14 because he had visited the
site while tending his sheep on or sbout June 30 and had
seen nothing, Brazel's statement 1o the investigators is
confirmed by other sources, incluoding the Prociors, his
nearest neighbors,

We have also leamned from a variety of sources,
including Bill Brazel, Mac's son, and from Jesse Marcel,
Ir,, whose father investigated the find, that the debris was
scattered over an arca three-quarters of a mile long and
200 or 300 feet wide, and that there was a gouge in the
ground about 500 feet long. Maj. Marce!, in 1aped inter-
views, often said that the debris ficld was quite large.
Others whom we have inlerviewed have said the debris
wat dense and that there was a large amount of it, On his
first trip 1o the site on July 7, Marcel filled the back of his
‘42 Buick station wagon and a counter-intelligence agent
who accompanied Marce] loaded his jeep carry-all,
Marce] said that after & full day of collecting it a great
deal of material 211l remained at the site,

One of the counter-intelligence agents says he and
others were dispaiched the next moming (July £) to bring
back more of the debris. Bill Brazel said that his father
had carted the largest piece, about 10 feet in diameter,

| from the field 1o siore in a livestock shed. This was

certainly more material than would be found in & simple
balloon.

Tommy Tyree, who came 1o work ag Mac Brazel's
hired hand afier this event, told os that Mac had com-
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plained that the find cavzed him problems in his work,
The material, spread out over the field, formed a barrier
that the sheep would not cross, According to Tyree,
Brazel had to drive the sheep around the debns fizld to
get them to water, That also suggests that whatever had
fallen in the [ield was much larger than the weather
balloon suggested by the military.

Descriptions of the material, coming both from Mac
Brazel and Jesse Marcel and from those who saw it later,
do not agree with what was printed in the newspaper,

Bill Brazel, for example, described metal so tongh that he
couldn't cut iL It was light-weight, like balsa wood, but
was much stronger. He has also talked aboul material
that looked somewhal like the fiber optics of today. In
taped interviews, Jesse Marcel described metal that was
as thin as foil but that couldn’t be dented, He related that
he and the counter-intelligence officer used a 16-pound
sledge hammer without effect.

There was indeed lettering on some of the wreckage,
but it was not in English. Jesse Marcel, Jr., described it
2§ geometric symbaols. He drew those he could remember
on a pad for us, They were embossed on an [-beam and
were purplish, The I-beam itself was strong and slightly
flexible.

But maybe the most devastating testimony comes
from Maj, Marcel. In an interview for a TV documentary
he said, “It was not anything from this earth. That I'm
guite sure of, Because being in intellipence, T was
familiar with all materials osed in aircraft and in air
travel, This was nothing like this. It could not have
Other portions of the newspaper story also fall apar
upon examination. The story claims that Brazel was not
alone at the ranch when he found the ohject. According
i his son and his neighbors, there was no one at the
ranch house other than Mac in June and July 1947, The
family was living in Tularozs, New Mexico, then. In
fact, Loretta Proctor told us that it was her son who was
with Mac when he found the debris. The young Proctor
was only seven at the time and remembers almost nothing
about it

In & number of interviews, Bill Brazel told us that not
only was his father alone at the ranch, but when Bill read
the story in an Adbuguerque newspaper, he decided that
someone had to go (o the ranch o care for the livestock.
There was no one there when he arrived on July 12 or 13,

The article claims that Mac Brazel came 10 Roswell
to 221l wool when he revealed his find to the sheriff, but
Bill Braze]l told us that his dad would never have gone
into Roswell to sell wool. The ranchers in the area sold
their wool to the highest bidder, who then toured ranches
shearing the sheep and gathering the wool himself,
Brazel did not shear sheep and take the wool anywhers.
Moreover, the stockyard where some wool was sold was
in Cosona, not Roswell,

Finally, for a relatively insignificant event — the
discovery of a weather balloon — the Army wenl 1o some
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trouble to ensure that the new “facts” got oul. There are
three wilnesses who saw Mac Brazel in Roswell on July
9. Floyd Proctor, his closest neighbar, said that Brazel
was escorted by several military officers and that he did
not acknowledge his friend on the sireel. Frank Jovee, a
reporter for KGFL radio, claimed that Brazel visited him
ot the station on July 9 and told him & story significanty
different from the one be had givenon July 6. And Paul
McEvoy, editor of the Roswell Daily Record, mentioned
the military officers who brought Brazel by the newspa-
per office.

A weather balloon?

Inside the newspaper story from July 9 are a few
clues about what the Army was rying o accomplish. On
July 5, 1947, Eherman Campbell found a strange object
on his farm in Circleville, Ohio. The local shenfl ident-
fied it immediately az & weather balloon, and on July &
there were pictures printed in papers around the country
of bMrs. Campbell holding the kitelike structare,

According to the Reswell Daily Record of July 9,
Brazel, accompanied by Marcel and the coonter-intelli-
gence agent, ook the material home and tried o make a
kite out of it but couldn't get the pieces to fit together,
There is no reason for him, or the military officers, to try
to make & kite out of it, unless they were constructing a
siory to paralie] the explanation for the Circleville find.

In the following days, the type of explanation
changed until the debris was finally identified as a
weather balloon with an attached Rawin Target Device,
used for estimating the alutode of the balloon. Thiz
demonstrates that the balloon explanation hadn't been
fully developed at the time Brazel gave his story to the
Daily Record.

The question that no one asks 15 how the shenff in

| Circleville could identify the balloon but the officers at

Raswell were 5o surprised by their find that they an-
nounced the recavery of a flying saucer. Marcel failed to
make the dentification, but so did Col. William Blan-
chard, the base commander; so did his staff. No one at
Raoswell was ablc to identify the balloon, 1t had to be
flown to Forl Worth where a rather low-ranking officer,
Warrant Officer Irving Newton, announced that it was a
weather balloon (though he didn’t mention the Rawin
Targel Device). )

The facts, again

We have found no facts to dispute in the article of
Tuly 8, which announces the discovery of a flying saucer.
A rancher in the Eoswell area did find something and he
did tell Sheriff George A. Wilcox, who did notify
authoritiez at Roswell Army Air Field. The material was
loaded on g plane and Mown o a higher headgquarters just
az the story claims, We have even interviewed peopls

continued on page 23



The Canadian UFO wave of 1989

by Chris Rutkowski

mm Chris Rutkowskl, an IUR contributing editor,
is a curator at the University of Manitoba. He

is the author of Visitations?: Manifoba UFO
Expariences (1983).

uring the fall of 1989, a series of local flaps con-

tributed 1o produce a UFQ wave in Canada. It is
still too early to obtain a full tally of the report numbers,
but we can note that the National Research Council of
Canada reporied a 100-percent Increase in the number of
reports received during October 1989, Since the NRC
receives only a fraction of the total numbers of reports,
the waves must be considered at least highly significant.

Sightings included a few landing traces, some closs
encounters and at least one interesting daylight disc,
What iz most curious is that many sightings were reported
from Langenburg, Saskatchewan, the location of a noted
CE2 case in 1974, (In that year, farmer Edwin Fuhr
watched several bowl-shaped objects about 11 feet in
diameter creating “nests™ in his field. This was one of
the most unusual trace cases on record because it oc-
curred during broad davlight and was investigated by
RCMP as well as CUFQS representatives.)

There 15 no question that a contribuling precipitor of
the Canadian UFQ wave was the incredible media
attention afforded the Soviet rash of sightings. In the first
week of October 1989, intemnational media ridiculed the
Russians for reports by Tass that “three-eyed aliens” had
invaded a small Fussian community some distance from
Moscow. A repular media circus erupted, and there were
further reports of landing traces outside a large apartment
building and a spurious report of & youth's disappearing
after being zapped by an alien ray gun, Furthermare, at
least one Saviet reporter claimed contact with the aliens,
who told him they were from & place called "Red Star”
{not surprisingly).

It was in this state of mind that Canadian media
carried the Soviel stories, and the Canadian public once
again saw UFQOs become a discussion topic at the break-
fast table, Although the Canadian UFO wave did not get
reported until after the Soviet stories were entrenched in
people's minds, the Canadian UFQ reports actually began
earlier than this point.

The Canadian public first learned about UPDs in

Canada after a national 1elevision news broadcast carried
a story shout sightings in Langenburg. Although the
news story ran on October 25, the sightings at
Langenhurg were from two week earlier, as investigators
discovered, The wave itself began building as a series of
apparently unconnected local fNaps in western Canada.

In the spring 2 UFOROM representative in Brandon,
Manitoba, was encouraged to investigate a report of a
landing trace near the town of Strathclair, aboot 75 km
northwest of his city, When he went to the site in May,
he found two groupings of triangular marks in a field.
The marks were typically impressions dug into the
groumd, about 16 inches in diameter, and with smaller
holes at the centers of each large impression. These
smaller holes were aboul two inches in diarneter and
varied between 12 and 30 inches deep. No one in the
area had ever seen anything like the marks before, though
biologists at Brandon Upiversity thought that animal
actions were involved, Local people, however, dismissad
the notion. There was no UFO observed in connection
with the discovery of the marks, but residents were
convinced of an “alien” origin.

The first ohserved UFD of the Winnipeg flap was
seen on May 30 at %:15 p.m., when a man and his son
phserved a “silvery, metallic hot dog,” oriented verti-
cally. The man went to get four other persons and with
them watched the object as it moved steadily west. Afles
several minutes, the ohject was lost in the distance. A
check with the weather office showed that there was no
wind at the ime, so the possibility of a mylar balloon 1=
fzasible, but not proven.

The summer was generally quiet, but at the end of
Tuly there was a curious report of a power blackout
during the sighting of a UFO over a religions commune
near Veregin, Saskarchewan. The investigation of this
case is continuing, and iz hampered by both distance to
the area and the hesitation of the wimesses (o speak with
putsiders.

At the end of Apgust, 2 woman was driving near La
Salle, Manitoba, at about midnight. She reporied seeing

| a "clovdlike boomerang” pass over her car, north of twn.

This description of a “boomerang” was to become
gignificant in later sightings.

A case that received wide attention in Manitoba was
another trece discovered this ime near the town of
Arpyle, About the same time as the La Salle case, two
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brothers were cultivating and discovered a ring cut into
the tall grass. They left the site and brought their father
i look at their find, On September 3, he went 1o the
offices of a local newspaper with his story, A reporter
immediately went out to the site and began preparing 2
news feature, She called the Manitoba Planctarium in
Winnipeg. where people tend to report their UFOs, and
asked for comments, The planetarium’s opinion on the
case was printed in the next issue of the paper, and
throngs of curiosity-seekers visited the site over the next
three weeks, But because the planetariom seaff were too
busy with their work, no one went out to the site until
October 10, when & TV film erew leamed of the ring and
wanted photos of a8 UFO investigation for a children's
program. The ring was then found to be in a had state of
distarbance, but it turned out that a much fainter second
ring overlapping the main one was visible from a high-
angle view. The site has been recently likened 1o the
British field rings, though the similarity is minor at best,
Onee again, no UFD was observed in connection with the
incident

On Sepiember 15 at 3:40 a.m., a 59-year-old witness
in eastern Winnipeg was looking out her kitchen window
when a delioid object sailed past. Tt had lines of “Christ-
mas lights” spreading out from its leading edge, and
meonved silently out of view in four or five seconds.

About this time UROs were also seen one evening
over the city of Vancouver, by two witnesses. Although
local investigators have tried to find more observers of
the event over such a large population, none have been
located.

But it was a few weeks later that the UFOs became
more frequent. On October 6, at 11:30 p.m., a woman
driving near Tyndall, Manitoba, saw a bright light flash
upwards out of sight in front of her car. Then, on
October 9, a daylight sighting occurred at 2:50 p.m., ata
wildlife sanctuary in an unpopulated area inside the city
limits of Winnipeg. A couple and their child were getting
into their car when they saw a white “boomerang-shaped”
object hanging silently and motionless in the east over the
city. In order to “protect” their child, the mother wok her
inio the back seat of the car. The man continued 1o watch
as the object tilted as it turned, revezling a “bulge™ on its
underside. It moved mway, and the family went home,

The sighting that received the most atiention in the
Winnipeg area began at about 11:15 p.m., on October 9,
and ended over two hours later. Carl Weselak, a self-
deseribed “volunteer asronomer,” decided that he would
observe a meleor shower from his third-floor apartment
window in downtown Winnipeg. Almost immediately,
he saw a large “boomerang-shaped” object flying north to
south over the city. He was keeping accarate time for his
meteor observing, and therefore knew this oocursed at
11:30 p.m., exactly. Its angular size was thought to be
ehout 1/8-inch at arm’s length. Owver the next few hours,
other UFQs were seen, ranging from balls of light wo the
now-familiar boomerang. He was sure that none were
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aircraft, bot were indeed extraterrestrial spacecraft.

The case received publicity becanse as he walched
the objects, he telephoned a newspaper 1o have a reporier
verify the sightings, A major artcle appeared a few days
later, aler reporters had interviewed Weselak and
received comments from planetariom representatives.
Investigation by UFOROM showed that the airport had
never been called regarding flight plans of aircraft about
the time of the sightings. It turns oul that several land-
ingz and wke-olls over Winnipeg comesponded to the
minute with Weslak's observations. (This does not mean,
however, that the sightings are fully explained in this
manner, and both UFOROM and the planstarium are stll
checking [urther with airport officials regarding cenain
details, )

his was enough to spark a local media furor about

UFQs. Several more sightings were reported
throughout the week to media and investigators. Bul
unknown o Winnipeg residents, the wave had mowved
westward, The zame night as Carl Weselak's muluple
sightings, two radio announcers in Dawson Creek, Britizh
Columbia, were alerted to some lights in the night sky.
They went and watched an object that “did not seem to be
an airplane” move silently in the night sky.

On October 11, at 7:30 p.m., a group of five elemen-
tary school children skateboarding in Langenborg,
Saskatchewan, suddenly saw an armangement of colored
lights moving toward them across a field. One boy told
reporters, “It sort of came down when it saw us. It
seemed (o come (o stop, and then it took off." The five
boys imstinctively ducked down in some tall grass
because they feared they would be "abducied.” When the
object moved off, they went o 121l twao of their teachers
negrby in the schoolyard, Together, they all watched the
object for another 10 or 15 minuies. One of the teachers
sadd that the ohject had a "bright flashing light on top and
ared light on the bottom,” It appeared to him 1o be over
a kilometer away, but enly 200 meters in altitude, The
top light appeared to flash on and off every 15 1o 20
seconds,

That same night, Edwin Fohr had his second URD
sighting in 15 years when he, too, saw “colored lights in
the sky.” And in Winnipeg, about 400 km away, a shift
worker was returning home through a park at aboot 12:20
a.m. when he saw a “shimmering boomerang” in the sky,
He went closer, and he heard a high-pitched whine
coming from its direction. As he walked closer, it started
to move slowly, then shot away, making a noise like a
"zonic boom,™

The sighting that drew the most attention in Sas-
katchewan occurred on October 13, At 10:00 a.m, Rose
Neumeier was in her kitchen, talking on the relephone
and blankly locking out a window. A flash of light drow
her atlention toward a shed aboot 15 meters from the
farmhouss. An object "like two pie plates rim to rim™
was motionless in the air only about 15 meters above the



L]
shed. It appeared nine meters long and three meters
thick, with a flattened 1op and a “corrugated” bottom. It
was shiny and metallic, and light was shining brightly
from the “joint™ between the two halves, It made no
noise and animals were not distorbed. After a few
minutes, the object “rose in slow motion. It went north of
the vard, curved through the hayfield, then circled over
the barmn and went back across the pasture.”

Three days later, a woman was driving near Lan-
gruth, Manitoba, at about 7:45 a.m,, when she saw a "star
with a tail of smoke going up™ in the castern sy, Aftera
few minutes the object took on the appearance of a
“"dome shape,” and its tail was no longer visible., Twelve
hours later, a man in Langenborg was driving with his
daughier when they observed an object in the night sky.
The object was “as wide as a small girplane is long,” with
colored Mashing lights, As they watched, it coasted over
the highway “right over our heads.” It made no sound,
and they were both mystified, This sighting spurred the
man to watch the sky every night after that, and he made
several additional repons during the rest of the month.

According to RCMP, 2 “reliable”™ resident of Gilbert
Plains, Manitoba, observed a large object with red
flashing lights on October 25 at 7:45 p.m. It moved
slowly and silently st an estimated altitude of 60 meters
and did not appear to be an aireraft

Finally, the last case of the major part of the wave
was called in o UFOROM on November 1. AL 6:50
p.m., & pilot fiying a small plane 20 miles north of La
Ronge, Saskatchewan, reported seeing a pair of blinking
lights moving across hiz path at an altitude of 3500 feet
Air Traffic Control conflirmed that there were no other
direrafl known in the area at the time,

The geographical spread of the reporis throughout
the wave 15 very interesting. Sightings were made
hundreds of kilometers apart within 8 matter of hours or
days of each other, without any way for the witnesses (o
Imow of the other cases. This in itself is unusual, though
there may be a number of contributing elements. First,
the Soviet media circus probably raised people’s aware-
ness of UFDs. Second, & little-known meteor shower
{Draconids) peaked on October 9-10, and it is possible
that some sightings could be traceable to this cause. Yet
& better known shower peaked on Oelober 21 (Ononids),
and this did not precipitate any reports,

Another possible explanation that should be men-
tioned is the TST (Tectonic Strain Theory of UEOs).
Thiz theory attempts to link UFOs and the release of
geismic energy, and good correlations have been claimed,
though disputed. The San Prancisco earthquake occurred
on October 17, admittedly during the 1939 wave, It has
been suggested that the wave was an indication of
pending seismic release, but how and why the encrpy
manifested itself over 1500 kilometers from the earth-
quake epicenter are questions that need answering before
the o can be considered related through anything other
than coincidence,
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Finally, the Canadian wave had counterparts
throughout North America, and it will be interesting o
assess the full scope 6f UFQ phenomena observed during
the fall of 1989, Ufologists will have plenty of new data
to study in the coming vears. As usual, many of the
reports appear likely to have conventional explanations,
while still others require more information for analysis.

: A few do not seem o have simple explanations, and thoss
| will be examined in the months ahead.

Investigators and researchers are encouraged to share

| their case reports with each other for a bedter understand-

ing of the wave. And debunkers are invited to submit
their comments and case investigations 1o add to the
analyses. Ewven if the UFOs all have conventional
explanations, the wave is at least interesting Lo sociolo-
gists, o understand the mechanisms of its formation, and
the reazons people across two nations soddenly began
reporting UFOs apain, W
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How to make an alien
by Thomas E. Bullard

mm Thomas E. Bullard, Ph.D., writes frequently
for IUR. His articles have also appeared in
Magonia, MUFON UFD Journal, UF®, Journal of
UFO Studies and Journal of American Folklore,
He is the author of the two-velume UFO Abduc-
tions: The Measure of a Mystary (1987).
F araway places have more than faraway names in the
annals of human belief. From time immemaorial we
have populated lands beyond the horizon with leeming
imaginary creatures unlike curselves, and listened avidly
to the most outlandish tales about inhabitants of distant
places. Out of sight always has licensed belief in out of
the ordinary. This principle seems to run throughout
history as a constant, and UFQ occupants represent the
latest version of this tend,

Mo element of the UFQ mystery piques our curiosity
like those occupants. If UFOs are spaceships, they must
have pilots, and reports over the years have tantalized us
with glimpses of these beings er even accounts of more
extensive contact. Abduction reports in particular are full |
of clues about the appearance, behavior, nature and pr-
poses of seemingly alien life forms,

Eyewitness reports are almost exclusively our source
of information about visiting aliens, This situation is
clearly less than ideal. Abduction witnesses gain the
longest and closest view, but they often claim mental
impairment effects, Even without this handicap, thess
people are understandably surprised or frightened, and
such an emotional state is hardly optimal for careful
chservation. Most of us are sloppy observers under the
best of circumstances, Before you dismiss this claim,
try an expenment: Look across the room and estimate
the size of an object, then measure i, If your experisnce
ig like mine, you will learn a small Jesson in doubt. also
humility.

UFQ witnesses take on & far more difficul? task in
reporting their ohservations. Whatever else a UFQ may
be, it i£ not a familiar piece of furniwre, A UFO belongs
1o the unknown, and UFO occupants doubly so. Observ-
ers of the unknown find themselves cast adrift from the
usual moorings of experience and deprived of the
standard points of reference. By its very natore the
unknown defies identification with the familiar, and

escapes the bounds of words as we normally use them.
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Describing the unknown means resorting to metapher and
approximation; understanding the unknown means
puesswork and stabs in the dark,

The UFD observer most wrangle with a sight that fits
no familiar category and then find words to convey the
experience to others. Somewhere in between the ob-
server must reckon with another problem. No one comes
mnocent to the subject of UFOs these days. Everyone
knows something about them, how they are supposed 1o
book, what they are supposed 1o do, who is supposed 1o
occupy them. This burden of preconceptions imposes a

- maze of potentially distorting images, theories and

terminology between the observation and its final
cxpression. A constant concern of ufologists must be
how moch a final report reflects the initial chservations,
and how much it refracts them through a wradition of
preconceptions.

Here is where a look at changing concepts of the
alien has a valuable lesson to offer, An understanding of
how the human imagination has visualized aliens in the
past can reveal principles still at work in visualizing
aliens today, and guide us to clearer judgment about what
W Can or cannot accept in current reports of UFD aliens,

The original traveler's tale is Homer's Odyssey. In
Bocks 9-12 Odyssens recounts his adventures and
hardships on the way home after the fall of Troy. Blown
off course into uncharted waters, he encounters a series of
exotic beings. Among them are the Lotus Eaters, whoss
song 85 50 beautilul that sailors lose their will 1o resist the
sound and follow it 1o destruction. Circe the witch turns
Odysseus’ crew into swine, The Cyclopes are giants
possessed of a single eye; without laws or manners, they
eat human flesh, Far more counteous is Aeolus, who
captures the winds in a bag, but he has commitied the
moral ontrage of marrying his sons to his daughters,
Odysseus meets the Cimmerians, a people who live in a
land of perpetual darkness, and visits the subterranean
tand of the dead. Strange places, strange creatures, and
Strange powers are themes associated with things alien
ever since,

When Alexander the Great invaded India in 327
B.C., he eniered the most distant and fabled of all
countries known io the Greeks, Marvelous accounts of
the wonderful people there already had fillered back to
Greece, but such tales multiplied after his campaign and

| established a tradition of beliefs that would persist for the



next 2000 years. A race of hairy dog-headed peopie
{Cynocephali) lived in the mountains of India and
communicated by barking. The big-eared people (Fano-
tii} could wrap themselves in their ears as if in a blanket,
or even fly with them. The Sciritae had fat faces and no
nose. Members of another race, called the Sciopoda,
shaded themselves from the sun by raising their single leg
and blocking the light with their hoge fool. Giants,
Cyclopes, Amazons, and hairy beings were common in
India, as were Pygmies. These diminutive people are
perhaps the most universal of all marvelous races.

The Roman author Pliny the Elder, who died in the
eruption of Vesuvius in A.D. 79, gathered accounts of
many wonderful races in his Natwral History. He added
reports from beyond the fringes of the Roman world,
gome coming from the Baltic regions to the north, others
eastward from the Caucasus, s1ill others from Libya and
Ethicpia o the south, in fulfiliment of the Greek proverh
that “there i always something new oot of Africa.™ His
book included the Blemmyae, people with faces on their
chests but no heads or necks, The Gymnozophisti stood
in fire all day and looked up at the sun. A race called the
Abarimon had feet that pointed backward, the Anthropo-
phagi ate human flesh, the Androgini had the genitals of
both male and female. One race went about on all fours,
another bare children at age five and died at cight.

Monstrous races are by no means limited 1o Western
spurces. The Shan Hai Ching {Classic of the Mountains
and the Seas), 8 Chinese mythological geography from
the third century B.C., catalogues many types of mon-
strous people and bizarre animals, Among the humans
are tribes of litlle people, one-eyed people, hairy people,
three-handed people, bird-headed people, and one-armed
people. Members of other tribes breathe fire or have
holes through the chest, Though culturally isolated,
Ezstern and Western accounts setled on similar inhabi-
tants for the wild and distant places of the eanh,

More than earthly mileage measured the geography
of the alien in ancient imes, Gods and spirits azsumed
monstrous forms as well. Many ancient Egyptian gods
combined a human body with the head of an animal such
a3 @ jackal, lion or ibis. Greek mythology included
centaurs, horses with human torsos; harpies, birds with
the heads of women; and the Minotaur, a giant homan
body with the head of a boll. Scorpion Men guarded the
gateway where the sun rose and set in the Sumerian Epic
of Gilpamesh, and souls of the dead in the Sumerian
underworld had wings, while this traic attached o angels
in the Judeo-Christian tradition, According 1o Genesis
and the Book of Enoch, angels mated with earthly women
and the offspring had such great size that “thers were
giants in the carth in those days." Religious beliefs often
populate the world with good and evil spirits sach as
gngels, demons and jinn, beings capable of assuming
material form and a variety of appearances, some alluring
and some horrifying. The dead also traffic between the
earth and their abode, be it the tomb, the enderaarld or

heaven. These beings are material or quasi-material and
wvariable in appearance.

A belief that humans share their immesiiate environ-
ment with other sentient beings is almaost universal in
world folklore. Every rock, tree, lake or stream has its
spirit, according to many bellefs, and whole populations
of beings live side by side with humans yet remain
invisible most of the time. Diminstive supernataral
beings are found in the folklore of almost every people.
The fairy beliefs of Celtic countries include tall, beautiful
and godlike beings, small but still humanly proportioned
beings, and also a great many grotesque creatures,
Among these laver are brownies, usually described as
short, hairy and unkempt beings regarded as somewhat
subhuman. The fachan has one lag, one eye, an ugly
face, and & single hand emerging from his chest. Bogies
are mischievous and sometimes dangerous shape-shifiers,

| able to assume both pleasant and monstrous forms, Other
| fairics are strictly monstrous and destroctive, especially

water monsters, In German countries dwarfs serve many
of the same functions as fairies in Celtic lands, but dwarfs
retain more properties of a human race. These beings are
skilled but seldom magical; they dwell underground and
their distinctive physical traits include shortness, hairi-
ness, and crippled feet that nevertheless are capable of
running a1 extraordinary speed.

nieractions between this world and the alien other-

waorld are uncommbn but always possible. In folk
conceptions these realms are adjacent and at some times
or places come into contact. Thus at Halloween the dead
may walk or the fairies disport themselves before mortal
eyes. Certain spots like fairy mounds are frequent points
of contact with the atherworld, while mountains or the
horizon may mark the juncture between heaven and earth.
In some belicfs a great ree reaches with its roots into the
undesworld even while its upper branches enter o
heaven, providing a convenient depot for travel between
realms. Traveler's tales often portray distant places as
magical lands of uncarthly beauty and supemataral penl,
accessible only by extraordinary means, Medieval Irish
accounts of magical voyages described heroes sailing
westward and coming 1o fairyland islands, and the
German verse epic of Duke Emest sent him to eastem
lands described in 12rms of fairyland matifs and inhabited
by Crane Men as well as the familiar Sciopods and
Panotii of travel literatore,

Gresk and Roman tales of monstrous races influ-
enced both Arabic civilization and the Medieval world.
In the Arabian Nights Sinbad the Sailor met these beings
in hig fictitions travels, In the 13605 Sir John Mandeville,
an Englishman who described travels beyond the known
world but perhaps never suffered the inconvenience of
leaving his writing desk, wrote one of the most widely-
read and influential books of the Middle Ages. His
adventures took him farther afield in Africa and Asia than
his Classical sources, but again in the remotest comers of
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the world he found the dog-headed people, the Bciopods,
and Pygmics,

Discovery of the New World presented Enropean
imaginations with a blank map 1o fll with wonders, and
the explorers of America were carelul not 1o disappoint
their audience. Besides polden cities and natbves with
magical powers, the familiar monstrous races soon gained
a foothold throughout the new lands, AL the zame Ume a
crisis was developing for these beliefs. Odyssens could
find his aliens in the Mediterranean, Alexander in India;
but Mandeville had 1o go to China or the source of the
Nile to make their acquaintance, and his successors had
1o seek in still more distant places, As the world became
better known, room on earth for imaginary peoples was
running out. The legitimate travels of Marco Polo in the
late 13th Century included sccounts of traditional
marvels, bot his reference o Dog-heads was more of 3
descriptive convention than an asseriion about a separate
race, and he exposed some bodies of supposed Pygmics
a3 dead monkeys used 1o delude the credulous. Things
once taken for fabulovs became mundane in a familiar
waorld,

Exploration drove the monstrous races 1o the ever-
dwindling remote comers of the world, where even now
dwell Yetis or Mokele Mbembe, and rationalism drove
[airies into the realm of folklore. People still insisted on
their aliens. The sza could harbor sea serpents and
mermaids, islands could remain remote and untouched
enough to satisfy Jules Weme or harbor King Kong, but
some adjustments had to be made, Distance in time
became one compensation for a werld grown too small,
Ancient times offered possibilities for advanced civiliza-
tions and unconventional beings, so a literature on lost

continents began to proliferate in the last century, and
stories of giant Indian skeletons turned up by a farmer's
plow were popular in newspapers of a hondred years ago.
The inner earth offered another option. From holes at the
poles to Mount Shasta, from Bulwer Lytion's The
Coming Race to the Pellucidar of Edgar Rice Burroughs
and the deros of Richard Shaver, the idea of a nearby but
hidden world harboring cutlandish beings has fourished
in popular beliefs and literature,

As human imagination outgrew its home planet,
speculations aboul outer space opened a boundless home
for alien life. Belief in extraterrestrials is nothing new.
Cernain Greek religious systems commined the souls of
ihe dead 1o the various planets. Christian thinkers
reasoned that God created nothing without high purpose
and created all heavenly bodies the zame, 5o all stars and
planets must be inhabited, William Herschel, the
discoverer of Uranus, contemplated what might live on
that planet as well as on the sun. These beliefs persisted
into the 191h Century, and even after astronomers knew
the planets were unlike in conditions, 3 faith in the
adaptiveness of living things preserved a conviction that
life would find a way anywhere and everywhere,

Later in the 19th Century such a belief became hard
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1o maintain, but by 1877 the discovery of “canals” on
Mars convinced many people that advanced beings
populated at least one other planet, The astronomer
Percival Lowell specolated that Martians would be tall,
owing to weaker gravity on their planet, while H.G.
Wells applied the theory of evolution (o his invaders in
The War of the Worlds and arrived at creatures that were
all brain and hand, huge heads with atrophied digestive
systems. These rationalistic speculations gave way to Lhe
exuberant imagimings of science-fiction writers and
Hollywood studios as they populated the known and
unknown universe with humans, humanoids, and mon-
slers of every description.

Even in space the process of rejecting the familiar
has begun. Early in this century most scientizts aban-

| doned the solar system as a probable home of intelligent
i life, though writers, moviemakers and contactess heard

the-message only later. With space probes spying oot the
far side of the moon, surveying the surface of Mars, and
giving cven distant Neptune a once-over, the solar system
has lost oo much of i mystery and remotensss (0 serve
as & convincing hideout for aliens, Their home has
moved outward o Zeta Reticuli or some such place
where no prying eyve intrudes on the romance of faraway.

xamples of the human love affair with “othemess™
could multiply, but these few illustrations hint at

| the duration and depth of the commitment. Aliens in
| Nourishing variety have foond & home in every calture
| and every age. Despite all their diversity, thess aliens

| retain a certain familiarity across geography and history,

Mo search of the unconscious 15 NEcEssary [0 UNCOVET A
reason for this sameness, because it lics mostly in the way
we create out aliens. Alienness beging with the human
norm of appearance, customs, and shilities. A few
general principles then operate (o modily the familiar,
and operate the same way whenever people visualize
strange beings, so the results have identical starting-
points and principles in common even though details may
differ. These principles amount to a set of rules for
creating an alien.

(1} Appearance. Three wehniques working singly or
i combination can account for most aliens of extraordi-
nary appearance, from cute ones like "E.T." (sometimes
described ag a shelled turtle) to the most repellent
menster.

(a) Exaggeration. In the art of alien-making,
nothing succesds like excess. Carry certain physical
features or tendencies to an extreme, such as height to
create a giant or Pygmy, ear size 1o make the Panoti, or
hairiness 1o outfit feral beings and brownies,

(&) Distortion. Recombing ordinary features
into something odd or monstrous. A being reduced to
ofie eve bepomes a Cyelops, to one leg a Sciopod or
fachan, Flatien the face and remove the noss and the
result is the Sciritae, or relocate the facial features on the
chest o make a Blemmyag,
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(£} Chimerization. Join various human and
animal parts into a single creature; for instance, a human
with bird"zs wingz becomes an angel, a horse with a
huoman make a centaur, 8 dog's head on a homan body
equals the Cynocephali. Animal-to-animal combinations
make up & vast menagerie of imaginary beasts not
discussed here, such as the griffin or unicom.

{2) Perzonality. Here too exaggeration, distortion
and chimerization shape the descriptions. A preference
for extremes of virluousness or turpitude 15 apparent
when travel tales speak of faraway races 45 upright and
just, exemplary in some quality like courtesy or generos-
ity. Fairies and dwarls often abide by a sirict code of
etiquette, and expect humans to do the same, Ciher
stramge beings are purely destructive and evil, bereft of
any redeeming quality whatever. Polyphemus the
Cyclops behaved as the wholly evil monster, since he
respected neither men nor gods, had no manners, and ate
human flesh. A common compromiss between thess
extremes is a being in which good qualities juxtaposs
with bad o form a grotesgue and disturbing whole, The
fairias frequently combine a positive side of beauty, grace
and courtesy with a negative side of ruthlessness wward
anyone who offends them, however innocently. These
sharp contrasts lend a danger to alisn beings, and enhance
their alienngss. They personify our angelic along with
our bestial qualices, and bind these opposites so closely
together that the combination seems incongreous,

inexplicable, and wlumately unhoman,

{3) Powers, Exaggerated physical er cullural
abilitnes characterize alien beings, exagperated natoral
conditions their environment, Faraway races might live
ardinary or even savage lives, buot the beings ofien
poszess some extracrdinary quality like great strength or
an ability 1o run onuspally fast, The commonest abilities
are magical powers, like Aeolus’ command over the
winds or the illusion-making talents of fairics. Dwarfs
demonstrated a skill in craftmanship that verged on the
supernatural, while Adanteans and sublerrancans suppos-
edly possezzed the lost knowledge of an advanced
science. Wonderful beings lived in wonderful surmound-
ings. The Lotus Eaters lost memory and care becanse of
their dizt; Mandeville found the Fountain of Youth on his
iravels, and Ponce de Leon searched for it in Florda,
Medieval ravelers sought the kingdom of Prester John, a
mythical Chrstian monarch of a vast and mighty king-
dom in central Asia or Ethicpia. Other explorers of the
Mew Werld looked for El Dorado, a place of surpassing
wealth, and races living in the most desolate places were
imagined o possess endless supplies of gold and jewels,
Other beings lived in perpetual derkness or cold. Again
anything alien is likely 1o be imagined in superlatives,
cither of wonder and beauty or of desolation and ogliness,

(21 Remoleness. One requisite property of aliens
precedes all others — a place of origin distant enough to
lend plavzibility o the beings themselves, Aliens always
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make their home in the distance, The further the raveler
Journeyed from his everyday surroundings, the stranger
sights he saw and the stranger beings he met, Familiarity
ruing the faith, since no matter what you may think of
your neighbor's pedigree, you know him too well 1o
believe that he is literally dog-headed. The land of the
alien must lie well beyond experience, where imagination
can streteh without bumping into inconvenient reality.
There all things are possible, and monsters become the
cxpecied norm,

UFO aliens as pictured in abduction reports fit snugly
within this formula. These occupants come from a far
planet where current beliefs based on scientific theary
anticipate different and unknown life-forms. The typical
alien i< a shon humanoid with an enlarged craniom and
eyes, otherwise diminished facial features and no hair.
Here the process of exaggeration is apparent. For the
enlarged head, frail body, and lack of hair, reference ko
popular images of progressive evolution can explain these
traits, since higher development of the brain comes at the
expense of the physical, more “animal” traits of the body.

Of course UFO occupants possess remarkable
pawers, The science and technology of these beings are
so advanced that they border on the magical. Simply ta
reach earth across space autests (o their abilities. and their
sbduction activities reflect scientific curiosity. The
ability of these beings to manipulate human minds or the
physical environment during an abduction further
demonstrates their advancement beyond human capahili-
tics.

Personality contradictions are commonplace among
the abductors, They express themselves with a great deal
of courtesy and assure the captive that the abduction is
necessary, even crucial for some vague but altruistic
project to save the eanth or the aliens. At the same time |
abductees sense insincerity and indifference. Most of all,
they feel used. Apologies and reassurances come cheaply
from beings who are determined 1o capturs humans
against their will and subject them 1o fri ghiening, painful
experiences. Altruistic pretenses clash so harshly with
unethical practices that the beings seem io share few
human values, These aliens remain steeped in their

elienness,
here does the old alien end and the new alien

; »‘ begin? Easy answers are not forthcoming, and
fateful consequences follow. Abduction TCPOrLS dre
remarkably alike in order and content. One explanation
auributes these similarities 1o different persons sharing a
similar experience, another to a combination of social and _
psychological factors preparing various individuals to
share similar fantasies. If abduction reports were like
nothing else but one another, their objectivity would be

hard 1o deny. The less unique this phenomenon becomes, |

the mare reasonable a subjective arigin seems,
UFO aliens clearly have a great deal in common with

their worldly and otherworldly predecessors. Tdentical
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processes can account for descriptions of the new as well
as the old. If one foundation underiies the surely ficti-
tious and the allegedly real alike, litle credence seems
Justified in the reality of UFD aliens, They lose their
uniqueness and join other aspects of the UFO phenome-
non which, as researchers such as Hilary Evans and
Jacques Vallee have pointed out, resemble accounts
widespread in folklore, religion and mythology. These

| sometimes striking similarities are mainstays snpporting

the psychological explanation for UFOs, a theary favored
by many French ufologists, wrilers for the British journal
Magonia, and even some researchers here in darkest

America, Finding UFQ aliens bear significant likenesses

| o aliens unrelated to UFOs only strengthens this position.

Aliens — in the broadest sense of others different
and distant from ourselves — offer a microcosmic test of
the appeal to folklore as an explanation for abductions.
These beings visit us from a variety of times, places, and

| cultural settings, 5o we view alien beliefs from many

perspectives and have ample opportunity to recognize
legitimate patterns. No controversial premise of innate
archetypes or forms is necessary 1o explain the looks and
customs of aliens, since a formulatic process of the
imagination can account for the observed patierns. This
process is so plain that a few can express it Most
impartantly, UPD aliens share a long list of parallels with
other aliens. All the necessary ingrediants are present
and ambiguities are at a minimurm, g0 if a folkloric
explanation warks for any UFO phenomena, it ought o
work here,

At first glance, and maybe after a second or third, the
parallels between UFO and other aliens remain hard to
dismiss as meaningless, Meither should we dismiss this
evidence simply because it clashes with a favored
explanation, Anyone with an oonce of curiosity must ask
why a self-respecting alien would borrow his good looks,
such as they are, from some rumer-mongering Medieval
liar or Celtic folk radition. The idea that all imaginary
aliens criginated in sightings of the real thing iz even less
plavsible. Understood in terms of recurrent processes of
imagination, UFO occupants starcely pose a problem at
all. They become no more than an updated version of an
age-old tendency 1o exagperate and distort the inhabitants
of unfamiliar places,

Real aliens are superfluous where imagination can do
the job unassisted, so the key question must be whether
the imagination truly works alone or accepis a helping
from reality, At this point social and paychological
factors seem able to go it alone, but closer inspection
leaves some serious doubts.

The idea that folklore must be false is & misconcep-
tion and needs comrection from the start True, many folk
narratives are third-person accounts heard from a “friend
of a friend” and deserving of no credence, A good story
will circulate and change with the telling a each narrator
adds improvements and personal touches, sometimes to
the benefit and sometimes to the detriment of the story,



but always o its modification. Before long any truth in
the initial account is likely to disappear or alter beyond
all recognition. Other folk narratives, like many UFO
reports, originate with the observer. The audience
receives a first-person account of the alleged experience,
without the distortions of hand-me-down ransmission.
Of course personal experience is fraught with opportuni-
ties for alteration as the narrator borrows from traditions
and expectations to shape the account, make the mysteri-
ous comprehensible, and present the narrator as he wishes
himsell seen. Even the inner route through the mind of 2
single individual is hazardous for truth,

In most instances a search for the origin of folk
narratives is a waste of time, and worse, an exercize in
sell-deception. Folklorists of the past built elaboraie
thearetical explanations for the origins of myths and
tales, only 1o discover in light of subsequent knowledge
that all this effort was futile, that every tie to demon-
sirable origing had dissolved in the continnous wash of
creative rethinking,

Criging still cloze to personal experience offer more
encouraging prospects, When folklorist David Hoflord
studied the “Old Hag™" tradition in Mewfoundland, he
heard many accounts of supernatural assault by a noctur-
nal being that entered the bedrooms of witnesses and
oppressed or paralyzed them so that they coald scarcely
breathe for several minutes. The usual folkloric explana-
tion for a personal experience of this sor stresses its
cultural origing, A tradition of Old Hag visitations
teaches people to expect such visits. Difficulties in
breathing during the night may trigger a dream or fantasy
involving the elements of this tradition, the resuleis a
claimed visil from the Old Hag, and yet another report
reaffirms the belief among hearers who are prepared then
i share in this psychological experience at some future
time.

When Hufford returned o Pennsylvania and began
describing his research in class, he received a shock,
Several students came forward to say that they had
experienced a similar encounter. What surprised him was
that none of these students came from Newfloundland ar
ever heard of the Old Hag tradition; yet they described
the same phenomena, These students had never reported
the experience because they had no name for it, no
traditional framework for understanding the frightening
events. Like many abductees, these students kept silent
to avoid ridicule and suspicion of insanity, He came to
suspect a form of sleep paralysis as the underlying cause
of these experiences,

The conventionzl wisdom of folklorists allowed
extranormal experiences o be only consequences of
radition. Huflord's evidence tormed canse and effect
arcund and showed that raditon might derive from
experience. The revolution would not overthrow expec-
tations a5 an imponant element in observations and
repons — maost UFQOs are still IFOs, most ghosts just
wisps of fog. 'What matters is that the relationship can

run two ways, and expericnce might play a larger role
than folklorisis imagine in creating and sustaining
tradition. His findings deny the absolute power of
tradition in extrancrmal encounters, and restore faith in
the witness as a potentially valid reporter of experience.

Regm‘dnd in this light, the “aliens™ recorded by

ancient travelers lose some of their fancifulness,
The dog-headed people were most likely baboons, the
Sciopods based on Indian yogis sitting in an acrobatic

| position and seeming 1o shade themszlves with one fooL

The Blemmyae may have wom armor depicting the
human face on their chests, or taloos presenting a similar

| picture, Some peoples are taller or shorter than others,

and within any population gigantism and dwarfism can
occur, 50 the bazis for piants and Pygmies could be
experiential, Many of the monstroos races identify ina -

| plausible way with actual people.

Suill, descriptions of strange beings and places owe 2
great deal o magmation and the development of &
tradition. Medieval travelers soch as Mandeville did not
see baboons or dog-headed people, but simply borrowed
from Pliny and other traditional sources. A pattem of
imagination appears to have warked thronghout histary
and in China as well as the West, sugpesting a oniversal
soope. This process shows every sign of vigonous actvity
today in the creation of literary and movie aliens.

Given the difficolties in coming to mental grips with
a nowvel and frightening situation, an individual who
really encountered aliens might well fall back on the
time-honored intellecioal supports offered by raditional
processes and ideas. The situation would overwhelm

| calm and dispassionate judgment. In the scramble to
- make sense out of the pnknown and communicate some

likeness of an incredible experience, the wimess might
exagperate and distort certain aspects, or mix unfamilisr
impressions with familiar but insccurate ideas. Exagper-
ated aliens might better convey the strangeness and
waonder of the experience, but at a price. Extremes lack
nuance, 50 these aliens would lose something of them-
selves, part of their oniqueness and the exactitude of a
clinical description. "We can only speak of aliens in
human terms. The speaker must add something of
himself o the experience and subtract something of the
unknown other, 20 the result is always a partial trath,
‘Though some changes are incvitable, we have reason
I believe that they may not be very extensive or serious.
What remains the nemezis of psychological proponents
and the hope of objectivists is a surprising consistency
among UFC aliens. They range from Venusians to 10-
fioot tall monsters with a vanety of other shapes and
forms thrown in berween, but the short hairless humanoid
with large eves and oo hair predominates in honest
reports. Even gbduction aliens differ in appearance; yet
the short humanodd 15 most commeon by far. His looks

| and personality reappear down to small details in case
| after case and provoke a sense of amazement that so
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many people could imagine the same thing, _

A critic might object that Dog-heads and Sciopods
persisted unchanged for some 2000 years. True, but thess
creatures passed along a written tradition, Pliny's
writings were part of the edocation of all literate persons,
50 his description was familiar to travel writers and they
took it up with deliberate intent, UFO aliens seem to
lpok the same even to people little versed in UFO lore,

5o little variance among UFO aliens is the most
surprising aspect of all. Pliny records an extengive array
of strange races, fairies come in a wide variety of
appearances. Exotic forms for extraterrestrials proliferate
in stience-fiction literature and movies. With the
boundless opportunities of outer space for a background
and Hollywood setting the example, abductees ought to
spice their siories with some variety of visitors, These
people should be especially productive of diverse alisns
if, as many psychological proponents have argued,
abductees are [antasy-prone by nature and therefore more
fluent than average in imagination,

Just how contrary this stability is to the normal
dynamics of folk tradition cannot be overemphasized,
Variation is a central characteristic of folklore, one of its
essential qualities. Nothing requires UFQ aliens 1o be
short humanoids; in fact, the familiarity of bug-eyed
monsters and diverse popular images of aliens from the
mass media should posh even the dullest imagination
toward variety. Abductees would have to study the
abduction literature with a curious single-mindedness to
learn the “proper” alien description, then conspire with
other abductees 1o stick with the same image, Other folk
narrators are usually stubbomn about their creative rights,
and it is hard 1o believe that a hypnatist or familiarity
with abduction reports alone could influence so many
individuals to limit themselves to such a narrow range of
descriptions,

The final improbability of the folkloric solution is the
two conflicting claims its propenents ask us to dccept,
We must swallow reports that have the content of
folklore, but not the dynamics of folklors, True, UFO
aliens resemble other aliens, but the materials of folklore
are 50 vast and diverse that a diligent search can find
some look-alike for just about anything. The alien
tradition is so polymorphous that 1o speak of it in the
singular misrepresents its wrue complexity. How so many
abductees thread their way so unerringly along one strand
of that tradition becomes a formidable challenge 1o
peychesocial proponents, if they would face the conss-
quences of their assumptions. The dynamics of folkiore
provide 2 more crucial 1est than ressmblznces, and UED
alien reports show Jitle sign of acting like typical folk
nasratives. Chuite the contrary, so little variation in
evidence when so muoch should he expectied gives rood

reason to doubt that abdoction reports are [olklore, or else
to believe that folklore warks in an uncustomary way
with thess narratives and these alone,

Escape from the typical psychosoeial lzbyrinth iz
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pmsifiln. If witnesses actually observe the aliens they
describe, then we have an easy answer for why imaginary
aliens show all the variety that their place of origin
implies, while UFO aliens do not. One sample lies closs
o expenience, ene far from it The two samples differ in
origin and any elements of comparison are coincidental.
Recurrent first-person accounts of complex events are
more gppropriate for recall of experience than for the
operation of imagination, and abduction reports are
certainly recurrent in sequence and content. Minor
differences may trace 1o social influences and psychologi-
cal processes, but the larger consistencies point in the
opposite direction,

All the votes are not yet counted on whether abduc-
tion reparts are really as consistent as those now in
literature would indicate. Even if the consistency
persists, il cannot prove that extraterrestrials exist, It
only challenges proponents of a folkloric solution to
demonstrate how similarities of content are significant in
the absence of similaritics in dynamics, Half an answer
still leaves an equally large question. From a folklorist's
point of view, the ability of people 1o repon extranormal
experiences with some accuracy conforms to present
understanding, but the ability to preserve complex
narratives without variation does not. One abductee after

| another tells about the same old aliens with no maore
| imaginative embellishment than someone who describes

riders on the moming bus, Odysseus and Mandeville
knew a good tale and knew how to tall it maybe ab-
doctess just know their alicns, W

Letter

To the editor:

I would like to correct Chris Rutkowski's remark
(September/October JUR) 1o the effect that “Druffe] and
D, Scolt Rogo have specolated that abductess transfer
emational stresses into emotionsl fantasies.”

This theary, which I first outlined in The Twjunpa
Canyar Contacts, is not shared by Ann Druffel. It was
because Ann and | were coming 1o different conclusions
on the nature of UFO entities that we wrote SEparate
concluding chapters to the book. Nor is it correct to say
that I believe that UFO-abduction expericnces are
fantasics. Thave long maintained that such experiences
are real and objective bat that the theme of the event will

| be based on information withdrawn from the subject’s

mind by some X intelligence,

I wish to note that ever since first writing on the
abduction mystery, [ have taken pains 1o emphasize that
my provisional theory does not reject the physicality of
these encounters. Why this part of my theory has been so
aften misinterpreted remains an enigma to me.

D, Seott Rogo
Morthridee, Califorria



Machinelike underground sounds
and UFO phenomena

by Greg Long

mm Greg Long is a researcher and writer who
lives in Oregon.

I wani to thank Thomas B. Adams, Tommy Rov
Blann, Grakam Conway, Lucius Farich, Stan Friedman,
Stan Gordon, Robert Neeley, Chriz Rutkowski and the
Yakima fire lookowts for their kelp in the making of thiz
ariicle,

rom 1981 to 1986 I investigated and researched a

concentration of UFQ sightings (nearly 200) that
occurred between 1964 and 1984 on the Yakima Indian
Reservation in south-central Washington, My complete
findings will be publizhed in the near fumre, One
significant fact to note now, however, is reports of
machinelike "underground sounds" on the reservation.
During my Yakima investigations I also discovered simi-
lar accounts of these sounds from other distant locations,

On one hand, these puzzling sounds suggest effects
of tecionic strain and earthquake activity; yet the preva-
lence of reports of UFOs, Biglioot and other sirange
phenomena in the vicinity of the sounds may suggest a
more complex answer. IF the sounds are proved 1o be
linked 1o seigmicity, however, other explanations must be
sought for the reports of anomalous activity in the local
areas. (Allitalics in the quoted material are my own,
unless otherwise noted.)

Yakima Indian Reservation

The Yakima Indian Reservation is faulied. In fact,
Toppenish Ridge, along which many UFOs were seen
{mostdy nocturnal lighs), features nearly 100 separate
faulis spanning 1% miles.

Dauring the heaviest period of UFQ sightings (the
early to mid-1970s], the fire lookouts — who provided
118 of the wotal reports — began detecting strenge
sounds. W.J. (Bill) Viogel, the Chief Fire Control Officer
and the chief UFD investigator on the reservation,
reparted for the first ime (November 7, 1972) that the
fire lookout on Satus Peale, at the western end of Toppen-
ish Ridge, had been hearing “deep rumbling noises™
which seemed to come from under the lookout station.

Wogel described the sounds as “similar 1 a loaded

truck pulling a long hill and never reaching the top, or the
kind of rumblings one sometimes associates with an

| earthquake.” He reported that the lookout heard the
sounds only during the daytime, and he excluded logging
tracks or jet aircraft as the soorce, Two years later, in
Aupust 1974, the sounds were reporied again,

In May 1976, Vogel noted that several loggers in an
area four or five miles west of Satos Pass on U5, 97
heard what sounded like *several large turbines start op
and run." The loggers compared the sounds, which
seemed 1o come from beneath them, to the turbines in the
powerhoose at Grand Coules Dam,

Vogel also noted that a former gate guard at the Mill
| Creek Guard Station, a few miles west of Satus Peak, had

heard underground “mrbines” in the evenings when out in
the vard of the station,
| By November 1976 Viogel reported that the soonds
| had been heard “all thi way from Fort Simeoe (7 1/2
| miles north-northwest of Satus Peak) to almost the entire
length of Toppenish Bidge.” In Seplember 1978 the
sound of underground turbines or engines was heard at
Sopelia Tower at the southern boundary of the rezervation
| Tor seven howrs (approcimately 200 pom. to4:00 a.m.,
| September 3-4), According to Viogel the noise was like a
| “turbine” or “unsynchronized propellers on multi-engine
| aircraft.” When let outside the lookout station, the fire
| lookout’s dog displaved anxisty, and the lookout felt
| barely perceptible vibrations under her feet when stand-
ing on & concrets slab, The lookout said she had heard
the same zound during the summer of 1978, but always
during daylight.

During my investigations, | persuaded the fire
Inckouts to comb through their logbooks and diaries for
gll references 1o ROz, unexplained phenomena and
sounds, Here are their references to sounds: -

(1) Satuz Peak, 7:30 pom., Avgost 28, 1974, "Heard
rumbling noises apain: Mo wind at time."

(2} Satos Peak, 5:30 p.m,, October 14, 1974, “Can
hear loud rumblings,” the lookout wrote, The Iookout
received & call from the lookout at Sopelia Tower: “She
heard rumblings, to0 (at Sopeliz).”

{3) Satus Peak, 1:30 a.m., May 28, 1979, "Heard
the strangest noise, Went on catwalk and listened,
Sounded like big drops of water hitting a paper, or b0
sticks hiiting topether. Loud. Moise sounded like it was
bouncing around different places. Real spooky. Teven
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looked in the sky for something. ™

{(#) Satus Peak, 6:30 p.m., October 11, 1979, “Out
on north side of catwalk. Heard a loud humming noise.
Could not see anything. Eerie sounding.”

(3) Satus Peak, approximately 9:30 a.m.. October
21, 1979. Something “emitting & high-pitched whine
passed directly over the top of the lookout. ‘Whatever it
was, it passed quite closely.” The two lookouts, lopether
in the station, stated that the sound wasn't a jet's; it was
not ear-splitting, but loud enough 1o be discernible,

(6) Satus Peak, 1:35 p.m., Aogust 18, 1980, “Heard
that motor sound again, like underground. First time this
year.” .

(7) Satus Peak, 9:37 am,, July 16,1982, “Heard a
rumble”

(8) Batus Peak, %40 a.m., July 18, 1982, “Heard a
big truck pull up beside the lookout and shut its motor
off. 1jumped up and peeked out the window, expecting
1o ste a big cattle ruck with racks, but there was nothing
oul there!™

(%) Satus Peak, approximately 6:30 a.m., September
1983. "I was checking the rain gage, and I heard soft
music for a bit. f really did and looked all around
wondering if & car was parked some place with a radio on
but couldn't see a thing," (Rain gage is 40 feet from
lookout station.)

(10) Satus Peak, 9:40 a.m., July 18, 1984. I heard
my ‘truck noise."™ The lookout thought she heard a
vehicle coming up the road to the top of the peak. When
she checked, she saw nothing, She had heard the “truck
noise™ several times before,

England

Harold T. Wilkinz, a British UFQ writer from the
early 19505, reported “unexplained noises which seem 1o
come from underground” in Flying Saucers Uncensored
(1955) and in Flying Saucers on the Attack (1954). The
sounds were heard at Chalfont St. Giles, Buckingham.
shire {close to the Chillern Hills); Leigh-on-Sea, Essex:
north Lincolnshire; southwest London; and Surrey. In
Surrey the sounds were heard in deep-lying chalk caves:
they were also heard at the botiom of a Yorkshire coal
rmine,

Wilkinz quotes from 2 correspondent’s letter regard-
ing the Chalfont sounds: “Thess noises were first heard in
September, 1953, They became very audible around
Christmas, 1953. The sound was described as a persistent
humming of deep vibration and regular pulsation, On
occasions it kept people awake at night, when the sounds
intensified to a noise like a plane ‘revving' up its engines,
ar & mator truck climbing a kill," (Recall that the Satus
Feak lookout compared the sounds she heard 10 2 truck
laboring up an incline.)

Wilkins quotes from the correspondent’s description
of the sounds given to him by a neighbor, Mrs, Craig:
“The mysterious sound is not high-pitched. Mrs. Craig

18 IUR MovemberDacember 1685

describes it as resembling the sourd of *giant wheels
turning." Sometimes it s22ms to go up and down the
walls of her rooms. But the actual direction of the sound
varies and seems to be unaffected by wind direction.”

The correspondent goes into some detail conceming
his own experiences with the sounds:

“It sounds to me like a very heavy machine working
a long way off, and it has a regolar pulse of vibration,
which suggesis either that the machine passes through a
regular phase of vibration, or elsc there is a regular
periodic build-up of sound waves., The unchanging pitch
indicates that the machine always runs the same speed. 1
know of no normal machine which could do this, day and
night for months.,..,

“One cannot tell the direction of the sound. It is
simply there, One may lose it by moving a short distance
from one point where it is audible. So back to that point,
and the sound is still there.... It seems completely
elusive. One can go away from it, but not apparently
| approach it beyond a certain limit, Either it must be very

decp below the surface, or else — a wild surmise — it
| might be located in a fourth dimension]™

Another cormespondent, this one from Essex, had a
gimilar report. A phenomenon similar to the Chalfont
sound had been heard at Leigh-on-Sea:

“For the past twelve months, 1953-54, my wife and I
have been hearing a strange noise, intermittent, but
continuing for fairly long periods. It is a combination of
buzzing and grating sounds. The description of rambling
trucks, such a5 you mention about the Chalfont St. Giles
sounds, would fit very well. Swangely enough, the noise
is not apparent earlier than about 11-11:30 p.m. On
occasions it is extremely loud.”

The correspondent stated that when he went ourside
to hear the noise more clearly, he heard nothing at all.

Wilkins and his correspondent discounted telephone
wires, waler pipes, aircraff, construction, local factories,
appliances or rail activity as sources of the sounds.

The first correspondent related a sighting of a UFOD
four miles from Chalfont 5t. Giles in spring 1954, While
walking home at night, he sighted a “brilliant light” with
an estimated diameter of 20 feet. It was hovering at an
altitude of approximately 500 fest.

"The intensity of the light it projected was like that
from an electric welding-arc. It hurt my eyes to look at
it About thinty seconds passed. Then the light seemed 1o
give a convulsive jerk. A kind of bulge or blister sprang
out of the left side. 1could see that the thing was a globe.
The blister was not as bright as the main body, A
moment later the light vanished.”

He also reported seeing in summer 1953 “a steady
orange light moving narth over the sky of Herts, against
' [his itatics] a westerly bresze ™

Italy
Here, from the Toronto Globe-Mail (February 7,




1979, i£ a description similar 1o those made by persons
who heard the Yakima and Chalfont sounds:

RO E e Heavy-tyed from lack of slesp, thonsend of Romans s
irying to baeate the source of & mysenons rumbling noiss that has kept
infishilants of several sreas of the city awake sach night for shous & week.

Police, the City Cooneil and pewspapers have been inundated with
telephone calls complaining sbout the nojse which has been variously
described as the sound of & sublesrsean maching, 3 molorcycle or the
puat of pome gigasle est,

The nease is heard between 2 and § &, in oeally wmmlaied sreas in
the center and suburbs, and hassssed ba skepticel policermes have been
urabls ko tce any source of *i ron-rom,™

The newspapes [T Mersagrer di Roma has offered o prize 1o the fira
perion who iuceesds in idemifying the mesisnce.

Colorado

In 1967 Tom Adams of Paris, Texas, became
interesied in the famous case of an Appalooza mare,
Snippy. Snippy's owners asseried that the horse had died
under strange circumstances and had been mutilated by
extraterrestrials.

In March and June 1970, Adams and two compan-
ions, Stan Ferguson and Gary Magsey, raveled 1o the San
Luis Valley near Alamosa, Colorada, 1o investigate the
Snippy case for themselves., Adams recalled:

Dhuzing our indtial trip io the San Lok Valley tn 1970, my colleagies
end | wers told of mystenios motorfibs sounds thal seemed w0 emanme
frem a portion of the Blanca Massif — the group of mesiaine
containing Mount Blancs jiself sod & number of ather high peaks located
cad of Alamosa. These mouniains form & porion of the exnem
boundery of the San Liis Valbey and lie south of the Great Send Dunes.
The mountains from which the sounds ooiginee evesloak the g of e
death of Snipoy 1he horee, and the scumds had been reposted from a2 less
thal bime — ['ve pot yes irneed them back 10 iy 1o establish the earkizst
meporis. During the pesiod in which the sounds have been beard (Jaie
‘G0 il mad-' Ts), UFD and parenommel phenamens have besm
reported in the valley, ples livsnock manilations, with the laper peakisg
i e pmid-" T,

Camping on the westzm slope of the Sangrs de Cristos, nortiwes
of Mounz Blenes and gouth of the Band Dunes, we heard the gounds in
1570, Tww or thres nights in succession, it "cranked up™ afier midnight
and subsided shonly befors dewn, It wasn't really boud enowgh o hear
OVEr convemalion = bl defiritely sonnded Jike 3 medor of some o,
with s suggenion of & dyasmo-ryps wiies 1o it. And cthers hed said s
it sometinees seems even looder wilk as sar w0 the prousd, One could
wafily imagine [Adens’ emphesls] the found coming from beneath the
surfeoe, bam whethes & did af net remains parely specolative.

Adams states he heard the sound from time o tme
on subsequent irips to the area, He last heard the sound
in March 1976 while hiking alone. “As always, one
could never judge precisely where the sounds were
nullging from — just somewhere along the range,” he
said.

Stan Ferguson added this information concerning
UFQs in the area:

We were camped ot near an old picnser cemeiery, Urseea
Crmetery. Several peopls bed reporied round orbe of light kovering
over the cemetery which wag maibes [solated.... There is 2 road, the Sand

5
Dunes Road, that was parslbe] to o wisers we wene camped o, Cine
nighe we saw a pound [ight appear jost sa if semeone umed on e Bght
swibch. From the first light a second light appesned, then a thind snd &
fourth. There wai & blush-whiss light, smalles than the sthers, which
buzzed around tee other lights. The sighting bested for approzimarely 15
minmes. ‘Iﬂuuﬂmwﬂh!hﬂmﬂt]}mm Foad, Gary
Massey got in the car and drove down the moumisingide 1o got & clossr
book. By the tme he got down w0 the rosd, the lights kad mereged hack
im0 one light snd then dissppesred. “This sighting accurred 51 the teme
time that we were hoaning 1he “meolor sounds,”

Texas

Five hundred miles to the souheast, in Robertzon
County in central Texas, a UFO flap broke oot in June

| 1972 and peaked in November/December 1973, Most of
| the UFD sightings were centered over Calvert, a small

ranching community of 2000. Timothy Green Beckley

| reviewed the events occurring there in “Calvert, Texas:

Flying Sancer Way Station™ in the magazine [/FQ
Repori.

Gracia Unger, editor of the Calvert Tribune, and
ufologist Tommy Foy Blann investigated the Roberison
County occorrences. Beckley noted that Calvert is in the
midst of zeveral imponant space and military installa-
tions, These include underground missile silos and Army
and Air Force bases (Fort Hood is 15 miles away).

Beckley wrote:

[ndeed, if UFOs are nsing 1his particalsr eres 55 s base or wey
stom — a3 BOW §sems 1o bo obviots — whene ars they Biding?
Tesmmy Blann says he personally knows of coverns which exist beneath
furenland en the oulskine of iown. “Thers is 8 complex netwarlk of caves
and bannels which connect seenewhers undesgroend. A check of
geographics] servey maps will show that Cabvert is buill direcaly on top
of a foulr line which siprags far miles bn sll Srections.”

Bianm told me that mnchers and farmers in the eres heve repaoried
learing pecuiiar noises comdng from deep beneath their feet. “Individu-
als liwing five or st miles outside Calvert have told me hew they have
repeabedily been driven out of their homes imo the ool evening air by the
sound of gengratars, 1tappears to them i If o feady deontag nodee i
arigenating from off directioas bu i loudest when ears are placed bo the
ground. This bit of infarmathen has led me w2 sonelude tha UPOs
cpemling smimd here bave extablished hases for lemselves far beneath
the Earth's erosL™

The similarity in detail batween the Calvert sounds
and thase in Colorado and at Yakima is sriking. In 1983
Blann provided me more information;

Mast of the “genersior hems™ were noted groand T:30 pom., 11:30
g, and 2:00 s, amd would last for sbout one=end=s-bdf 1o bwo hours
al the mazimam. The noises were soch 1kat they could nen be traesd 1o
oo parttadar belion; it was almost as if the sconds were maobile and
chenged locetions in the sres w1 sight. Mynerioas Bpht flahes o pigh
were soied [n some of these aness whers the sounds wers coming Erom.
A fash wonld come ap from the groend and spread out dna ¥ akape in s
split sesond. The light woald be s reddish-yellow sometimes to o silvery
whits.

Diead animals such as binds, spaimels, elc., wen found in seme of
Lhewe areas where the Hght flathes ked bees seen, 1t appeared some of
the birds fell ouf of the ees dead. Theme wers no =igns of heat, such s
simgeing or charring.
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\ Thmunhmilb:mr&hn‘mﬂrhﬂdmﬂnld;ﬂm.uilp
nighis. The pounds weee very [Hlann's emphasis] resonating in the
stmasphirn and on obgeets such as houses, vees, proand. You esuld
lmast feel your organs vibrating inside your body. | essmol begin o
describe how it really fel and the unosual feelings afierward, g,

tirgling, loas of squilibriem, nauses,

Among the phenomena being reporied in Calven
were radio interference with amateur radio broadcasts,
blackouts of street arc lights, animal reactions before and
during UFQ appearances, multicolored nocturnal lights,
objects with elongated or extended forms with domes or
features suggesting “craft” and a seven-foot-tall hairy
creature,

Puerto Rico

In 1973 Spanish UFQ investigator Salvador Freixedo
reporied in Flying Saucer Review on UFD sightings that
occurred in Santo Domingo and Puerto Rico during
August, September and October 1972, In early December
1972, Freixedo gave a talk an UFOs in the garden of a
friend"s house before 40 people. Freixedo claimed that
during his talk, an accountant saw a blinking, pink-
colored light hovering above the house, After a while, it
vanished.

A few days later, Freixedo was visited by an engineer
who had tape-recorded Freixedo's talk. The engineer
played the tape. “..[A] very strange and very loud sound,
like the noise of some machine working in the closs
vicinity of where I was had appeared on the tape, super-
imposed over my voice though not blotting it out en-
tirely.” Freixedo goes on to say:

The sourd. it lice the ruseing of s mater, Ry shythm is quits & loq
fasser than the thythm of the spoals of the recorder, At times it biols at
my woles entirely, and it changes in volume st several pairgs on the iape,
Tewardy the middie of the talic, and after & maire like the rownd af pears
ehanping, my veice vamishes aliogether, and the gound of the machine
becomes & beep, beep, beep [Freiveda's italics], very Taint, and with &
complicated rhythm. Two minees later my veier reappesrs, ind ance
e e pawerfil noise of the machine runsing is beard.

New Jersey

C. Louis Wiedemann of Vestigia reported in Faie on
a series of sirange incidents that occurred in 1976 in the
White Meadows Lake area of northwestern New Jersey.
The following is especially pertinent;

Sevaral prople reporied Bearing nighitime sounds resembling
“underground constroction werk™ and “rubierranean maskinery” There
was also sk Boise of 8 fruck arcending o ki in low pear bul “mever
reacking the rop.” [Remember Vopel's sistement,]

These odd noises, which faszed & Fall 30 mipstes whenever they
wers heard, always occurred late stnight. A howsewife heasd the
drugkiies foundr one night at 1300 sm: e moize seemed 1o oripirae
fram the direetion of high-vallage elecirie limes which up through the
woeds, On thal seme maming, hes hishand awoke & 3:00 2. and
heard the same sound, sl droning ca,
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Vestigia reteived reports of giant, hairy bipeds in
rural Morris, Warren, Hunterdon and Sussex counties.
Wiedemann and a fellow investigator personally heard
ecrie howls of unseen animals emanating from the dense
forest bordering the suburb of White Lakes Meadow.
Also investigated were UFOs, & hovering triangular
object, aerial orange and white lights, beeping sounds and
brilliant flashes like a flashbulb being fired 100 yards
above houses and trees.

Pennsylvania

For over 25 years Stan Gordon and a nerwork of

' investigators have gathered information an UFOs and

other anomalies in southwestern Pennsylvania. Gordon
FepOTLs:

Chver the years, siraage wederpround soaeds hive boes repanesd
from vasiows aseas of the siaee. From early 1970s up to the prosent, there
bave been mamerons esses of omnge-red balls of light.... In the lne
19605, | recall [undergrownd sound] repets sround Mew Kensimglon in
Westmoreland County whare there had bten sounds fike heavy
marchinery, Thers hive also been similar sounds reporisd nesr Doy and
Mew Alexandria i the early 1970x, several veers befars the massive
Eigfoot flap beke out in the sane arss. There heve been some
sieygaikelice phentmena i this ares where the ground shook and lights
WETE i5en al the seme lmE,

California

In 1974 Vogel was contacted by B. Ann Slate, a
Los Angeles freelance writer of UFO and Bigfoot
articles, Unuil her death in 1978, Vopel corresponded
with Slate providing her material for articles on the
Yakima Indian Reservation sightings, In Bigfoot (1976)
2 book Slate coauthored with Alan Berry, a fellow
Bigfoot investigator, Slate wondered if Bigfoot lived in
natural underground tonnels formed long ago beneath the
San Andreas [ault. Bigfoot and the creature’s tracks had
been sighted in the Big Rock Campground in the San
Gabriel Mountains. In the campground, investigators
atiempied 1o record underground sounds using a tape
recorder. Slate reports:

Neahing cotld be keard bt the sound of the exickets chirping, Yel
when the lape wai replayed, sounds of maghinery were distimnetly beard
= liose resembling a gemerarer or Rydroelecivic plant in sperarion bus
enening from beasark [Slate’s ialics] their feel. The sounds da nat

| remain consissent bus subtly change, ar ifnew “pears” are set in motion,

[Reesll Freivedo's wape.] Suddenly the seunds slop. From the taps
comes & harsh, almost competer-like voics thet whispers something
seunding very much |ie “Keep out! We don't want..™ And with thal,
the voice fedes,

slate reparts two other instances of thess sounds. In
March 1975, she received a letter from a witness in Cedar
ity Uah:

My wife and | moved into a moantais esbin 70 miles from Cedar,



high in the mounizing. Every sight st around 11 o"clock, we hears
mator ruaning, but il sounds far ewey and rons throagh tee might.

The witness wondered if the sound was caused by a
mining operation, bot becanse the sound was heard on the
weckend when the mining company was shut down, he
excluded this possibility.

In the third report, 8 Canadian man reporied that
while on a hunting expedition 435 miles north of Mon-
treal, at night he heard a sound that "seemed to come
from the bowels of the earth. It sounded like mackinery,
the same sound you would hear if you were in an engi-
neering plant,” The nearest town was 235 miles away;
the witness ruled out vehicular and waterfall activity,

Pine Bush, New York

Ellen Crystall of New Milford, New Jersey, reports
observing and photographing UFOs near Pine Bush, New
York, since 1980. She states that she has felt warm air
being “vented” from an underground installation where
the UPOs land. One night she passed a ficld where
“drilling” was occuring:

swihes drilling was g0 lowd that with my windaws rolled up and sir
conditioning on, 1 slmos thooght it was the tranefommer on a pole I was
passing. Bun soenething “elicked™ in my head and 1 siopped, pulled cver,
epened my window, and clearly heard something like & preismatie dnll
from the dense fores behind the small Geld....

1 am receiving mepens from around the country sbout endergroand
dnilling im woods in the middle of the pight, ssd pensrarars coming
apparenily from wdsrgrowed whem there isn't anyose doing comsiroc-
tion. Many imes, inchoding in the Pine Bush ares, thers sppesrs 1o be
“canstraction” geing os ofl night bang and wies vou get dloie, all the
lights go oo,

Patterns

In all the locations above (except Ialy), UFDs were
reparied during the period the sounds were heard.
Specifically, reddish-orange balls of light have been
gighted at Yakima and Pennsylvania; orange and white
“lights™ (the exact shape of the “light” was never stated)
have been sighted at Yakima and in England, Colorado,
Mew Jersey and Pennsylvania, “Hairy creatures” have
been reported &t Yakima, Texas, New Jersey, Pennsylva-
nia and Californis. Earthquake faulting exists at Yakima,
New Jersey, Pennsylvania and California, Ttaly isa
volcanic, earthquake-prone coontry (as is most of the
Mediterranean area),

An explanation?

Are the sounds caused by seismic processes? The
Tectonic Strain Theory (TST) of UFOs developed by
neurophysiologist Micheel Persinger (and interpreted
geophysically by John Derr of the U.S. Geological
Survey) proposes a scenario to explain UFQs. Perhaps

the TST may point toward a possible explanation for
some objects — but certainly not craft or hairy creatures.

In its barest form, the TST accounts for UFOD
“luminosities” (that is, nocturnal lights) as the result of
electromagnetic fields or electrons released from rock
doring periods of mounting tectonic strain, The energy
ionizes gases in the atmosphere, and somehow a ball of
light, usually red-grange, is produced. Ultimately, the
sublarranean tectonic pressure is relieved in an earth-
quake, and the luminosities vanish. Rather than describe
all the complexities of the TST, let us note that the theory
predicts the occurrence of luminosities in earthquake-
prong, faulied regions.

Geophysicists know that several different types of
energy waves are produced by earthquakes — P, § and
Rayleight waves. P waves iravel through solid rock,
volzanic magma or ocean water, a fraction of them
emerging from deep in the earth and entering the atmaos-
phere where animals and humans hear those more than
15 Hertz, Helmut Tribotsch believes that perceptible
earthquake noises can begin seconds before tremors —
and may be detected without earth movemenis presend, an
interesting fact in that the accounts of underground
sounds cited here fulfill this characieristic,

The Yakima fire lookouts, however, did occasionally
report feeling earthquakes without accompanying sounds:

(1) Satus Pezk, around midnight, June 25, 1981, “1
thought T might have felt a tremor, & smeall earthquake,”

(2} Summer 1982, The Saus Peak lookout heard

| undergroond sounds and later that summer was

"bounced" off her bench in the lookout station.  {Interest-
ingly, on February 1, 1981, a magnitude 3.8 eanthquake
1/10 km beneath Toppenish Ridge occurred in the
vicinity of the Mill Creek Guard Station where under-
ground sounds had been heard in the pasL)

{3) Sopelig, 10:51 p.m., September 15, 1983, Lying
awake in bed, the fire lookout felt a 15-20 second tremor,
(4) Satus Peak, 9:30 p.m., October 2, 1983, The
lockout, in bed, felt “a slight tremor, like an earthquake.”

In support of the ynderground sound/seismicity link,
it is curious that Wilking notes that on December 23,
1953, a1 3:38 p.m., “a great explosion was heard all over
south and west London,” He reporied in Flying Saucers
or the Arfack that the mysterious underground sounds
were “very noticeable both before [my italics], during
and afier Christrnas, 1953" — the period of the inexpli-
cable sonic boom,

This compares favorably with a “sonic boom"™ heard
on February 5, 1989, south and west of Greensburg in
Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania, headquarters of
Stan Gordon's investigations group.

This wasn't the first time a mysterious “sonic boom™

| struck Westmoreland County. On September 26, 1965,

“booming explosions” rocked the center of the county.

Homes were rocked from Uniontown to Irwin; dishes

rattled in cupboards, Perhaps most telling was this
coniinued on page 24
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EDITORIAL — continusd from page 3

but reliving their own births, Amazingly, some took him
seripusly,

he first harbinger of change in the wind was the

publication, in the summer of 1980, of Charles
Berlitz and William L. Moore's The Roswell Incident, a
book which, its numerous flaws notwithstanding, showed
careful readers that there is a crashed-disc case that does
not depend on friend-of-a-friend testimony, or even the
testimony of a single direct “witness." Even those deeply
skeptical of such claims were forced to acknowledge —
and did 50 in greater and greater numbers as Moore and
Friedman's post-book (and post-Berlitz) research uncov-
ered more and mare informants, all telling stories that
maiched other participants” accounts — that crashed dizscs
no longer looked like an absurd impossibility, In 1988
CUFOS launched an independent investigation which has

count), clarified significant aspects of the epizode, and
answered many of the remaining questions, The new
investigation would also lay to rest lingering suspicions
(for which no evidence had ever surfaced) that the device
that crashed or the occupants who died in the incident
were of conventional origin, Meanwhile, as the decade
closed, startling revelations have come out of Nevada
and, interestingly enough, from a mainstream media
source — revelations that, if true (and a great deal more
investigation will have 1o be conducted before we know
for certain one way or ancither), tell us something of what
happened after the Roswell incident. (I do not refer here,
I suppose I must add, to certain tales, known o all of us,
told by and for idiots. Anyone who tells or believes these
tales forfeits any claim to being taken sericusly by any of
the rest of us.)

To all appearances there is a cover-up, and it
involves some very interesting things indeed. Perhaps
Donald Keyhoe and NICAP were half-night: correct about
the official secrecy, wrong about what the big secrets
were.

Meanwhile we now know that what for years has
begn a subject of romors and paranoia is tree: agents of
the 1.5, government are spreading disinformation
through the UFD community. No one disputes that
anymaore, though some of those quick to criticize Bill
Moore for what he has observed and reported of that
process seem not to onderstand the significance of these
developments, which we now know began not, as an
American ufologist recently wrote in a British UFO
magazine, with the Bennewitz affair (of 1950-84) but in
1972, with Robert Emenegger, and continues into the
present and involves a number of individuals. Sucha
considerable (and expensive) effont makes no sense, of
course, if we hold 1o the belief that no UFD secrets nesd
10 be protected from prying ulologists and journalists.

The importance to ufology of Budd Hopkins'
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uncovered yet more informants (over 160 in all, at current |

Missing Time (1981) and fnrruders (1987) can hardly be
overstated. From them, and from the additional research
by others they have inspired, we know vasty more aboat
the ahduction phenomenon than we did at the beginning
of the decade, Thomas E. Bullard’s pioneering work has
demonstrated, bevond any conceivable reflutation, that
abductions are 4 phenomenon, 85 opposed o assoried
fantasies randomly clumped around a general concept of
alien kidnapping, and that its pattems arc robust over
time and zpace regardless of whether the relevant
incidents are consciously or hypnotically recalled or who
the investigators are. Meanwhile growing numbers of
traimed medical, mental-health and other scientific
professionals have entered the investigation (i.e., be-
stirred themselves [rom the armchair, the raditional
sancivary from which sneers and "explanations™ have
been hurled) and found themselves oz puzzled as the
ufologists who went before them. Today no knowledge-
ahble observer denies that ahductions constitute an
extraordinary phenomenon and a desp enipma,

Az all this was poing on, ufology became increas-

ingly professionalized. True, instances of incompetence,
| credulity, stupidity, paranoia, conspiracy-mongering and

other human [oibles continued 1w manifest, and will do g0

_' 25 Jong &s anyone can call himsslf a “ofolopist” pel
| guoted in his local newspaper, and have himself pre-
| sented as a spokesman for all ufology in the pages of

Skeptical Inguirer, But all across the world the best UFD
organizations have worked hard to develop standards and
i dizcourage the sort of wild-eved enthusiasm that tums
every appearance of Vienus into a visit from Venusians,
Sometimes this has led, in my view, 1o excesses of quite
another kind, to the concoction of “theories™ that present
themselves as cautions and scientific but that on closs
examination prove to have little or no empirical founda-
tion. But perhaps this sort of conservative overreaction is
an ingvitahle stage in the evolution of ulological thought,
and the most articulate of its spokesmen have made us
take a new look at our data and ask if alternative interpre-
tations are possible, If in the end many of their ideas
seem (0 be mistaken, they are stll to be commended for
raising questions that had 1o be asked.

he 19805 zaw significant new additons to the UFD
literature, Besides the titles mentioned above, thess

| include several fine books by our indefatigable British
| colleague Jenny Randles, Unfortunately her books have

been largely unread on this side of the ocean, no doubt
becauze most have not been published here; bot one of
her best, Abducrion, has been released in this country as
Alien Abductions: The Mystery Solved (the publisher’s
title, not hers) and is available for $13.95 postpaid from
Inner Light Publications, Box 753, New Brunswick, New
Jersey 08903, Randles' The UFO Conspiracy (1987),
Lawrence Fawcett and Barry I. Greenwood's Clear Inient
{1984) and Timothy Good's Above Top Secrer (1988) are
valuable examinations of what the U.5. and other govern-



ments ane or are not doing ahuutl'tmrep-nm_ Although
1 have reservations about many of her ideas, and not only
about cattle mutitations, Linda Moulton Howe's An Alien
Harvegt (1989 1% a valuable account of the author’s and
others” involvement in various bizarre efforis by military
personnel either to well the “ruth™ about UFOs or o
create & whole new literary genre, science-disinformation,
Thomas E,

Bullard's two-volume UFQ Abductions: The Measure of
a Mystery (1987} is the only entirely objective study of
the phenomenon, and it is far and away the most schol-
arly. It is also one of the five finest books ever written on
a UFQ-related subject. Hilary Evans argues for the
psychosocial hypothesis in Visions, Apparitions, Alien
Visirors (1984) and Godr, Spirits, Cosmic Guardians
(1987, books that even those who are unconvinced by
the author’s conclusions will find well worth reading,
The same can be gaid of Paul Devereux's interesting
Earth Lights Revelation (1989). Richard Hall makes an
intelligent case for the extraterrestrial hypothesis in
Unirvited Guests (1988). Daniel Cohen's largely
overlooked The Grear Airship Mystery (1981) is an
essential book op a historical UFD (or pseudo-URD)
episode. Loren Gross has continued his splendid (and
privately-published) series on the early history of the
UFO mystery; the most recent title is UF (' s; A History
— J853: Jonpary-February (36,00 from Loren Gross, 690
Gable Drive, Fremont, Califomnia 54538). D, Scott Rogo
and Ann Druffel’s The Tyfunga Canyon Contacts (1980),
Philip 1. Imbrogno's Night Siege (1987, written with the
assistance of 1, Allen Hynek and Bob Prait), Richard F.
Haines® Melbouwrne Episode (1987) and Ed Conroy's
Repori on "Communion” (1989 are in-depth looks at
particular cases,

CUFQS personnel also contributed to the decade's
serious literatore, In 1981 CUFDS published UFD
Reporis Involving Vehicle fnterference by Mark Rodegh-
ier, who succesded Dr. Hynek as CUFDS' scientific
directar. George M, Eberhart, CUFQS librarian, com-
piled the iwo-volume UFOs and the Exraterresirial
Coniact Movement (1986), likely to remain the UFQ
biblipgraphy for some tme to come, Mimi Hynek edited
the CUFOS pubtication The Spectrum of UFQ Research
(1988), from a 1981 CUFOS conference. Under the able
editorzhip of Michael D, Swords, ufology again has a
refereed scientific periodical, Journal of UFO Siudies;
the one issue so far (poblished in carly 1989) contained
three of the decade’s most imporiant papers, by Bullard
ron bypnosis in abduction research], Erol A, Faruk (on
laboratory analysis of material from the Delphos, Kansas,
CEZ) and Swords himself (on ufology, astronomy and
exiraterrestrial life).

Mention should be made az well of the good efforts
of our friends at the Mutual UFO Metwark, which every
vear publishes a symposiom procesdings which no
serious student of our subject can do without, Not every
paper is a masterpiece of cogent analysis, by any means,

but the best ones are of lasting worth, as I have found as 1
have soupht reliable sources of information for my own
current research project

In writing what some readers no doubt will see as an
uncharacteristically optimistic editorial, I do not mean o
imply that the 1980s did not have their dark side, most
apparent in the sorts of lunatic ravings I have railed
against in earlier columns. But those who claim the
1980s were all gioom and doom, and there are some,
simply were not paying attiention; ufology has its share of
those who long ago stopped reading the literature or
devoting concentrated thought to the subject. Too bad.
If there cver was a time to read and heed, this is it. And
things can only get more interesting. — Jerome Clark

Roswell — continued from page &

invialved with that Might

On the other hand, nearly every detail in the July 9
article is, we contend, incorrecl It appears that the
article is the result of a cover story in the making. Itis
filled with lies that firsthand testimony has recently
gxposed. Our investigation has shown that Mac Brazel
todd the July 9 story under duress while in the company of
eflicers from the 509th Bormb Group, that he lied during
the interview, and that those officers knew he was Iving,
It was the beginning of the cover-up that lasted, almost
intact, for 30 years.

As a revealing point, we have also leamned from Eill
Brazel that his father took an cath that he would not
reveal the details of the find. Why would the Army ask
Mac Brazel to take an oath of secrecy conceming the
ordinary weather balloon he found? We suggest the
reason is that whatever he found war secrel and kad fo
remain fo. Thus the need for the cover story be gave on
July 9 to the Daily Record.

Skeptics may say (and in fact have said) that Mac
Brazel, by his own wordz, invalidates the hypothesis that
he found a flying saucer. They point o the July 9 articls
— which they have not bothered 1o research — and
accuse us of not telling the whole stery, Our investiga-
ton of the Roswell crash and itz aftermath has considered
all the available evidence, much of which we have
unearthed ourselves. We have discovered that the events
surrounding the crash are not as described in the July §
article,

As one of the skeptics says, "'l et Mac Brazel =]l
the story in his own words."”

“T am sure what I found was not any weather obser-
vation balloon,” Erazel told reporters on July 9 to end the
interview, We think that saysitall, W
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report: .. flashes and a red glow were seen in the western
sky al the time of the supposed explosions.” There were
also press reports of “two successive booms, the first
louder than the sccond.” These descriplions point to
quake acuvity and earthquake lights,

Interestingly, a stretch of the Allegheny Mountain
Toothills named Chestnut Eidge runs rom West Virginia
up through Westmoreland County in Pennsylvania, Since
1972 UFDs and Bigfool have been reported along this
ridge. And slong the ridge is 2 major faolt line.

An additdonal clue that machinelike underground
sounds may be part of subterranéan seismic activity is
Wilkins' report of the sudden, simultaneous stampede of
hundreds of sheep from folds and barms in the Chiltern
Hillz in the Chalfont area on October 25, 188%, The
stampede oocurred over a region of about 40 square
miles. Tributsch cites many examples of animal re-
sponses to nonperceplible seismicity.

Curiously, during & night in the week of Apnl 4,
1976, the caretaker of a ranch south of Toppenish Ridge
on the Yakima Indian Reservation noticed that the horses
seemed nervous, Then late in the night, the horses
panicked and stampeded through and over the corral
fence and through several other fences in the immediate
ared, Alzo, the caretaker’s horse ran over a mile before
stopping in a corral at an abandoned sheep camp. The
ather horses were in an advanced state of fright. Itis
possible they reacted 10 seismic vibrations impercepiible
to humans,

Another possibility to consider i the ability of
human beings to “hear™ microwaves, In Paul Brodeur's
The Zapping af America (1977) the work of Allan H. Frey
is described. Frey found that huomans perceive micro-
waves at frequencies ranging from 300 to 3,000 mega-
heriz. Depending wpon the widih of the pulse and ies
repetition rate, the radio-frequency sounds were experi-
enced a5 @ buzzing, tcking, hissing or knocking, Unfor-
tunately, these perceptions do not appear analogous 1o the
“machine” characteristics of the sounds in this paper.
Earthgquakes are known, however, 10 emil eleciromag-
nétic radiation,

Research iz neaded 1o look for evidence of simults-
neity between the machinelike sounds and tremors in the
areas cited here,

Comparison to known sounds

I the machinelike underground sounds are seismi-
cally cavsed, chances are the established scientific
literature shoubd coniain references 1o them. Such
references are-10 be found in William R, Corliss" Hard-
book of Unusual Narwral Phenomena {1977) and Earth-
quakes, Tider, Unidentified Sounds and Related Phenom-
ena (1983).

A variety of sounds do precede earthquakes. These
are typically described as rattling, rushing or windlike
sounds, remblings, roaring, hizsing, thunder or explo-
sions. In some cases, witnesses (from the 19th Century)

have described the sound preceding a guake as “a
carriage passing by on a paved road.” Corliss also
includes references to low, dull boomings or detonations.
Clazzified as “waler guns” and "land guns,” these sounds
are multiple discharges occurring in succession and are
asencinted with seacoasts, mouths of rivers, lakes ar
inland water areas where, Corliss specolates, sublermancan
forces are slowly cracking and grinding rocks.

Although these descriptions compare favarably to
some sounds at Yakima, Chalfont and Pennsylvania
{rumbles and “sonic booms™), it is difficalt w well if they
have a connection 1o the machinelike underground sounds
— sounds that did not precede any percepiible earth-
quakes,

[ did find in Corliss’ books, however, at least two
reflerences to machinelike sounds (my italics):

Im 1828 a1 Seskin [Scotland?], the lesally knewn “wind In the
mounlaing” wai heard by twe observers. They described it as ®like the
nedse of @ mator rumning_ Jf war persistend, wrvarying excepl i lhe
dgree of [oadsers, and without anyihing like throbbeng, In the
afiermoan Bwes ke thin of the rush of & hesvy traim throagh o tenne]
pezar by.” The obaervers clessified the pound az & “meteornloglesl

. phenomenom.”

In the Libyan desert in 1909, observers heard a sound

| that staried about 7:30 p.m. and continued at intervals

until about B:00 pom. “There were o distinct soonds;
the one semewhat resembled the sighing of the wind in

| telegraph wires, and the other was a deep throbbing sound
| that strongly reminded me of the after reverberation of
| ‘Big Ben'... It was difficult 1o determine the direction

from which the sound came.. . Corliss wonders if the
phenomenon was cavsed by blowing sand, micToscismic
activity or clectrostatic discharges from sand dunes.

Conclusion

I have not verified in detadl the quake hiztory and
Taulting of most of the underground-sound locations
riven here, To state that tectonic strain creates distincty
craftlike UFOs, Bigfool creatures and other anomalous
manifestations, including abduction reparts, is patently
silly.

Yet the persistent repeatability and uncanny internal

| consistency of these underground reporis — emanating
| from widely disparate geographic areas, yet tied to the

common thread of facls, and in some cases quakes and
their related symptoms (booming noises, for example) —
net only indicats that the underground-sound phenome-
non is real, but raise the guestion of why UFOs and other
strange phenomena should concentrate either for brict
periods or for many years in thess earthquake-prone
areas. Purely coincidence? Are these sounds scismically
caused, or something different? Could there actually be,
of have been, underground bazes in these arcas?

I would like 1o hear from anyone who has informa-
tion about underground sounds. Please write me af 14120
S.W. 97th Place, Tigard, Oregon 97224,



report: *...flashes and a red glow were seen in the western
sky at the ume of the supposed explosions.” There were
also press reports of “two successive boorms, the first
louder than the second.” These descriptions point to
guake activity and carthquake lights,

Interestingly, & stretch of the Allegheny Mountain
foothills named Chestnut Ridge rons from West Virginia
up through Westmoreland County in Pennsylvania, Since
1972 UFOs and Bigfoot have been reported along this
ridge. And along the ridge is a major fault line.

An additional clue that machinelike underground
sounds may be part of subterranean seismic activity is
Wilkins' report of the sudden, simultancous stampede of
hundreds of sheep from folds and bams in the Chiltern
Hillz in the Chalfont area on October 25, 1889, The
stampede occurred over a region of about 40 square
miles. Tributsch cites many examples of animal re-
sponses 1o nonperceptible seismicity,

Curiously, during a night in the week of April 4,
1976, the carataker of a ranch south of Toppenish Ridge
on the Yakima Indian Reservation noticed that the horses
seemed nervops. Then late in the night, the horses
panicked and stampeded through and owver the corral
fence and through several other fences in the immediate
areq. Also, the caretaker's horse ran over a mile before
stopping in a corral at an abandoned sheep camp. The
other horses were in an advanced state of fnght. Itis
possible they reacted to seismic vibrations imperceptible
i humans,

Another possibility to consider i5 the ability of
human beings 1o “hear™ microwaves, In Paol Brodeur's
The Zapping of America (1977) the work of Allan H. Frey
is described, Frey found that humans perceive micro-
waves at frequencies ranging from 300 1o 3,000 mega-
hertz. Depending upon the width of the pulse and its
repetition rate, the radio-frequency sounds were expari-
enced as a buzzing, ticking, hissing or knocking. Unfor-
tunately, these perceptions do not appear analogous 1o the
“machine™ characteristics of the sounds in this paper.
Earthquakes are known, however, 1o emit electromag-
netic radiation,

Eesearch 15 needed to look for evidenoe of simulia-
neity between the machinelike sounds and tremors in the
areas cited here,

Comparison to known sounds

If the machinelike underground sounds are seismi-
cally cansed, chances are the establishad scientific
literature should contain references 1o them. Such
references are-to be found in William R, Corliss" Hand-
book of Unusual Natural Phenomena (1977) and Earth-
quakes, Tides, Unidentified Sounds and Related Pherom-
ena (1983},

A variety of sounds do precede earthquakes. These
are typically described as rattling, rushing or windlike
sounds, rumblings, rearing, hissing, thunder ar explo-
siong. In some cases, wiltnesses (from the 19th Centary)

| |

have described the sound preceding a quake as “a
carriage passing by on a paved road.” Corliss also
includes references to low, dull boomings or detonations,
Claszificd as “water guns” and “land guns,” these sounds
are multiple discharges occurring in succession and ane
assoctated with scacoasts, mouths of rivers, lakes or
inland water areas where, Corliss specuplates, sublerrangan
forces are slowly cracking and grinding rocks,

Although these descriptions compare favorably to
some zounds at Yakima, Chalfont and Pennsylvania
{rumbles and “sonic booms™), it is difficult to well if they
have a connection to the machinglike undergroond sounds
— sounds that did not precede any perceplible earth-
quakes,

I did Bind in Corliss" books, however, al least iwo
references 10 machinelike sounds (my italics);

In 1928 wn Sesicln [Seland?], the locally knoes “wind in the
maamisins™ was heard by e ohservers, They described i1 as "[5ke the
noise of & moter rumaing.. /1 was perristent, Envarping excapt in the
degred of lowdners, and witsool anything like throbbing, In the
eftemoon it was like that of the rosh of & heavy train through & lunned
niss by." The observers chiesified the poand as & "meteorlogicn
phemomenss.”

In the Libyan degert in 1909, observers heard a sound
that started about 7:30 pom. and continued at intervals
until about §:00 p.m. “There were two distinct sounds;
the one somewhat resembled the sighing of the wind in
telegraph wiras, and the other was a deep throbbing sound
that stromgly reminded me of the after reverberation of
‘Big Ben’.... Tt was difficult to determine the direction
from which the sound came....” Corliss wonders i the
phenomenon was caused by blowing sand, microseismic
activity or electrostatic discharpges from sand dunes,

Conclusion

I have not verified in detail the quake history and
faulting of most of the underground-sound locations
given here, To state that tectonic sirain creates distinetly
craftlike UFOs, Bigfoot creatures and other anomalous
manifestations, including abduction reports, 15 patently
gilly.

Yet the persistent repeatability and uncanny internal
consistency of these underground reports — emanating
from widely disparate peopraphic areas, yvet tied to the
commaon thread of fauliz, and in some cases quakes and
their related symptoms (booming noises, for example) —
not only indicate that the underground-zound phenome-
non 18 real, but raise the gueston of why UFDs and other
strange phenomenz should concentrate either for brief
periods or for many years in these eanthguake-prone
arcas. Purcly coincidence? Are these sounds seismically
caused, or something different? Could there sctually be,
or have been, underground bases in these arcas?

I would like 1o hear from anyone who has informa-
tion about underground sounds. Please write me at 14120
E.W. 9Tth Place, Tigard, Orepon 97224,



menis are or are not doing about UFD reports, Although
I have regervations about many of her ideas, and not only
ghout catfle mutilations, Linda Moulton Howe's Aa Alien
Harves: (198%) 15 a valuable account of the author's and
others' involvement in various bizarre efforts by military
personnel either to tell the “truth™ about UFOs or 1o
create a whole new literary genre, scicnce-disinformation,
Thomas E.

Bullard's two-volume UFO Abductions; The Measure of
a Mystery (1987) is the only entirely objective study af
the phenomenon, and it is far and away the most schol-
arly. It is also one of the five finest books ever written on
a UFO-related subject. Hilary Evans argues for the
peychosocial hypothesis in Visions, Apparitions, Alien
Visitors (1984) and Gods, Spirits, Cozmic Guardians
(1987}, books that even those who are unconvinced by
the author's conclusions will find well worth reading.
The same can be said of Paul Devereux's interesting
Earth Lights Revelation (1989). Richard Hall makes an
intelligent case for the extraterrestrial hypothesiz in
Uninvited Guests (1988). Danicl Cohen’s largely
overlooked The Great Airchip Mystery (1981) is an
eszential book on a historical UFD {or peeado-UFD)

episode, Loren Gross has continued his splendid (and
privately-published) series on the early history of the
UFO mystery, the most recent title is UFO's: A History |
— J853; January-Febriary (56.00 from Loren Gross, 690
Gable Drive, Fremont, California 94538). D. Scott Rogo
and Ann Draffel's The Thfunga Canyen Contacts (1980,
Philip L. Imbrogno’s Might Siege (1987, written with the
assistance of J. Allen Hynek and Bob Pratt), Richard F.

Report on "Comminion” (1989) are in-depth looks at
particular cases,

CUFOS personnel also contributed 10 the decade's
seripgs Hieramre. In 1981 CUFOS published UFO
Reporis fnveiving Vehicle Interference by Mark Rodegh-
ier, who succeeded Dr, Hynek as CUFDS’ scientific
director. George M. Eberhart, CUFOS librarian, com-
piled the two-volume UF O and the Extraterresirial
Contact Movement (1986), likely 10 remain rhe UFO
biblingraphy for some time o come. Mimi Hynek edited
the CUFOS publication The Spectrum af UFQ Research
(1988), from-a 1981 CUFOS conference. Under the able
editorship of Michael D. Swords, ufology again has &
referced scientific periodical, Jowrnal of UF O Studies;
the one issue so far (published in carly 1989) contained
three of the decade’s most imporiant papers, by Bullard
(on hypnosis in abduction research), Erol A, Famuk {on
laboratory analysis of material from the Delphas, Kansas,
CEZ2) and Swords himself (on ufology, astronomy and
extraterrestrial life).

Mention should be made as well of the good efforis
of our friends a1 the Motual TFQ Network, which every
year publishes a symposiom procesdings which no
serious student of our subject can do without. Not every

paper is @ masterpiece of cogent analysis, by any means,

but the best ones are of lasting worth, as I have found as I
have sought reliable sources of information for my own
current research project.

In writing what some readers no doubt will see as an
pncharacieristically optimistic editorial, | do not mean to
imply that the 1980s did not have their dark side, most
apparent in the sorts of lunatic ravings I have railed
against in earlier columns. But those who claim the
1980x were all gloom and doom, and there are some,
simply were not paying atiention; ufology has its share of
those who long ago stopped reading the literature or
devoting concentrated thought to the subject. Too bad.
If there cver was a time (o read and heed, this is it. And
things can only get more interesting. — Jerome Clark

Roswell — centinued from page &

involved with that flight.
On the other hand, nearly every detail in the July 9
article is, we contend, incorrect. 1 appears that the

| article is the result of a cover stary in the making. Tt is
| filled with lies that firsthand 1estimony has recently

exposed. Our investigation has shown that Mac Brazel

| told the July 9 story under duress while in the company of

officers from the 509th Bomb Group, that he lied during

| the interview, and that those officers knew he was lying.
| Tt was the beginning of the cover-up that lasted, almost
Haines' Melbourne Episode (1987) and Ed Conroy's |

intact, for 30 years,

As a revealing point, we have also learned from Bill
Brazel that his father took an oath that he would not
reveal the details of the find, 'Why would the Army ack
Mzc Brazel o take an path of secrecy concemning the
ordinary weather balloon he found? We suggest the
reason 15 that whatever he found was secret and had 1o
remaln g0, Thus the nesd for the cover story he gave on
July % 1o the Daily Record.

Skeptics may say (and in fact have said) that Mac
Brazel, by his own wards, invalidates the hypothesis that
he found a flying saucer. They point to the July 9 article

. — which they have not bothered 1o research — and

accuse us of not telling the whole story. Our investiga-
tion of the Roswell crash and its aftermath has considercd
all the available evidence, much of which we have
unearthed curselves, We have discovered that the events
surrounding the crash are not as described in the July 9
article.

As one of the skeptics says, “T'll let Mac Braze] 1ell
the story in his own words,”

“1 am sure what I found was not any weather obser-

| vation balloon,” Brazel told reporters on July 9 1o end the

mterview, We think that savs it all. W
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UFOrensics
with the CIA

by LAERY W. BRYANT

in or lose, the marathon
legal contest between
Ground Saucer Watch, Inc.,
and the 115, Central Intelligence
Apency will leave an indelible
mark upon ufology, private and
official.

MNow at the appeals-court level,
the case hos reached another
milestone in GSW's three and a
half year effort to malee the agency
accountable for its storehouse of
released [and unreleased) UFOD
documentation—material that,
before the advent of the U.5. Free.
dom of Information Act, the
agency steadlastly kept secret.
This despite the government's
familiar refrain that UFOs are no
mote a matter of national security
than are white crows,

Not Just Another “Day
In Court”

Fittingly enough, the latest
milestone—"oral arguments" by
both sides hefore a three-judge
court in Washington, D.C.—
occurred on May 1, 1981, which for
over two decades now has been
known as “Law Day.” IfGSW wins
the appeal, maybe the observance
should be changed to “Freedom of
Information Day.”

Anyhow, patriotism aside,
what's the upshot of all this latest
activity?

Simply that the frail provisions

of the act have had a hard time
facing the onslaught of apgency
counsel and the long line of Justice
Department lawyers leading the
way. The oltimate question, per
haps, is whether the taxpayer is
getting his money’s worth from the
proceedings.

If ¥ou accept the plaintiffa posi-
tion, the taxpayer is being short-
changed. If you accept the
defendant's, he's right on the
money. And the taxpayer may well
ask how this case will affeet the
other, related litigation of Citizens
Againgt UFQ Secrecy wva. US.
National Security Ageney, which
also is on appeal from a district
court ruling in favor of the
defendant.

Though the two cases are
related—some of the documenta-
tioh on file at CIA headquarters
originated from NSA activity—the
issues are different.

The Credibility of
a “New" Search

The CIA issue concerns the
plaintiff"s contention that the
court-ordered de novo records
search never was carried out—
despite the agency's claim to the
contrary. Indeed, says GEW coun-
gol Peter A. Gersten, the whole
pattern of CIA information-release
policy before the amended FOI Act
was one of immaculate deception.
Examine the package of 900 pages
thus far released, says Gersten,
and you cannot escape the conclu-
sion that the agency always has
acted in bad faith regarding its
maintenance and disposition of
UFO-related records. How can

“anyone accept at face value the

CIA affidavit that its alleged de
novo search was fit and proper?
Even to the most casual observer of

Is the Holy Bible Holy?
Is It the Word of God?
MYTHS AND
DECEPTIONMS OF THE BIBLE
by Lioyd M. Graham
484 popes, Hardback,

Graham writes that the Bible is
not "'the word of God, " but a~steal
from pagan sources. Its Eden was

taken from the RBabylonian
account. The Flood and Deluge are

eches of some four hundred similar
stories. These are but a few of the
myths discussed. Mr. Graham says
il is time the scriptural tyranny was
broken, so that we may devote
ourselves to Man and Civilization,
rather than saving our souls—which
he believes were never lost in the
first place.

Order Now

Agors Books, 10 E Street, 5.E.,
Washington, D.C, 20003

the record, the documents show a
consistent policy of UFD “news
management.”

At this stage of litigation, the
plaintiffs best hope 15 for someone
connected with the agency to pro-
duce a hard-core information
leak—one that will make the agen-
cy's _protestations of nonsecrecy
seem~as credible as the professed
innocence of certain Watnrgam
break-in principles,

If Gersten's challenge to the CIA
de novo sedrvch affidavit 18 upheld
by the appeals court, the UFO
research community can expect a
windfall of at least 200 additional
UFQ-related documents. Their
“release potential” is now ipnored
by the agency. Butifthe judges can
hear, see and contemplate no evil
on the part of the agency in this
matter, GSW's last hope is to
appeal to the 1.5, Supreme Court.
Unless Geraten gets a windfall of
monetary support from such
groups as the Fund for UFO
Research, Inc., the likelihood of
that final appeal is slim.

By the Time This
Reaches Print...

The appeals court ean take as lit-
tle as two months or as long as a
year to reach its decision. What-
ever it decides will make ufological
history, and the documentation
thus far generated by this suit—
both the package of released CIA
documents and the stack of litiga-
tion documents—will have untold
value to scholars choosing to put
into perspective the “"UFQ Paper
Chase." o

LARRY W, BRYANT is adminiairaior of
L pacllie Gilerest grocp Citczens Apninal
UFD Seerocy (CAUR)L PEL Hox 4743,
Aelington, - Virrinia 22904, 0

On August I7, 1981, GSWs
appeal for the further release of
CIA documents was denied. Aitor-
ney Gersten does not plan to
e,

The court will hear oral arpu-
ments in the NSA-CAUS suit on
October 28, The hearing is sche-
duled for 2 pom. in'the U8, Courtof
Appeals, istrict of Columbia.
Interested spectators should plan

lo altend—ufologiste need moral _

support, too,—Ed,
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Is Ufology
A Twentieth
Century
Witchhunt?

by ROBERT SHEAFFER
UFOs ARE NOT the only

supposedly mysterious pheno-
mena to be investigated “seientifi-
cally,” Nor is our own twentisth
century the only age which has
seen supposedly secientific investi-

gations of such phenomena. More

than three hundred years ago,
some of the finest seientific and
philosophical minds of the late
seventeenth century devoted their
talents to a “selentific” investiga-
tion of the witcheraft phenomenon.
They investigated only those
reports of bewitchings and demon
sightings that came from =zober,
credible persons, whose testimony
would be accepted in any court of
law. What they found was a small
but significant residue of human
beings changing into animals and
of women giving birth to serpents
and toads.

One of the leading champions of
the "new science” of Galileo and
Descartes was Joseph Glanvill
(1636-1680), 2a member of the Royal
Society of London (the most presti-
gious seientific group of its day)
and a pioneer philosopher of
science. Glanvill wrote atlengthon
the Vanity of Dogmatizing, He
debunked the superstitions of the
fomgilized Aristotelian scheolmen
and of astrologers. Like many in
our present age, Glanvill expected
that the science of the future would
discover many things not yet
understond. One of the infant
seiences which interested Glanvill
the most wag witcheraft, which he
investigated using the same tech-
nigues as present-day ufologists.
“We have the attestation of thaou-
sanda of Eve and Ear-witnesses,
and those not of the easily-
deceivable vulgar only, but of wize
-and grave discerners; and that,

when nointerest could oblipe them
to agree together in a common
Lye,” (Glanvill wrote in his book
Saducismus Triumphatus. In
ghort, credible persons reporting
incredible things.

Glanvill was anything but
naively credulous: I allow that the
great Body of Mankind is very
credulous,” especially coneerning
claimas of witcheraft, and he
observed that “there are many
strange natural Digeages that have
odd Symptomes.” But even after
discounting all of these falze

teports of witchoraft, there still

remaing, he asserts, a hard-core
residue of incidents that cannot he
explained by any natural pheno-
menon, He instructs us that " a gin-
gle relation for an Affirmative,
gufficiently confirmed and
attested, is worth a thovsand tales
of forgery and imposture, from
whence an universal Negative can-
not be concluded.” ("It takes only
one white crow to prove that not all
crows are black™ is how ufologists
most commonly state this point.)
Glanvill chastises those who con-
sider themselves seientists to hear
it mind that “to affirm that those
evil spirits eannot do that which
we conceit impossible, is boldly to
stint the powers of Creatures,
whose natures and Faculties we
know not..matters of fact well-
proven ought mot to be denied,
becavse we cannot conceive how
they can be performed."{Ufologists
censelessly accuse the skeptics of
arguing "it ean’t be, therefore it
isn't.”")

ANOTHER member of the
Royal Seciety, Robert Bovle (1627-
1691), was one of the founding
fathers of modern chemistry, the
discoverer of the pas laws that
today bear his name. Unlike many
scientists whose names have been
asgociated with the “paranormal ™
Boyle was an intellectual of the
fiiat magnitude.

Yeu Boyle suppoarted Glanwvill's
research on witchcraft. He wrote,
"l scarcely believe one of twenty
[reports] to be true, looking wpon
the other nineteen as either falseor
suspicious,,. ] doubt not, but one eir-
cumstantial narrative, fully veri-
fied.. will be prefarred by the
curioug and the judicious, to a
hundred improbable, and slightly

e T e .~ [

July August 11

attested ones." Thus Boyle
helieved that while at least 95% of
all accounts of bewitchings and
broomstick riding had prosaic
explanations, there was a small
hard-core residue of cases for
which there was supposedly no
explanation. Perhaps eoinciden-
tally, today's ufologists often cite a
gimilar percentage for “authentic”
UF0 asightings. :

Glanvill was only econcerned
with recent instances of witch-
craft, in England or neighboring
countries. He remarked, “things
remota or long past, are either not
believed, or forgotten: whereas
these being fresh and near, and
attended with all the eireumstan-
ces of credibility, it may be
expected that they should have the
mare success upon the obstinacy of
the Unbelievers.” Most of the wit:

et

Sddirersmis gﬁ'r:m]r!'{
St 1y Nedonels

nesges to the events deseribed were
still alive at the time Glanvill was
writing. Among the evidence com-
piled by Glanvill and his asso-
ciates were the following cases:

®* Julian Cox, an aged
woman, was indicted in
Somersetshive in 1663 for
bewitching a voung maid
whoze hody languished.
Four credible witnesses, all
golid citizens, gave sworn
testimony. Witness No. 1
iname withheld to preserve
anonymity, as isoften done
in UFQ cases) swore that
while hunting he observed
Cox change from animal to
human form. Witness Mo, 2
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testified that he encoun-
tered, in Cox's residence, a
toad invulnerable to harm,
which wvanished like a
ghost. Witness No. 3 awore
that when Cox approached
his farm, his cattle went
mad, killing themselves by
ramming their heads into
trees. In UFO cases, reports
of animal reactiona to the
presence of UFOs are consi-
dered to be among the
strongest possible proofs of
the reality of the incident.
Witness No. 4 reportedly
gaw Julian Cox fly in her
chamber window. The pgirl
bewitched by Cox stabbed a
vision of her tormentor
with a knife, and the real
Ms. Cox was allegedly dis-
covered to have a fresh
wound in the same place!
“The maiden imagined that
the witch was forcing her to

swallow great pins. Soon
larpe swellinps formed
upon her body, and several
great pins were seen to pass
out of them:

In County Corke in 1661,
the servant girl Mary
Longdon was allegedly
bewiteched by Florence
Mewton. Mary reportedly
was levitated, in the
presence of several credible
witnesses, "Lo the top of the
houge laid on a hoard
betwixt two Sollar Beams,
sometimes put into a chest,
sometimes into a parcel of
Wooll, sometimes betwixt
two Feather-beds.”

When Mary tried to read
the Bible, the Good Book
was mystariously torn from
her hands with such force
that two persons couldn't

hald it.

Can You Identify...

ENLILZ-
SUKRA?-
- KHUNUSITI?

cultures are presented. Variations of ancient sky. legends are explored. An-

OUTER SPACE: Myths, Mame
Meanings, Calendars

by G. and |. Jobes

1964 515,00 479pp. Hard-
bound. A storehouse of esoteric
information about the myths and
traditions surrounding heavenly
bodies. Each zodiac symbaol,
planet, constellation, galaxy and,
major star receives thorough
treatment. Myths from diverse

cient and contemporary scientific knowledpe about each body are com-
pared. Includes a chapter on Chinese star names and calendar,
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® In Stoke Trister, Somerset,
in 1664 thirteen-year old
Elizabeth Hill was report-
edly bewitched by one Eli-
zabeth Style. Eight persons
awore affidavits that they
saw Hill rise several feet
out of her chair, and that
mysterious holes appeared
inher hands, face and neck.

* Two ‘“ghosts'" in the
County of Dewon, 1682,
apparently not enly
attempted to strangle peo-
ple with theirown neckties,
but, taking o shoestring out
of a shoe, caused it to crawl
ahbout like a worm,

GLANVILI'S st &

predict the direction of the science
of the future was sometimes right
on target, and sometimes badly
mistaken. He predicted in 1664
that science might someday enable
men to fravel to the moon. But
Glanwvill was equally econvinced
that witcheraft was a fruitful sub-
ject for scientifie scrutiny, and that
sympathetic magic—the “voodoo™
relationship between a doll and its
victim, for example—was another
infant science showing great prom-
ise. One wonders if the “future
goience” of ufology is akin to the
“future science” of sympathetic
magic and witcheraft,

Those who advoeate the “scien-
tific” study of UFOg compliment
themselves on being Galileos of a
gloriows new age, But Galileo was
able to produce repeatahle; defini-
tive observations, and even his
critics were scon forced to admit he
was right. Not so with Glanwvill. He
will be remembered among the los- -
ers of history, if indeed he is
remembered at all. It seems likely
that ufologists will be remembered
nol as Galileos, but as the Glan-
vills of the present age, if they too
are remembered at all. How many
readers knew anything at all of
Glanvill before reading this arti-
cle? And will anyone outside of a
small, specialized circle of histori-
ans recognize the names of the
leaders of the TIFD movement
three hundred vears hence? o

ROHERT BEHEAFFER (s the eathor of Tho
LIFO Verdiet (Promethons Boobs, TS50 and
o member of the Commitiee for the Scien-
Lo Siua'yaf Cladimas for the Porancrmal. He
a5 o Frontiers ol Science odoisar, C
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“T 'don’t

E

We hear the comment,;

geem to read about UFOs in the

newspapers very much anymore. T
guess there aren't ag many UFOs
ag there used to be."

It is'guite true that at present, in
thiz country, there is no "wave' of
reports or media excitement about
UFOs. There is, nonetheless, a
ateady flow of UFPD reports, both
penuinely mysterious and less so.
The Center for UFO Studies has
many current cases under investi-
gation, ag do MUFON and other

organizations throughout the

world. The difference i3 that today

these investipations generally
don’t hit the newspapers. And one
may well ask, *Why should they?"

There is little thatis“new’ about
prezent UFO reports, and news.
papers want news. Ar apectacular
as zome UFQOs are, thereisa strong

T i B s M

‘element of repetition in them. Ina

sense, UFQs are becoming some-
thing like” automobile accidents.
Hurnidreds of those occur cach day,
vet fow make the news; only if they
invalve versy prominent people (or

‘are particularly gory) do we ever

see them mentioned.

There is another factor, The pulb-
lic tires of continued mystery. They
want answers, not research
reports, and the fact is that the sim-
ple, exciting “answer" to UFOs
(visitors from outer space} has
never heen established. Instend,
while truly fantastic UFD events
conbinue to- be reported, this
answer now appears too simplistic.
It doesn't explain the many compli-
cated, highly involved aspects of
the UFO phenomenon that serious
research Iy turping up.

Thus the UFQ phenomenon is
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maore;” rather than less, of a
rezéarch problem than ever, and
research rarely makes the news.
UFOe are becoming far less promi-
nent in the news arena and more so
in the research arena.

A body of scientistz who are
intrigued by the intellectual ehal-
lenges presented by the continual
UFD reports, recognize that we
have in the UF0Q phenomenon a
myetery of substance and n
merely the result of popular exeite-
ment and imagination.

A simple answer has disap-
peared; a mysterious phenomenon
remaing: UFQ reports from respon-
sible persons from many parts of
the world eontinue to he made,

i
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Each month we shall list a few
current UFD cases under investi-
gation. In a following section-we
shall present the latest on earlier

cagea, until the investigation hag::
been carried ar far as time and

furnids permit.

A Submarine UFO

R E NZEE

-

agrecd to investigale and evaluate
this case as faor as s possible. This
cse il e followed npin the next
issue of Frontiers of Science,

TYPE: CET [DD] + [CE-I1]
DATE: May 16, 1981
TIME: 2:30 p.m. PDST

CDURATION: 1-3 minutes ()

Repaortz of UFOe arising from as

body of water are rare. It (s particu-

larly significant that the following

case was reported directly to me by

the lone witness, who happens to
be an dequaintance of many years.
He wishes to remain anonymous
for the ushal obuious reasons but
my full taping of his long disiance

call from Kamloops, British

Columbia, leaves no doubl to o s
tener thit he was genuinely hewil-
dered by his experience on
Thompson River, Fortunately, we
hatre in Kewdona, B.C,, relalively
closedo Kamloops, aninvestipatar
of long standing and expericnce,
Mre WK, Allen. He has hindly

WITNESSES: 1
PLACE: Kamloops, British
Eu]ul_'_r}hia iT]_i::-mp;u:_m_ River)

The. witness is fah:lng on &
bright, sunny afternoon in May.
There are other people on the water
at eome distance, A small boat has
just passed by when a noise *like.
wabiar .beln'g' poured into a hot fry-
ing pan” 13 heard. The water in
front of the fisherman, about 100 to
150 yarda away, Huddeni}r bubbles.
Ot of the water risés a fifteen-to
twenty-foob " “typical’ flyving
saucer. Blowly at first, it acceler-
ates as it approaches the witness at
a forty-five degree angle, passes
directly over him, and then acceler-

ates upward and, it is
Fone.”

The witness described the RO
ds identical with a dise shown in
my book The U0 Experience (the

single disc high above the trées in

J 4

The ‘mueforial in thiz eection has
heenr prepreed by fe. S Allen Hynek,
thirecior of tie Coender for RO Sie
diva, nr infeenalions! eesccialion of
sl trsts ann oilers sermausly irlen
esbid i the PO plienomeron,
Tirronerd [he codperation of the Muet
wal FEL Netieviek (8BIOTFOND snd ite
steterneh of irpestipators. ana of ol her
\'_l'.""l'.?i.':l|~e'.'-'r|'nnr|'|.'e',|._'.rr.l|rp.u farfdy i fhe
United Sigter and abroad, and
Ieroayhy Do ook of ita awn inorsdirea
farg, Hhe Conler offers the folloeing
ax itw eordribrtion (0 e reeponeible
reporfong of Uhe worldudde  DFC
plrenenenan,

The Centree maiiining a 24-hour
LFO hatline for the exelusive wae of
LS. lore rafurcoand agencios, Fed-
el Avinlion  Agency  focilities,
Flanvieria ard other formal chan-
nefa, The Cenfer affo mainlaing a
camprterizegd dalabank (JTFROQCATL

Far ariee Grferiraitor abow? the
aciigties af the Cender, saprmukicnte
direetiy itk e, fivnel, PO, Hox
{0E, Benpatan, [ G020,
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<o the! Phﬂ,tﬂgraph section).
' “‘.}f'a__i-:Tfl}ﬂw‘i'-‘lmm* wag | gtill “inca
hocked state l3en heheard arain

s spattering down, obsten-

e ol pellet

m]:rly:-fmm the UFQ, Fortunately,

“ he collected a fair amount of the

material,
Center.
The witness is puzzied as to why
this incident was not seen and
reported by others, since it
pecurred in the vicinity of a good-

which  was aent to the

.. gized Canadian city. Shortly afler
... the incident, he spoke to a hitch-

e chiker - along the hmhwa.:.- which
P25 runs close to the rjver. The hitch-
hiker *“did not want to get

involved.”

The absence of corroborating
reports is disturbing. Did no one
else see this truly unusuval event?
Or are there reluctant wilneszes
here, part of the army of the " hewil-
dered silent”? This must be the
answer unless we invoke the
handy hallucination explanation.
However, a hallucination that
rains down material from itgelf
might be considered a bit unusual!

Tractor-Chasing
Saucer
“Togel-away from the

wtraightforward report format in
presenting cases under investiga-
tion we. guote directly. from the
original letter received from one of
two principal witnesses. A UFQ
experience, after all, iz a hunan
experience, witnessed by real
people.  with hauman emotions—
fright, terror, wonder, curiosity,
awe—and this -aspect ‘s all vioo

frequently lost in :mnacr:bfra.g t.he-
o -event “far Hw recn:r

il "I‘YPE:'CE-II-" ;

DATE; October 26, 1950

TIME: 7 p.m. CST

DURATION: 30 minutes

' WITNESSES: 2+ :
- PLACE: Greene County, Indiana

“T'a the Center for UFO Studies:
. My husband and I live on a 2565-
acre farm in Greene County,
Indiana...

“At about 6:45 p.m. Sunday as

 was getting the children into the

lights a5 1t appeeached har husband.

house and unloading the groceries
firom the car, I noticed a beautiful
bright orange star low in the
southwestern sky., [Note Inwvesti-
gation showed that this part of the
sky was covered with ‘low, purp-
lish elouds’ although the rest of the
sky was essenlially clear, Further,
ng bright planel was in that sec:
tion of the shy at the fime.| I wasin
a hurry to'get the children settled
in to watch the' Walt Disney show
at 7. Had I'not been in such a hurry
I might have realized the ‘star’
looked out'of place. It was go pratty
and I tried to keep an eve on it while
| worked in the kitchen. Then I
wenl oul to feed and. water the

chickens and stopped to stare and.

marvel at hnw pretty it was. It

erossed my mind that the Star of|
Bethlehem cnutd not ‘have haen :

more beautiful.

“Back |11$|1da at Lha Eitehen wins
dow I saw my hushand's tractor
lights...he was 4:_lr11.=m1; right up to
the house at hreakneck speed. He
burst through the door just as Walt
Disney came on thn:: % and said
that a flying saucer Wis .chasing
him. My first thought was that he

had seen tha big : starand was teas-
ing me, and sol lE‘ughed athim.He

looked atime like I was erazy. 1
quickly noticed that he was white
as a-sheet...he wag visibly shaking
as he yelled at me to leok out the
window.

Wiinoss drew the pa ihof the .JFI:I ol Lhis snapshat of Lhe Ellu The UFG E{!:‘II. into |'-"-ll:l 'l-‘-r'IlI{l

“So I looked. I saw something
coming in for a landing in the field
behind our barn. [ grabbed my coat
and ran out to the porch to watch.
The ‘star’ was gone but hovering in
the field about two hundred feet
away was some kind of aireraft.
During the several minutes it sat
there [later investigation showed

KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS

A CUFDT s onny ancimalius  derinl
plepnsenn whise appearance  wlfor

behavier cannod be pzeribed Lo
eonventional, natural e pan-made
soirees aflee sledy Ty analysis who

possess  Lechniewl |:|l.|n|i|'i4.':|.liu||.:1 Lhe
nriginil wilness{es] may Ik,
Abbrevialions  used in  Lthis seclon
fallow =iz calegories of UFG repords
cleveluguxd By D, 1o Allen Hynek:
Bl Movturnal Light, Any alistant
wreimeitlous souree  Josaal by D laasi-
naledl | seet in the night shy.
D Daylight Diise, Any shistant abyjeet
toften disc-shaped| seen under
slavlight comlitions,
BV RuocdordYisunl, UF(Os zeen
simuliemeausly by vision wed rsdore;
g weErremeal betaven the bwn s
paserliinl.
CE [ Cluse Encounter af the Firmsl
Bird. UFO sevn within five lamived
Tool,

UE [ Clese Encoanter of Lhe Secend

Riml, CE 1 thot inlluences Lhe
enviranment, including  physicnl
Leicrs.  gphysielogival  effeets  and

cleetramagnedic inlerforenees,

CE L Clise Engowntirs of Une Thicil
Kiml. UE | wr 1] sssociaunl with
ervndures LU DmoeLs" .



thatit actually hovered noiselessly
above the ground], my husband
was telling me what had happened *
to him. As he drove the tractor

, toward the house he felt the sensa-

lien that someone was watching
him and he turned in his seat to
look. An orange object in the sky
behind him suddenly dimmed into
two lights and was heading toward
him at a high rate of speed. He
pulled the throttle out all the way
and zoomed toward the house

“While he is telling me this, the
object is hovering about twenty
feet in the air and was absolutaly
motionless. When it did start to
move it went forward and upward
g0 smoothly that [ feltit could have
moved in any direction with equal
ease., The object passed about
twenty feet above the barn, mak-
ing no sound,

“When it was over the barn roof
the sows with baby pigsin the barn
began wild grunting and knecking
about in their pens[the well-known
‘animal effect’ observed when the
UFQ is not visible to the animals].
They settled down immediately
after the object cleared the roof.

*The object is now coming very
slowly towards the house...my hus-
band has gone back into the house
to watch from the front windows
and my children are crying,
mainly hecause their parents are
g0 disturbed.

“The object can be described as
two full moons spaced about 12 feet
apart with a flashing light in back
like a lop-sided triangle. Each
white light could have been three
feet in diameter. The white light
was very intense but it didn’t light
up anything around it. [t seemed as
if the light was somehow contained
within itsell.

“The object was at tree-top level
now and passed to the right of our

security light, but this light didn’t

reflect off of the object. The lights
were all that could be seen but I got
the distinct impression that they
were connected to something huge,
The object made no sound except
for a faint whistle as it passed by
me. I mean very faint, I did look
very closely atl the white discs and
they reminded me of the facets of a
diamond.

“We didn't go public: with our
sighting but did talk to people cloge
te us. We experienced enough dis-
helief from family and friends alike

te warn us how mokt people would

react..A neighbor did come over
and tell us that he saw a lighted
object pass over our farm at ahout

July-August 16

spooked them and they got backin
the car and left.

"1 hope this information is help-
ful to you...I really felt that some-
one should know but most people
don't want to hear what they can't
understand. That's fine for them,
but .my husband and I need

“It was so close I could
have counted the lights on

where he thought our barn should
be. Another neighbor and her teen-
age daughter and friend were driv-
ing home from Bloomington and
when they were about twoenty miles
from here they saw, that same
night and about that same time, a
lighted object flying very low, They
were curious enough about it to pull
off the road to look at it. They
thought it was a low-flying plane
..but it was so strange that they
shutl off their car motor to listen to
it to help them decide just what it
was., When they realized that it

- wasn't making any sound it kind of

the bottom of the object.”

anawers, information, and maybe
a_little support from people who
have had similar sightings.”

The investigation of this case iz
proceeding well. We await informa-
tion from the additional witnesses
and measures of distances and’
Bimes invalved.

A sighting like this is no longer
news; similar reports from all ever
the world are legion. Yet because of
their failure to fit our own present
technological knowledge, they
trigger dishelief and apathy rather:
than curiosity and an eagerness to
investigate,

UFOs in a Puff of Smoke

A frequent theme that appears,
especially in lelters the Center
receives but which also is
expressed in phone investigations
and personal contacts, is the desire
to find “someone ‘fo. talk ‘fo"
particularly others who haove had
similar experiences, It seems that
the good investigator must play

TYPE: CE-I

DATE: March 1981

TIME: 440 8.m. | =
DURATION: 5 minutes
WITNESSES: 2

PLACE: Memphis, Tennesses

This case came to me in a per-
sonal letter from a woman whao dea-

cribes herself ‘as “a responsible

Person, secrétary in‘an execulive
office, and everything T am writing
18 true.” The witness was out driv-
ing at 4:30 a:m, which'she said was
most unusual for her. “Looking
back, I feel there was some reazon

the role of counsellor az well as
fact-finder.  The plaintive “and
maybe a little support from people
who heve had similar sightings"
int the letter above is echoed in the
following letter, "I would like very
much to correspond with others
who “have seen UFOs at elose

rrnge,

that I left homi@at that time of the
morning thattied in with the whale
ineident, and [ honestly hope thatI
have the chanee to see it again and
react differantly.”

She is driving from her home,
intending to stop at the loeal Pan-
cake House for coffee when she
seas three shining objects in the
slky. She is s0 engrossed in wateh-
ing the ohjects that she passes
right by the coffee house, Suddenly
the three ohjects disappear into
“what looked like puffs of smoke,
right before my eyes.” A minute
later one reappears “directly over
the street in front of me, so close
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that [ could Favecounted thelights -
‘on! t.h bqttum of thE th-El:t had 1.
m'!"-gtppﬂmf;keﬁx She turns into the
par}ung' 1t of ‘the naarb:.l ﬁ.d.rmrai
Benhnw Inn rushes tothedoorand) ' gl
T sumggmns H'la nlghhwahchman He :
- ¥ ﬂ]au sees the object. '

S -Iumg‘rg_ttpsay, ‘gha mltes,"that ;
R ST S T R s BT would notgo back nutatde untllI =l
Sraprs '+ JuriNESIES T haz_d been assured that it was gone.” -."1 i
arlnithe ‘meantime, the watchman LR
;J::-I::nscw&d it hover over her car and gl s
. then rise above the inn. b i
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Summen Avensr
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= i =T, ol . T o T gy Ty LS -
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e fin == - -+ -
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e -"]Elhe E:Egjltmg}rlwas relmrtnclit-:-thﬂ ]
i - - f ) ut, she writes, “It ‘was L
E‘f{-:?; I", o & 'J‘W"ﬁ'""q""__%“i__ 3 'ﬂh\"jﬂ;llﬂ- that the authoritiea were i
'y E L_a”"'""'” | gﬁ- T, not going to acknowledgeit. Need- |
: ' o PR3 « less to say, | stopped discussing .
E‘gé]\ B s thJ.E_ mar.lm' with: u.n:.n::-ne ]:|1.11: con.
=23 | W never forget it." Nk
x % H -{:—u e “Despite the f.:mL that the anm

- {Another World
 And now here's a report that hits
directly at the crux of the URD
mystery: Why was this UFQD not
seen by maore people, where did it
disappear to, how can a wingless
craft fly noigelessly overhead wil-
nesses al Vu free and a half heighl”
and so slowly that even had if been
o conventional aireraft other than
o helicopter & cowld nol possibly
have remained airborne? This
Peport came to the Center ouer the
poiice "holline” and iz currendly
being investigated. The (nvestigo-
Liort fras ruded out o hoax, Wos thils
UFQ, then, a technological
aohicvement completely unknown
fo us ora purely paranormal coend?
The hypothesis of a hallucinalion
poses far more questions than i
agnsiwers! But lel the witnesses

speal for themselves:

TYPE: CE-I (CE.II}

DATE: March 30, 1951
TIME: 10:11 p.m.
DURATION: 20-30 minutes
WITNESSES: 2

PLACE: Alton, Illinois

"Paulineg said,
.- bright light!" I said, *Yeah, it
~really is bright’ and just when I

'Taoook at that

said that this huge, bright, very

intense light went from extremely

bright down to very low. FPauline
gald,’ Would you look at that: they
turned their light bulb out “ and we
both were laughing, but we soon
stopped because we became very
faseinated with that light. For now
we could see it and some smaller
lights below it, just hovering there
in the snme spot. We watlched these
lights hover over the trees for a
good ten minutes or more, when all
of a sudden they started poing
straight up in the air and then
bepan coming across the tops of
the trees toward us, but very
slowly. [ couldn’ pel over how
glowly they were moving, maybe
10 mip.h.

“The [rogs had been croaking
but they stopped, ‘and the neigh-
lror's dogs were barking very excit-
edly. [ kept straining my ears to

hear some sort of ‘noise coming

from it as it kept coming straight
toward us [ couldn't' see any
wings. [Lkept pelling eloser untilic
was right over us.”

To capsulate the rather long and
detalled letter: When al its closest,
the object appeared circular, [t was
black except for the lights on the
circumference. The most unusual
thing (other than that the object

panicked. and did not "ata_‘y for the.,
“whole ahqw,‘"_ the caseis hemg fu[
-']nwcd up T

was noiseless, and had no wings
mor Laill) was a large circular open-
ing in the bottom of the black disc.
Inside the opening, they saw "this
churning motion of bright white
light with vellow and orange colors
in. it..like gases rolling around in
there” The UFQ was more oval
than rvound in shape, and was
amooth-edged.

S ARer all this slow motion, the
craft now took off rapidly, Shortly
thereafter a jet flew by, and shortly
after thal, a socond stranpe craft
was observed "coming across the
trees toward us..a good five min-
utes later, We stood there and
watched the second one pass over
our heads. The same things hap-
pened, The frogs stopped and the
dogs started barking, but there was
no sound, no fumes, or exhaustl
from the object. Pauline and I
wanted to know what each of us
had seen. I think both of us were in
another world, sort of, after secing
what we saw.”

Another world indeed, Many wit-
nesses have expressed that
thought during the coursé of our
investipations. Could it be that the
phyeical perception of the UFQD is
in part an interface of cur familiar
world with nnother world...another
dimension?




FROM

Thizs aceound of a very inforest-
ing CEII case came to us through
the courtesy of Harry Griesherg,
Coordinator of the Australian Cen-
tre for UFQ Studies, whose expe-
rienced investigators, Basterfield,
Chalder and Little, made ‘the
initial investigation. We under.
stand that the investigation has
continued, As with foretgn casesin
general, we cannot exercige condrol
orer nvesligalions as we can with
demestie UFQ events. Here is a
synopsis of the results of the inpes-
Ligalion.

TYPE: CE -I1

DATE: September 30, 1980
TIME: 1 a.m.
DURATION: 45 minutes
WITNESSES: 1
PLACE: Hosedale,
Aunstralia

Victoria,

Awakened by a very unusual
whistle, the bellowing of cattle and
the noise of a panicking horse, a
fifty-four-year old farmhand-
caretaker noted an ohject pass
between a shed and a cypress
hedge at a height of cight to ten
feet. As it passed behind the shed,
the lower part of the object was
obscured from view.

S0 0 g N 2 8 C)

From Frontiers of Science (May-
June 1981)%; DATE: March 17, 1981,
PLACE: 5t. Helens, G':reimn Des-
pite the media play this case
received at the time, nothing
further about it has come to the
attention of the Center. No one has
vouchsafed a wverifiable explana-
tion and thus, like so many other
UFO events, it passesinto the UFD
archives having reached an appar-
ent dead end. Later information, or
newer theories, may in the future
bring such cages once again to life.
From Frontiers of Science (May-
June. 1981);. DATE: December 20,

. PLACE: Huffman, Texas.
Thia case is very actively being fol-
lowed up and monitored, MUFON
investigators Schuessler and Holt
have obtained all available medi-
cal records, Progress photopraphs

FOREIGN

He soon abandoned the idea that
it:might be an aircraft in distress,
Mo wings or tatl were vigible. The
object was domed, about twenty-
five feet in diameter and fifteen-
feet high, with orange and blue
lights on its® surface and a white
top. The lights did not illuminate
the ground.

The object came to rest over an
open 10,000 gallon water tank—an
important point. On the day of the
event the tank was reported full but
on the morning after the UFQ visit
was found virtually empty. Ordi.
narily, it takes seventy-two hours
to empty the tank by nc-rmal pipe
means!

The witness dressed quickly,
mounted his Suzuki motorbike and
went to investipate. The object was
still hovering over the gpround near
the tank. Stopping to opén a gate
he noted a cow “apparently dis-
turbed and frothing at the mouth.”

The witness approached the
object to within fifty feet, but went
no further because of the intenzity

of the noise. Then something hap-.

pened which ia unusual in the
annals of ufelopgy: the noise
increased to "an awial seream”
and a black tube-like appendape

W

e

u P

are being Laken to record the recoy-
ery process of all three witnesses.
The hair loss experienced by both
women and the slow, new growth iz
being maonitored. - Consultation
with doctors concerned with the
case continues,

Whether this was a true UFQ ora
military exercise has mot vet been
determined. The presence of the
many. helicopters following the
"eraft” is A, puzzling  stumbling
block. Although the Freedom of
Information Act ig being invoked,
little information can be expected
from this channel if national secur-
ity is involved. This case will ba the
subject of a paper ta be delivered by
Mr. Schuesgler at the CUFOS con-
ferance (September 25-27, 1981 ) in
Chicogo.
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appeared around the bhase of the
object, inflated to “tremendous
size." The tube produced a mighty
bang, accompanied by a hlast of
air andheat, which nearly knocked

‘the carstaker off his bike. The

object now lifted off and gradually .
ascended under the illumination of ¥
the bike's headlights.

Suddenly, when it was some
thirty feet from where it had
hovered, and &till low to the

‘ground, it fell silent hut rained

materinl down from its underside
.material which resembled
“stones, cape weed, and cow pad-
dies.,” The witness watched,
stunned, as the craft faded away
intd the distance, When he arrived
home he noted that his wristwatch
had stopped at 1:10 a.m.

With the coming of daylight the,

‘witness returned to the site and
found-an eighteen-inch wide ring,

twenty-eight feet in diameter, of
grass that had been Nattened in a
counter-clockwise direction, The
debriz which had been seen falling
from the craft was reported strewn
along a definite path leading out of
the ring. Oddly enough, the Aus-
tralian report savs nothing about
retrieval or testing of this material;
one can hope that this important
step was taken and will herﬂpnrr.ad :

-on later.

A gecond witness to 'Lhr-.' appear
ance of the craft may have been a
truck driver whe had stopped his
vehicle nearby when the witness
was inspecling the physical evi-
denece, The driver aaid he had beon
followed "by an ohject” for some
miles on his way toward Kosedale
& few hours before. No details were
Elven.

The farmhand experienced head-
aches, vomiting and diarrhea daily
for a week following the event. He
did not seek medical advice,

The Center ‘will sesk further
!:I'Iftlrmﬂf-iﬂn ahout this case from
it Australian aszociate.

The Australian Centre for UFO
Studies hag available publications
which you may obtain by writing:

ACUFOS, P.O. Box 546
Grosford, N.S.W. 2250, Australia
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The Roswell
Investigation

New Evidence, New Conclusions

f all the controversies engen-
dered by ufology and UFOs
gver the years, one of the
moat unusual and perplexing is the
craghed saucer syndrome. Since
the late 19408, rumors have circu-
lated to the effect that one or more
flying saucers have crashlanded,
usually at a location somewhere in
the American Southwest, and that
military or intelligence units of the
government subsequently came
into possession of the wreckage
and {usually) accompanying dead
alien bodies. The inability to pro-
vide useful corroborative evidence
for any of these stories often is laid
to a concerted and well orches.
trated government cover-up.
Rumors, however, are a long way
from useful evidence, much less
proof. Although a number of these
interesting and often bizarre sto-
ries have come to light, few writers
and investigators have managed
to do more than repeat them—with
pdded tidbits here and there.
Indeed, upon competent investiga-

* fion some of these stories have

proven to he outright hoaxes or
misrepresentations. Others have
led investigators up blind alleys
because of deaths or the inability to
locate key material witnesses, and
still others have turned out to be
only unfortunate misinterpreta-
tions of actual, but far less exciting
events, Noted investipator and
author Leonard Stringfield of Cin-
cinnati, who has collected such slo-
ries for years, has compiled a listof
sgeveral score of these which appear

WL LTAM L. MOCHEE et he enwadfer, it
Chrnefes Heeliz, of The Philadlel phin bxpen-
mment et ‘Uhe Boswell Dnoident, M s Stele
Keglinn Direetar for MUEON in Arlzoia.O

by WILLIAM MOORE

to have sulficient substance to war-
ranl his continued interest. Yel
despite his excellent efforts, in the
final analysia Stringfield’s deci-
sion to witheld specific facts such
as names, placea and dates from
hiz accounts reduces his data to
mere  rumor, Other researchers
have heen even less sucoessiul,

Background:
The Roswell Incident

Qut of the myriad of stories, rum-
ora and the like, only one account
to date has borne real fruit upon
persistent investigation, That one
is the so-called “Roswell incident”
of July 2, 1947,

The story, as it has been pieced
topether, begins on the evening of
July 2. A bright, disc-shaped ohject
passed low over the city of Roswell,
New Mexico, moving toward the
northwest. At a point about
seventy-five miles northwest of the
city, over a remote area of ranch-
land, the object apparently ran
headlong into a vielent thunder
and lightning storm. Either
because it was struck by lightning,
or for other reasons unknown, the
object exploded violently, scatter-
ing a large guantity of very unus-
ual debris over the ground beneath.,
The ohject itself, however, appar-
ently stayed in the air, affected
course chanpge Lo due west, and
managed to travel another 150
miles before crashing o earth weat
of Bocorro, Mew Mexico, on the
Plains of San Augustin,

Al the debris site, which weshall
call the “ranch’™ site hereafter, the
wreckage was discovered the next
day by local ranch manager W.W.
“Maoc' Brazel, in company with his
dauphter Bessie and his son Ver-

non. Because Brazel had no tele
phone, he did not report his
discovery until several days later
when he went into Roswell. A preli-
minary investipation was under-
taken. The wreckage was
recovered by Major Jesse Marcel,
intelligence officer for the Army
Adr Force at Rogwell Field, in come-
pany with a Counter-Intelligence
Corps agent named Cavitt.

When Marecel and Cavitt
returned to Roswell, an  official
press statement was released by
bage Public Information officer Lt.
Walter Haut which began, “The
many rumors regarding the flving
disc became a reality vesterday. "
Meanwhile, Marcel was ordered to
load his debris on a B-29 and fly it
directly to Wright Field (now
Wright-Patterson) in Ohio for
examination, with anintermediate
stop at Eighth Air Force Head-
gquarters in Fort Worth, Texas.

At Fort Worth, General R.M.
Ramey took charge of the wreck-
age. He ordered Marcel and othera
who had been on the plane not Lo
talk to reporters, and issued a state-
ment in direct opposition to the
Roswell press release, saving that
everything was a regrettable mis-
understanding and that what had
been recovered was really nothing
more than the remains of a downed
weather balloon with an attached
finfoil vadar target. Meanwhile the
wrockapge was on its way to Wright
Field under armed guard. Marcel
was on his way back to Roswell,
and rancher Brazel had been
picked up and taken out of circula-
tion (he was held incommunicado
for one week) while the ranch site
was picked clean of every shred of

debris by aspecially selected squad
of men.

L e e



Background:
The Alien Bodies

The San Augustin site, which we
shall call the “plains" site, was
another matter entirely. In this
case, wreckage, apparently accom-
panied by dead alien bodies, was
discoverad on the morning of July
3 by civil engineer G.L. “Barney™
Barnett who was out on a work
assignment in the area. While look-
ing over the remaina of what was
degcribed as a badly damaged and
broken circular craft about thirty
feet in diameter with one end
amashed, he was joinad by a small
proup of archaeology students
from the University of Pennsylva-
nia. They had been excavating at
nearby Indian ruins.

Shortly thereafter, two military
men arrived in a jeep. They
aseessed the sitwation and then
told the civilians to walk off about
fifty or a hundred yards from the
crash and to sit down and await
further instructions. These Lwo
military men (a sergeant and an
enlisted man) soon were joined by
an officer, and then several offic-
ers. One of the officers interviewad
the civilians, took their names, and
gwore them to secrecy as their
“patriotic duty.” There were vague
reforences to national security and
what happoned to peopls who
talked too much about military
BRCTELS.

The site was cordoned off, the
craft was examined by a half
dozen or so hastily assembled
gcientists from a nearby military
scientific ingtallation, and then the
wreckage was loaded aboard a
large military flatbed truck, Under
eover of night, it was carted several
miles to the Santa Fe rail spur at
Magdalena, There, a cradled flat-
car and a erane car of the bype used
in engine derailments had been
brought down [rom the rail junc-
tion at YVaughn. The disc was
loaded end up on the flatcar,
covered with canvas, and taken
directly to Muroe (Edwards) Air
Force Base in California’s Mojave
Desert. The bodies had been taken
out earlier, apparently by plane.
Their destination iz unknown, but
was probably Muroc as well,

A nows leak out of Albuguerque
wag plugged by interrupting the

transmission of the progs wire. The
radio station was warned not to
broadeast the item. The Roswell
press release diverted the attention
of the local (and subsequently
national and international} news
media to Boswell at the other end of
the state. Then the Fort Worth
release convineaed the media that

all of the excitement was over a -

misidentified balloon.

The Evidence:
: Witnesses
So ends an interesting story, but
what ahout evidence? Is there any-
thing beyvond mere rumor and
heargay to indicate that such a
thing actually may have occurred?
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witiezses alone ranks the Roswell
incident as one of the most exten-
sively investigated UFO events on
record—a feat made even more
remarkable by the fact that the
alleged crash occurred thirty vears
before the investigation began.
I who obviously have not
bothered to check the facts,
and in direct contrast to other
cragh-retrieval information, virte-
ally all of the persons interviewed
in connection with the Roswell
incident to date have been named.

Of the twenty-four first-hand wit-
nesses, interviews with six were

=

-

n spite of charges by critics

The bast eve-witness evidenca of a crashad saucer comas from “Barney” Barnatl, shown here
in ks World 'War § Areiy 1.0

There iz, Fragments of the slory,
initially uncovered by Stanton
Friedman, were relayed to William
Maore over a pizza on January 11,
1977. The subsequent investiga-
tion by the author, Friedman and
Charles Berlitz (resulting in The
Roswell Incident, Grosset & Dun-
lap, 1980} and recent follow.up
research has produced—thus far—
an amazing sixty-nine interviews
with people who have been able to
provide information about theinei
dent. Of those, no less than twenty-
four wounld have to be regarded as
first-hand, key witnessos, These
witnesses were personally
involved in some way either with
the dizcovery, recovery or cover-up
of the erashed disc. The number of

recently broadeast nationally on
the NRC Radio Network.

Statements by skepties that the
events of the UFO crash hawve been
reconstructed “through a series of
gsecond-, third-, and even fourth-
hand aeccounts, quoting eyewit-
nesses who are usually nameless or
long rince dead'' (Discover
magazine, Oetober 1980), are only
technically correct. Forty-five of the
gixty-nine interviews conducted
were with less than firat-hand
people.

And such eriticisms ipnore the
exhaustive and extensive diffical-
ties encountered in tryving to locate
people and reconatruct events more
than thirty years after the fact.
Maturally some people have died—

i -
WaRE BLICE MIGHT
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twenty in thiz case, of whom thir-
teen would have been regarded as
important or key witnesses had
they been alive, Yet of these
twenty, all have been named
except three (and these of minor
importance) who have been given
peeudonyms in order to avoid diffi

'ROSWELL STATEMENT

Hers s the unquslified state-
meotl |ssued the Roawell Army
Buw public refutions offlcer:

=The many rémors regarding the
firing dire became = readlly Fes-
terday when the intelligence of-
Hew of the 509th Bomb Group of
ithe Eghth Ar Fores, Roawell
Army Alr Field was  Jortunate
encugh o gun- lan of &
dise through the co-operpilon ¢f
one af the local ranchers and the
Bherifl'a offlce of Chaves county.

“The fNylog object landed o a
mnch near Roswell somedme last |
weelh Mot having phone facilitien,
the rancher siored the dise uwntll
much Lime ne he was able Lo coniact
the Bherifls offics, who Im tum
nodifled Major Jesse A, Marcel of
the Bith Bomb Oroup Intellipence

“Action wan (mmedietely taken
and the dise was pleked up &t the
rancher's hoame, IL was lnepecied at
the Roswell Army Alr Field and

subsegquerril '
ool to higher hradquarters.” i
The original "Roswell Statemeni,”

culties of one sort or another, OF
ather "nameless” individuals
among the gixty-nine living wit-

cnesses, only three apain are either

psendonymous or not alluded to at
all except by inferonce. Only two of
these have provided information of
key importance to the investiga-
tion.

A summary of interview and per-
sonalities Lo date rewveals the
following:

pired on the ranch (Brazel) site are
considerably more corroborated
and verified at this time than those
allegedly having occurred at the
Plains of San Augustin site. Essen-
tially, if the events of the crash
gtory are broken down bit by hit,
the swvidence that emerpes is os
follows:

1. That a *big, glowing object
.[shaped like] two inverted
gaucers faced mouth to
mouth” travelled northwest
over Hoswell at about 9:50
pm. on July 2, 1947, is con-

“firmed by & press account
which appeared in the Ros-
well Daily Record for July 8,
1947, Further econfirmation
was obtained from My, Paul
Wilmot, son of Mr. ang Mrs,
Dan Wilmot (both deceaged).

2. That there was & wviolent
thunder and lightning storm
that night located northwest
of Roswell and that an unus-
ual explosion of some kind,
“differant Trom ordinary
thunder,” was associated
with it eame from both Col.
Marcel and William Brazel,
saon of rancher W.W. “Mac"
Brazel wha disecovered the
wreckage the next morning.
Both independently recall the
glder Brazel's description of
the event and his statement
about the explosion.

Several ranchers living in
the area stated that such
storms are not uncommon at
that time of the vear.

3. The events surrounding the

INTERVIEWED:

24 “Key" witnesses (2 anonymous)
45 peripheral individuals {1 anonymous)

DECEASED:

13 "Key"” witnesses (2 anonymous)
7 peripheral individuals {1 anonymous)

Investigations involving several other people not
included in the ahove statistics are in preliminary
stages at the time of this writing. At least one of
these appears to be of key importance.

The Ranch Site
Evidence

Of the two crash sites involved in
this story, the events which trans-

recovery and nature of the
debris found by Mac Brazel
are corroborated by no less
than fifteen sources, Virtually
all were interviewed inde-

pendently of one another.
Among them are Col. Marcel
and his aon Dr. Jesae Marcel,
M.I). (who was about twelve
at the time); Mac Brazel's
children William, Bessie
(Schreiber) and Paul, his
daughterin-law Shirley (Wil-
liam’s wife they were mar-
fied in 1947} his sister Lorrene
Ferpuson, and his uncle Hollis
Wilgon; Walt Whitmore, Jr.
(who was about twenty at the
time and is the son of
Whitmore, Sr. who owned the
Roswell radio station KGFL);
[urmer newspaper editor of the
Roswell [Dispateh Mr. Art
McQuiddy; and neighbors Mr,
and Mra. Floyd Proctor, My
and Mrs. Lyman Strickland
and Clint Saltmeier.

More Corroboration

The eventa concerning the “red
herving" Roswell pross release, the
Fort Worth  “weather balloon®
cover-up, the subsequent flight of
the wreckage to Wright(Patterson)
Field under security puard, and the -
fact that the wreckage had possi.
bly come from a flving saucer wers
all wvariously corroborated by
many of the individuals involved.

FFirat Lt Walter Haut, Public
Information  officer at Roswell,
confirmed that he wrote and issued
the crashed flying saucer press
telease at the personal direetion of
base commander Col. William
Blanchard. Haut said that in
respons: W a reguest 1o he |}I3I'|!'ﬁj L=
ted to see the object, he was told by
Blanchard "You don't heed to see
it...just do as vou are told.”

Mg Tor the Fort Worth press
release, Col. Blanchards former
wife, Emily Simms, said that her
husband knew the wreckape he
had sent to Fort Worth did not
belong to a balloon, “At first he
thought it might be Russian
hecause of the strange symbols on
it. Later on, he realized it wasn't
Russian either.”

IT the wreckage was really part of
a weather balloon, it certainly
received unusublly top-priovity
treatment. Brig. Gen. T.J. DuBose
(USAF, retd.), former adjntant fo
Gen, Ramey at Fort Worth, remem-
bered “orders from on high to ship
the material..directly to Wright
Field by special plane.” REamey, he



said, wae in complete charge. Eve-
ryone else just followed orders, The
weather balloon story, [DuBose
went on, was a complete fabrica-
tion designed to get the reporters
present “off his back in a hurry,
[and] put out the fire at the same
ﬂme.”

Fort Worth weather officer lrv-
ing Newton said he had been
ordered personally by Gen. Ramey
tn come over to Ramey’s office and
identify the remains of a weather
balloon. When asked whether the
men at Roswell should have been
ahle to identify balloon wreckage
on their own without having Lo
bring it to Fort Warth by special
plane, Newton replied “They cer-
tainly should have..[I was sh own |
a regular Rawin Sonde. They must
have seen hundreds of them." New.
ton then described the material as
“yery flimsy...you would have tobe
eareful not totearit.” This seemsato
indicate that what he had been
given to identify before reporters
was not what had been recovered
at the ranch site at all.

And RR. Porter, Marcel's co-
pilot on the flight from Roswell to
Fort Worth, actually said he had
been told that the material in the
cargo hold was part of a flving
saucer. He was warned " not to ask
any more questions about it." Por-
ter's account was confirmed by his
giater, Mrs. F. Proctor, who said he
had told her the story*shortly after
it happened, thirty years ago.”

Meanwhile Walt Whitmore, Jr.
confirmed that his father had been
oprdered to cease broadeasting an
account of the crash over local sta-
tion KGFL (Roswell) by none other
than the Secretary of the FCC and
by Senator Chavez of New Mexico.
Acvcording tu Whitniere, both
threatened to pull the station’'s
license if his father failed to
comply,

The broadeast did reach a few
ears before being silenced, how-
ever. British Flight Major Hughie
Green was driving through New
Mexico on his way from Los
Angeles to Philadelphia on a spe-
cial nssignment. He heard the
KGFL broadeast of the incident,
and thought that at least one other
area station was copying it. When
Groen gotto Philadelphia and tried
to find out more about the story
from press contacts there, he was

told that the gtory had been hastily
hushed up.

Jud Roberts, then manager of
the other Roswell radio station,
KSWS, said that he also had trou-
ble trving to report the story. When
he sent & reporter cut to confivm it
#the man met with a military road
block outside of town and was
turned back” He said he had
decided to limit his station’s cover-
age to the text of Haut's press state-
ment untit additional details could
be confirmed. When Ramey's

-weather balloon announcement

came out, his station had already
gone off the air for the evening. By
the next morning the matter was a

s, "hac” Brazel first dizeoearad tha crash
debris while chacking his ranch fences.

dend issue as far as he was
concarnad.

Evidence that the Air Forece did
suppress the truth about the wreck-
age is backed up by an FOLA-

ohtained copy of an FBI Telex '

pommunication between Dallas
and Cincinnati. While it gives a
somewhat distorted description of
the wreckage {supplied to the FBI
by Major E.M. Kirton, Eighth Air
Force intelligence office, on direct
orders from Ramey), it does say
that the material was being sent to
Wright Field for analysis and that
the Army Air Force was concerned
about press leaks, Curipusly, when
the former FBI agent who had
transmitted this message was con-
tacted by me in February of 1081,
he absolutely refused to allow an
Inberview.

JubeAugust. 26

“I've been living a happy life
here in retivement,” he satd, “There
have been no strange men in dark,
suits on my doorstep, no threats fo
bomb my house, andno phone calls
from Washington. [ rather enjoy if,
that way and I intend to keep it
that way. I am not interested in
speaking with you either now or in
the fulure.”” When asked if he could
merely confirm or deny facts sur-
rounding a certain document, or
would care to comment about it ifit
were shown to him (he had not.seen
the Telex document, nor was he
even aware to which document I
referred), he replied “I ,have
already told wou that 1 do not
intend to comment on that. That's
all there is to it."

Numerous newspapers hinted
that there was more to the story
than was being told. On July 9, the
Albuguerque Journal, in an other-
wise negative article, commented
that they had tried to obtain
further information from Chavesz
County Sheriff George Wilcox
(now deceased) but “the Sheriff
declined to slaborate. 'I'm working
with those fellows at the base’ he
said.” Apd the Roswell Daily
Record opined in an editorial pub-
lished on the same day that*The
Army isn't telling its secrets yel,
from all appearances when this
was written.”

The fact that Mac Brazel was
held incommunicado by the Army
Air Force al Roswell for at least n
week (from July 8 wntil at least
July 15) well after the weather bal-
lpon explanation had been
accepted by the press and the story
had blown over also peints to a
cover-up. Fxcept for a couple of
press interviews on July & when he
said only what he had been told to
sny, Brazel was not allowed to
speak to "outsiders.” Sofar, eleven
people have reported first-hand
knowledge of Brazel's experience.
All agreed that Brazel was
axtremely upset and angry at this
treatment, and felt e had been
misused fortrying todo "his patrio-
tic duty.” It waas also the concensus
that Brazel took imuch of what he
really knew about the incident
with him to hiz grave. [

“The Roswell Incident, Part I1”
continues in the next issue, with
exciting new evidence~ Ed.
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The 1881 MUFON (Mutual UFD
Metwork) conference was notable for
several reasons. First, the place it
was held: the Eresge Auditorium of

* the significant and aymbaolic bastion
of science and engineering, the
Massachusetts Institute of Tech-
nology. Not too many years ago it
would have been unthinkable to
many that MIT would host a UFQ
conference. (Not that even today this
didn't cause some wry comments and
outbursts from the MIT faculty!)
Second, the genersl high quality of

Encounter at the Pool

The UFQ phenomenon, quite apart
from any theories of origin, basically
can be defined as the world-wide flow
of UFQ reports, and the contents of
those reporte, The flow continues,
even though news coverage of such
reports is at @ low; perhaps UFOs
have become so commonplace that
they are no longer newsworthy! At
any rate, in the course of three weeks
in August the Center for UFD
Studigs had current reports from
Indiagna, Illinois, Michipan, Missi-
sgippl, New York Montana, Cali-
fornia, New Hampshire, Missour

the papers presented, Third, the
organization of the conference was
excellent. For this aspect much credit
goes to the Massachusetts MUFON
ETRUR.

The success of this conference in-
dicates that ufology may be on its
way to being considered a science. As
more and more of those concerned
with it (both adherents and severe
critics) veer away from emotional
polarization, the goal of ufology as a
acience can be approached. Too many
persons who  discuss UFOs lock

Waskington, Virginia, Connecticut
and Louisiana,  There were also
reports of sightings made a year or
more ggo which the witnesses were
reluctant to report earlier.

The contents of some of these
reports continue o baffle, oz the
following examples amply
demonstrate. Granted that many of
the original reports fall by the
wayside as arising from misiden-
tifications of ordinary ohjects, those
few that remain defy rationol ex-
planation. It is to those we now furn
ourattention.

TYPE: CE-II

DATE: July 11, 1981 {Raported to
the Center, August 17, 1981)
TIME: 10:30 p.m. CDST
DURATION: 5% minules
WITNESS: Camp Director
PLACE: Port Byron, [llinois

Investigation is still in progress,
but this case offers so much material
for imagination and speculation that
we present it ahead of schedula. The
results of further investigation will
be available in the next issue. In the
meantime, can you suggest a simple
explanation?

The story:

The Girl Scouts have left camp for
the day. It is late evening, and as the
Day Camp Supervisor, you are alone
in the Camp Headquarters which
also serve as your home, Your wife
and two older children are away.

Suddenly your dog sets up & warn-
ing barking. Intruders, no doubt,
Through the trees that screen the
camp swimming pool, you see bright
lights, Unusual, Someone slipping in
for a late night swim would hardly
turn on the pool floodlights!

You slip through the trees and into
the clearing and an unobstructed

Conginued on poge 12

themselves into emotional boxes
that would baffle Houdini. Taking
gsides emotionally rather than in-
tellectually is not one of the ideals of
science.

In my “Manifesto” paper at the
MUFON conference I called for'a pro-
fessional attitude among ufologists,
for an objective outlook toward the
gathering and analysis of their data,
and for a code of professional ethics
aswell as a means of ' professional ae-
creditization.” These matters are ac-
cepted and practiced in almost all
professions, e.g., the medical and
legal professions. (Copies of the
“Manifesto’ are available through
MUFON and through the Center for
UFO Scudies).

It will not be amizs, I hope, to
restate a few highlights from the
Manifesto,

“What is a profession? What is a
professional? In athletics a profes-
sional, & pro, is someone who gets
paid for what he does. But that isonly
one definition, and not really the rele-
vant one. Professionalism is &n at-
titude of mind, a serfous, structured
approach to & subject . . . following
the standards of the profession.

“The fact is, the besetting sin of
ufology today, if we can even use the
term ‘ufology’ at present, is that it
presents to the outside world a most
fantestic hodge-podge of unprofes-
tlonal actions, statements,
maneuvers — gnd balderdash, The
latter often derives from ‘fast-buck
ertists’ who publish an amazing
amount of well-distributed tripe.

"“We must face up to it: Ufology is
today what chemistry was when it
was alchemy, It is a grand assort-
ment of superstitions, beliefs and
wishful thinking. But eventually the
science — and the profession — of
chemistry evolved out of the
alchemical chaos,””

So, we can hope, will ufology.

/M#ﬁ
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. What the Bnmhurdmr SAW-

Here iz ::no!:hrr amgi's w:mesr
brain-teaser. In this case lel the -

witness tell his own story, as he wrote

it to me .in-care of Frootiers of
Science. He s employed ot the San- -
dia Laboratories in Mhuqunrque.
New Mexica.:. =

“r ﬂmﬁﬂyemqldﬂ.uduma
gunner-bombardier on @ Navy PEM

during, WW.IL I am quite familiar,
with all types of alreraft and hove liv- ¢
ed near airports most of my life. The

objects I saw dn not fit any cnﬂegary
of aireraft. .

TYPE: DD ;

DATE: June 10, 1981

TIME: 5:19 p.m. MDT
DURATION: § minutes.
WITNESS: Staff - Membﬂ‘ Bandia
Laboratory

" PLACE: Back yard of In-ume. alhu-
querque, New Mexico

“The zky was clear and a half-moon
was visible about fifty degrees up to
the 5.E. although sunset was not due
until about B p.m. From the
southeast appeared an object which
at first looked like a large bird with
outstretched wings flying at a very
high altitude. It moved west, slowly
and erratically, and then began to
tumble. It appeared disc-shaped,
silvery on one side and red on the
ather. I would roughly estimate the
altitude of the object to have been
Eﬁﬁtwﬂeu twenly and thirty thousand
eat,

Pool from page 11

view of the pool; the pool lights are
not on, Instead, directly above the
pool, and higher than the regular
lights, is a brilliant light, bright
enough to obscure its source. Sud-
denly, the lighte go out. You hear a
whirring noise that rises in pitch asit
apparently rises into the sky.
Gathering vour wits, you turh on
the pool lights. The water level is
down by some 3 feet — 30,000 gallons
of water are gone! You quickly tracea
possible leak, All natural meens of
egress for the water are dry. Now you
notice that the 24-hour pump is not
running. Normally, it rune constant-
ly unless manually eut off. Later you
discover that there is no chlerine in
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Skedah shows placement of tumbling abject which "“ooked ke & large bird with
outstratched wings, " and of beight light which laler sped by,

"“Now suddenly a bright light ap-
peared to the southeast and slightly
above the first object, travelling two
or three times faster than a commer-
cial airline. It was amall, bright, and
bluish and much more sharply defin-
ed and more brilliant than the light
from a jet plane's tailpipe. This light
procesded in & semi-circle between
the half moon and the first object.
The light was well within sound
range of any jet sircraft, yet no sound

the remaining water,

Reader: What iz the solution?
Hoax? Hallucination? A real event?
Investigation so far indicates a real
event. The witness did not report the
incident until a month had elapsed
and then only because he was en-
couraged by a televised account of
the Muscatine, lowa sighting{includ-
ed in this issus).

Those acqguainted with the UFO
phenomenon will readily note that
water and UFOs have more than a
passing association. There appears
to be a correlation between small
bodies of water {reservoirs, small
lakes} and the sighting of UFOs. In
addition, UFOs have been reported
lowering a tube into a body of water
and sucking up a quantity of water.

was heard except the low humming
from an air conditioner on & mobile
home to the rear of mine,

* All this lasted about five minutes,
and then I ran outside, but both ob-
jects were gone. The slow moving ob-
ject should still have been visible,”

The withess certainly appears ar-
ticulate, experienced in aerial mat-
ters and mature. Any matching
sightings from readers?

The mareral (a rkiz seetion has been
prepared by [ Jf. Allen Hynek, Dicecror
af the Cenrer for LFO Sredies, an intereo-
Lipna! eszocioiion of scieatizis and other
seripualy drrerested dn phe OFC0
phemomencn. Throwgh the cooperotion of
e Murual UFO Nepuarek (MUFON ard
ity nefwork of inpestirators, and of opfer
U0 druestiparive proups both da the
United Stotes gnd ebroad end through
rke aaorh of s awn (neesfipaiars, the
Centor affers the following as ity cortriba-
riar o dhe resporaiide reposting of che
repridieide UFO pheromeron,
| The COoneer macnfalys 0 2-hous RO
| Ratiine for the cxclusive vee of U5 faw
enjorcemend agencics. Federal Awviefion
Aperney fnclifiies, plenerora aud oikee for
| meal channels, The Center elng maintaiie 4

comprieriaed derebank LFTHEATYL
! For more information abort the dc-

tiviries af the Creder. commuricole direci
l fe itk Dr Hymek, Pk Box 1902,
| Evanstor. 1L 60204,




T'he Case of the Paralyzed
fabbits

Animals often ploy a role in UFQ
eports. They are sometimes the first
0 note that something strange is
bout, perhaps because of their
rreater sensitivity to high frequency
ounds, Horses have stampeded, cats
ind dogs acted strangely and ecattle
weome disturbed a shorl ime before
iwwmans became aware of a UFD
IFESENCE.

In this ease, (8 was rabbite. Rabbits
iave a wider range of hearing than
urmans, mostly in the higher fre-
uencies. They are extremely zen-
itive to vibration. They also
freeze™ in the presence of cerfain

vpes of danger,

YPE: CE-II

IATE: July 22, 1981

'IME: 2:10 a.m. CDST
YURATION: 5 minutes
VITNESS: Toll Bridge operator
'‘LACE: Toll Bridge, Muscatine,

awa

In the wee hours of the morning it
an be pretty lonely tending a toll
woth at the western end of a bridge
cross the Mississippi. Scarce
vonder that during the nightshift Al
Yagner has taken to feeding the wild
abhits which seurry ahout the toll
coth, Each morning at abeut three
‘clock, Al cutsup carrots and tosses
hem to his nocturnal friends.

Just past three o'clock on this par-
‘cular morning, Al noticed all six
isible rabbits lying flat, "hugging'"
1e conerate, sars back, and front and
:ar paws extended, as though
aralyvzed with fear. The last time Al
&d zeen them, the rabbits were their
sual scurrving selvea. Hurrying out
rinvestigate what the trouble might
2, he approached close to them.
hey remained immohile.

It was then that he noticed an
-ange, nearly spherical ohject rising
om behind the trees on the other
de of the river. It appeared "' several
ioons'' in diameter and was
itimated to be some thirty feet inac-
1gl size, It had a steady yvellow light
mside,”” The light went out as the
mect approached. Flying largely
zainst the wind, the ohject cleared
12 main span of the bridge by rising,
ep fashion, some ten feet above the

The lonely toll-booth where A1 Wagner and
his rabbits were starthed by a UFQ.

highest point of the bridge. It
descended when it pot to the other
side of the span.

The object made a “wheezing”
sound, similar, said Al, to the sound a
water pump makes when it poes dry.
The noise was clear but not loud even
when closest — at 115 feet above the
ground and 250 vards away from the
witness, It moved smoothly toward
the west and disappeared over a
small hilltop.

When the object had gone, the rab-
bits returned to active life. They did
not eat carrots that morning, though,

Next night, they were quite their nor- -~

mal carrot-eating selves,

Barbara Schute of Wever, lows,
hascompiled a detailed report on this
sighting, the witness and cir-
cumstances surrounding the case,
based on her on-the-spot interroga-
tions. The investigation continues.

Out of the Not-Too
Distant Past

It zeems to be a rule that some of
the best, and most bizorre UFOD
reports are made after considerabla
delay. I't generally tokes a special im-
petus to bolster up the witnesses in
the face of ridicule. Here are a fow
such instances.

TYFE: CE-II

DATE: Thanksgiving 1964
TIME: 11:00 p.m
DURATION: 57 minutes
WITNESSES: Five
PLACE: Adams, Wisconsin

“1 was listening to the radio and
heard a talk on UFOs. I was tranafix-
ed by the people celling in about their
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own experiences, [ have a true ex-
perience 1 would like to share with
oL
i "On Thanksgiving night, 1964
about 11 p.m., we were returning
from a huge meal at my grand-
parents. T was only 8 years old, sit-
ting with my two brothers and look-
ing out &t the starlit sky. T remember
that it was warm and gquiet and
beautiful like an oil painting.

“Then a huge bright light came
over the car, completely shutting off
all the electrical systems. Radio was
dead and the headlights were out.
Nothing but derkness in the car
because the light was directly above
us. It was also silent inside and out. If
we wanted to say something we
couldn't. I looked outside to the trees
but the light was so bright the trees
looked like they were transparent.

“At that point my father jumped
out of the car and looked straight up
into the light, shading his eyes with
his hands. A couple of seconds later
he was broken from his trance by my
mother, who was beside herself with
fright. She asked, “What's the mat-
ter? What is1t? he then got back into
I,he car but only looked at Mom silent-

¥

“Suddenly we all jumped when the
bright light disappeared and the

KEY TO
ABBREVIATIONS

AYDFD™ is any anomalous aerial
| phenomenon whose Bppearance
andior hehavior cannot be aseribed Lo
conventional, natural or maon-made
sources after study by analvets who
poszess technical gualificetions the
ariginal witnessies| may lack.

Mbbreviations w=od in chis section
follow six cateporios of UFD reports
develaped by De J. Allen Hynek:

ML; Mocturnal Light. Any dis-

tant anomalons sourcs (usnally il

luminated] seen in the night sky.

RV: Radar'Visual, UFOs seen

simultanepusly by vision and

radar: gond agrecment befwesn
the two is es=antial

CE Ii: Close Encounter of the

First Hind. UFQ seen within five
hundred feet.

CE II: Close Encounter of the

Second HKind, CE [ that in-

flvences the envimnment. in-

cluding phys=ical traces. physio-
logical elfects and elec-
tromagnetic interferences.

CE 1II: Close Enounters of the

Thied Kind, CE I or 11 azsociated

with creatores I UF Onavts™)
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dome light, radio and headlights
came back on. We were witnesses of
something unexplainable. . Nothing
was said about it until 1978, That is
when we were talking ahout UFQOs
and I asked Dad if he remembersd
anything about this incident. He just
nodded and walled away.

“It wasn’t until 1980 that he tald
us what he actually saw. . .only & very
bright, stationary and silent light.
He said it waa motionless like a
floodlight of gigantic proportion."

One is struck by the delay in repor-
ting, and by the pattern into which
this sighting fits. There has been case
after case of a car on an isolated road
being confronted by a brilliantly il-
luminated craft, or by the light alone
{too bright to see the craft?). Often,
the light interferes with the electrical
svstem, which returns to normal
upon its retreat. As in thiz case, the
light usually stays only a short while,
This is a far-flung pattern, and may
be a key clue to the entire UFO
mystery.

“Don’'t Log Any Entries;
Delete Any Entries in
Logs... Furﬁet What
You've Seen

TYPE: Fadar

DATE: Spring 1962

TIME: £to3am,

DUBATION: 7

WITINESS: Radar maintenance gir-
man and two radar operators,
PLACE: Classified

Because of the sensitive classifica-
tion of thiz case, I will limit this
report to excerpts from a recent letter
to me from the principal witness.

“Enjoyed seeing you on the Tom
snyder Bhow. Brought to mind an in-
cident while I was in the Air Force
that I've been unable to lay to rest.
The time was April or May 1962, Air
Defence Command, 2 to 3 a.m. I was
on the Midnight Shift.

"An Unknown track was picked up
on the height finder cut at an excess
of 85,000 feet. Attention was drawn
to it so we put the track on the
RAPPI [Random Access Planned
Position Indicator]. The track was an
unknown, — was called, They had the
same track. . My initial interpreta-
tion was ‘Interference.” Anvone
familiar with the. . Radar knows that
occasionally two radars get into

svnc' for several revolutions and
send a signal linterferencel to each
other that shows as an unknown air-
craft, However, the target will vanish
as they move out of ‘syne’. . But
there was a definite target being
tracked on the height-finder radar at
an excess of 85,000 feet,

“SAC Headquarters were advised.
The target was heading directly over

Supersonic Jet in 19197

And now to close thiz parade of
reparts out of the past let us go hack
to 1918 The witness is a retired Civil
Engineer who vividly remembers a
childhood incident. One may say that
memory over that many years is of
fittle value, vet I believe we all can
remember a few childhood incidents
which skill stand out with clariey
while many events in our mature life
have beer lost to memory.

It was on a long transAtlantic
flight that my seal companion men-

‘tioned that his father had had a

strange experience as a child whick I
might care to investipate. I did so,
both by mail and long phone inter
view, and herewith is o condensed,
Bt I trust faithful, reconstruction of
the events of the morning of June 2
1918, on a farm some 150 miles north-
west of Minneapolis. The implica-
tions of this story are monumental,

TYPE: DD

DATE: June?2, 1919

TIME: 9to 10 a.m.
DURATION: 2 or 3 minutes
WITNESS: One

PLACE: Ottartail, Minnesota

In 1919 supersonic flight was still
in the future and sonic booms were a
matter of theory, Yet this object,
perceived on a bright, clear morning,
flew et jet speeds and maneuvered in
a manner that would probably be con-
sidered suicidal by modern pilots.
Beceuse the implications of this
sighting are =zo great, T will include
deteils I might otherwise omit in a
summary. They will help the reader
decide for himself what weight
should be given to the story.

“Yes, I did have a sighting,” Mr.
Lehman wrote in answer to my first
inguiry. “I'm ashamed to say, really,
how long ago. I'm sure vou know that
the sharp eye of & youngster is quite
apt to be looking up and around,

pur station. SAC advised, “Call us
back if you're still there!' We were
printing out target speed in excess of
2500 knots. . .SAC now advised, "Not
to log any entries and to delete any
entries already made in the log, and
then to forget what we had seen. We
did as they ordered."”
Is this a bona fide coverup?

perhaps more than a grownup ...
Airplanes of course were not
unknown, for wartime biplanes oce-
sionally flew over the farm.

“I can pinpoint the timewell, as the
year 191% wag the vear after the first
World War. The month and day hap-
pened to coincide with the first
‘school day' after the end of school.
Classes had ended on a Friday, and
this sighting occurred on the follow-
ing Monday. This day would stand
out in my memory because I did not
have to be in school. . .From my
perpetusal calendar I can tell you that
the day was the second of June 1919
lindependently checked). I had pass-
ed my ninth birthday on Jan. 18,
19149,

"1 awoke at approximately 9:30
a.m., angry with myself at having
slept so long on the first day of ‘no
achool’. Theday was beautifully clear
with not a cloud in the sky, As I'm
standing there before the window
looking at the sky up over the barn,
there appears this little white dot of a
cloud [about the size of & dirme held at
arm’s length]. Strange, I thought, as
otherwise the sky was cloudless. Sud-
denly the cloud expanded to several
times its former size but still remain-
ed guite circular. Then about thirty
seconds later the window began to
rattle and the house creaked. . .

" As soon as the window quit shak-
ing I stepped fully back te view the
cloud. It seemned to be still expanding
and bending down toward the earth,
and became guite ragged. Then out of
the bottom of the regged edge there
came a black object trailing a
streamer much like a jet trail today.

"Then the object began & spiral
barrel roll [at the rate of several tight
rolls & minute]. After six or seven
rolls, the object peeled off in a
straight line, going north, the con-
trail following. Each successive roll
was degper into the atmosphere as
the object angled downward, until it
peeled off with artistic neatness to
the north. It then continued north-
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Tigh Adventure in Greece

We are indebted to Lt. Bruce
hompson, stationed in Muscat,
ultanate of Oman, for investigating

s Close Encounter a few days after

s occurrence. Pressure of travel and
ities connected with a new post in
man, however, led to the delay in

«e preparation a}’:he report. The full ~

part’ will be published in - the '
ulletin ﬂf :-i‘m C'Entsr far UFG
udies. T e
YPE: CEII” ' 1
ATE: - July 4, 1874

IME: 1:30 a.m.

URATION: Approx. Ei to 10
inutes

TTNESSES: Thres
LACE: Island of Poros, Greece

As a sort of prologue (or a Greek
wrus], it so happened that Lt
nompson, his family and a Greek-
irn Bwedish citizen, Billi, were
sending the evening at the "Plane
rees Taverna," on the beach of
aros, At a nearby table sat Bjorn, a
ranger to them. The initial meeting
mfirms 8 statement that Bjorn
-ank only one beer early in the
‘ening and later, only coffee and
ida water,

ard in a straight line, and I ran out-
de to try to follow it.”

I questioned the witness in some
atail. The disappearing object ap-
aared no larger than a black dot, the
mtrail developing a short way
:hind the dot. The witness saw no
imga.

""To show you how wall I remember
1is: When I had run out to the road
i 1 could see beyond the trees, I
wld not pick up the ebject again. I
member thinking about field
azzes and a telescope, remember
e chills that went up and down my
wck. Itan back into the house and in-

my bedroom and crawled under the
«1." A most curious thought eccur-

d to the witness as he hid: "I
ought meybe they were coming to
ke me back.™
If any reader wizshes to comment on
is sighting, I should like to hear
om them: address me at the Center
r UFC Studies, P.0), Box 1402,
vanston, 1L 60204,
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Sketch shows path of witness's encaunter with UFO as ke walked from the Flane
Trees Taverna, lepl down an embankment and sheligred in an slive grove,

Lt. Thompson and his party were
the last to leave the Teverna, save
Bjorn. He left shortly thereafter, at
about 1:15 a.m. The street lights near
the Taverna were being extinguished
as he was leaving, and the rest of his

journey along theroad to his quarters

was lit only by the stars, and & first
guarisr moomn,

Half-way home he heard & low hut
powerful *'shushing™ or buzzing
noise and soon realized that it was
coming from overhead.

Not more than twenty-five feot
above the trees on the uphill side of
the road was a large, black, dise-
shaped object, blocking out the light
of the starg! It was about twenty-five
feet wide. Within seconds a bright,
whitelight beamed down on him from
the center of the disc. The light
transfixed him; hefelt “electrical sen-
sations gll over his body™ and &
general lightness in body weight.

As suddenly as the lght had come
on, it now blinked out. Screamingand
shouting for help, Biorn leapt down
the road embankment, Glancing
back az he jumped, he saw the disc
descending and following him. The
beam of light blinked en again. It
spotlighted, but did not paralyze
him.

All this drema had not gone
unobserved. Two back-packers, who
were illegally camping among the
olive trees growing on the level
ground behind the beach, had been

ohserving the action almost from tl’bE
beginning,

Both of them ran toward Bjorn in
answer to his cries for help. The dise
was now approximately fifty to sixty
fest above Bjorn and. s the three

. people converged, the beam went out

again. The disc passed overhead and
proceeded on for enother 160 to 200
feet. From the instant the bright
light went out, four blinking red and
green lights appeared at the edge of
the dise, equally spaced around it.

Now the disc rose wvertically to
about 400 to 500 feet and then flew,
horizontally &t an even speed and
disappeared over the hill top.

They tried to rouse the caretaker of
a8 house near the beach, but were
dizmissed as “erazy tourists.” All
three then spent a restless and
agitated night under the olive trees
until dawn. They arranged to meet
that evening at “George's Cafe" on
the Poros waterfront.

At George's Cafe their rendez-
vous was joined by two friends of
Bjorn's to whom he had alresdy told
hiz story, and by Lt, Thompson, his
family and Billi. Thus the story was
told, and later investigated In detail
by Lt. Thompson, He reports that all
persons involved confirmed Bjorn's
bruises and torn clothing and also his
highly agiteted mental state{' nearly
like a nervous breakdown''l,

The hard-headed skeptic may

Cortinued on nezt page
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EVENTS

February 19

MASA Schentiflic Calloguim: “Active Galaxies:
What X-Ray Observaisons Tell Us” featluring
Richard F, Mushoizky of the Cosmic Eadia-
tkens Branch of the Leboeatory for High
Energy Astrophysics. Al Goddard Space Flight
Cenler. For information contscl the Scientific
Colloguim Comainitter Secretary, Evelyn
Petcrs, 301/344.8703.

February 21-March 11

Jaurney i the Easl” 19 days trovelling
through Indio.and Mepal with [esn Hausion
and Rabert Masters. Houston is director af
The Feandation for Mind Ressarch, Fobert

Maslers is director of research far the Foamda-
tian and author af many books on heman
polential and states of consciousness, For
mare infermation conteel: Belurn io the Earlh,
4] 5EEL-BATE.

February 26

NASA Scleniific Colloguivm: “Winds from
Cruasnrs” wilh astronomer john Scabt af Lhe
University af Arlzona, Ses February 146 lisling.

March 4

Meeting of the Morthern Chio URD Group, Al
the Parma Regienial Liteary, 5850 Ridge Foad,
Parma, OH, 7:30 p.m.

March 15-19

The Thirteenth Lunar and Planetary Science
Conlerence. Sponsored by Lbe Johnaon Space
Center and the Lunar ond Plaretary Inslitute.
Al the MASA [ohnson Spece Cenfer, Housten,
Texas. For information write: 13th LPSC,
Lunar and Flanetary Institue, 3303 MNASA
Boad 1, Houston, Texas TTH5H.

August 15 -21, 1982

Seciety for Peychical Research Centennry
Conferance. Writs for details: 5PE, | Adam
and Eve Mews, Kensinglon,

Lendon Wa B UG,
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remark at this point that the whaole
story was ocepsioned by a helicopter
searching out trespassers in the alive
grove. The evidence does not support
this. All three witnesses described a
very definite disc at essentially
treatop level, and a noise which simp-
ly does net mateh in intensity or
nature that of a helicopter at very
close range.

Some readers may note the
similarity of this sighting to that of
the three witnesses in the Schex-
naider case ses Bulletin of the Center
for UFO Studies, Spring, 1981). The
two should be studied together.

The Demise ol CSICOP?
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The Roswell Incident. Part I

New Evidence of
Crashed Saucers

Part I of this article dealt with new
evidence of a crashed extraterrestrial
object and its retrieval by the
military at Roswell New Mexico,

Fart IT discusses the evidence of
erash debris and alien bodies found at
the Plains of San Augustin site, and
sums up the case for the controversial
"Roswell Ineident.”

The San Augustin
Aliens Evidence

As for the other half of the story,
which allegedly occurred on the
Flains of San Augustin about 150
miles to the west of the ranch site, the
details are somewhat more cloudy.
Most witnesses have died or are
otherwise unavailahle,

Investigation into this part of the
Roswell Incident began initially with
information supplied to Veterans
Service officer Mr. LW, “Vern”
Maltais and his wife Mrs, Jean
Swedmark-Maltais. They heard the
story of the saucer crash and accom-
panying dead alien bodies in
February 1950 from their longtime
friend Mr, G.L. “Barnev” Barnett.
Barnett was a former civil engineer
with the U.S. Soil and Conservation
Service from Socorro, New Mexicg,

Unfortunately, Barney died in
April 1988, His wife, Ruth, died bare-
v eight months before my investigs-
tions were able to locate her where
abouts. (Both are buried in Dalhart,
Texes.) Intensive investigation,
wowever, has succesded in uneover-
ng considerable circumstantial evi-
lence to indicate that the incident
Elél.l-a.}'_j.ﬂ fact have oceurred as deserib-

That Berney Barnett was a real
rerson there can be no doubt (see The
toswell Incident for photos of him,

VILLIAM L. MOORE is the cocanther, with
“karles Berlite, of The Philadelphia -
nent end The Roswell Tncident. Fy is Sease
werfon Dhirector for MEPON in Arizona

by WILLIAM L. MOORE

his military I.D. and his grave site].
Furthermore, of the eleven peeple
contacted who had known him either
as a friend or business or professional
associate, virtually every one vofun-
tarily characterized him as one of the
most honest and reliable individuals
thev had ever known. And the fact
that the Maltais' had both known
him for a long period of time and were
his close friends since at least 1944 is
confirmed by the space devoted to
them in Barnett's personal scrap-
books {now in the possession of his
niece, Mrs, Alice Knight). Photo
graphs in Barneit's scrapbooks and
also in the possession of Mr. and Mrs.
Maltais further confirm that the
Maltais' did indeed visit Barnett's
home in Socorro in February 1950,
and that the visit lasted several days.

Note: Concerning Barney’s scrap-.

book: Although Barnev had been in
the habit of pasting numerous elip-
pings and articles on a wide variety of
subjects in his books, there was not a
single UF(hrelated item ameng
them. nor was there anything else
which might indicate that he was
preoccupied or intensely interasted

in the subject.

The Malteis-Barnett story first
came to light when Vern Maltais re-
counted it rather matter-of-factly to
Stanton Friedman following a lecture
in Bemidji, Minnesotain 1978, Fried-
man relayed the information to me
the next day. In interviews, Mr. and
Mrs. Maltais confirmed the story.

Mrs. Maltaiz also recalled that
Barney had once said that the only
other person to whom he had told his
story was someone connected with
his work. This person had discourag-
ed him from confiding in anyone else
because he “had given him the horse
laugh."

Both of the Maltais were reinter-
viewed together more than six
months after the initial interviews.
The time interval was chossn on the
theory that If indeed the Maltais had
fabricated the tale, it would Be unlike-
ly that they would be able to repeat it
in quite the same way a second time.
There was no contact between either
of the Maltais' and myself from
February to August, although exten-
sive investigations into the story
from other angles were pursued. In
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spite of the precautions, however, no
gignificant discrepancies, embellish-
ments or omissions were noted with
respect to the initial story.
While the investigation learned
_early on that the Barnetts had had no
children, several sources said that
the couple had helped raise & niece,
We finally located Mrs. Alice Knight,
Ruth Barnett's niece. Her father had
died when Mrs, Knight was eighteen
months old and the Barnettz had
been second parents to her, Toward
the end of & personal interview in
Mrs. Enight's home in July 19793, the
following exchange took place:

MOORE: Mrs. Knight, this
may sound like an unusual ques-
tion, but I wonder, did yoiir un-
cle ever mention flying saucers
to vou or ever indicate to you
that e might have seen one?

MES. ENIGHT: Yes. .. I vague
lv recall him having said
something about one having
landed over where he was living

''''''''

Bill grazel, picfured abaove, (2 the gon of W.oW, “Mec" Brazel. Brazel's ranch was the

in Socorro, and that there were
some kind of strange creatures
associated with it, but T really
can't recall any details. That
was a long time ago. . .more than
twenty, maybe even thirty
years ago. 1 was guite 8 hit
younger at the time and not
really interested in such things
anyway. I'm not even certain
right now if he said he had seen
it, or only if he said someone else
had told him about it. It seems
tome, though, that he did say he
had definitely seen it. . .

MOORE: Mra. Enight, I
wonder; there was a celebrated
UFD landing case over at
Socorro in 1963 {sic. It was ac-
tually 1964, — W.L.M.) involy-
ing a police officer named
Famora who said he had seen an
object on the graund with two
small beings beside it. The af-
fair got & lot of news coverage at
the time. Since this also happen-
ed in Boeorro, 1% 16 possible you

1547 Socorra crash sife. Bill's collection of "oigc fragments' allegedly was

confiscalad by the Alr Foree in 15458

WL KCKINE
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might be confusing a memory of
details of this case with
something your uncle might
have said?

MRS. KNIGHT: Yes. I do seem
to remember something about
that, but Uncle Berney definite-
ly wasn't involved withit. Oh, 1
suppose it's possible I'm con-
fusing some of this, but [ don't
think so. It seems to me that the
thing Uncle Barney was talking
about was much earlier than
'63. Uncle Barney died in '69.
you know. I'm certain it was
well before '63 that he talked
ahout the flving saucer, 1 juat
can't recall when. Maybe ps far
back as 1950,

MOORE: Would there be
anyone else still living that
Barney might have told such &
story tol

MRS, KNIGHT: Oh, I doubt it,
Anvone else close enough tomy
uncle to have talked about
anything like that would be
dead by now — all but Vern and
Jean, that is. ..

MOORE: You mean you think
he might have mentioned
something like this to them?
MRS. ENIGHT: Oh, he might
have, He was pretty close to
them, you know, You'd have to
ask them about that though. I
really don't know. They were
quite a bit younger than he was,
but he liked them. . ."

Further corroboration of the
Maltais story came from Mr. J.F.
Danley, who had been Barney
Barnett's supervisor in the late
1940s. In a series of brief interviews
aver the period of nearly a year, dur-
ing the course of which bits and
pieces kept emerging, Denley allow-
ed as how Barnett had indeed confid-
ed in him about having seen & landed
saucet on the Plains, He also said
that Barney had approached him
with the storv on the evening of the
day that the incident had occurred.
Danley said that at first, he'd laugh-
ed. Omly later, headded, did herealize
that Barney was visibly upset and
clearly wanted someone to talk to.
"By thetime I realized that he wasn 't
joking." said Danley, "Barney was
reluctant to say much moreabout it."”

When asked if he could make a
gond guess as to the date of this oc
currence, Danley smid that he pro-
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bably could if he was given a chance
to think about it. At a subsequent in-
terview several months later, Danley
said that his best guess as to a date
would have to be the last couple of
weeks in June or the first week of Ju-
Iy 1947,

Danley is slow to come out with in-

—

An anonymous source
pmvidedv details of an
intelligence report on
the autopsies...

formation, and may yet know more
than he is telling.

The San Augustin

Aliens Evidence

The cover-up of the San Augustin
incident began when a teletype was
cut off in mid-transmission s radin
station KOAT|Albuguergue) tried to
wire Hollywood that a saucer had
crashed, Both the teletype operator,
Mrs. Lydia Sleppy, and the former
owner of the radio station, Mr. Merle
Tucker, confirmed the stoppage.
Tucker said he had been afraid of los-
ing his license over the matter.

Reporter John McBaoyle, who had
initially phoned the story to the radio
station, was located by Stanton
Friedman. McBoyle's comment
about the affair was "I have hothing
t0 say on that subject.'

AR anonymous witness, a scientist
of sound reputation, was connected
with a number of highly classified
posi-war projects in the late 1940z,
He had been at both Wright {Patter
son) and Muroe (Edwards) during
this perid. This witness provided
significant information about how
the crashed savcer was mnitially ex-
amined by scientists and how the
decision was made to ship it to
Muroc. The information was highly
specific, and severs]l names — for-
tunately some of persons still living
— were provided along with it. An
:nvestigation is still in progress, but
further details cannot b relessed at
this time.

It was this scientist, however, who
said that the dise had been shipped
oy rail. When it was pointed out that

the nearest rail line to the supposed
crash site was more than thirty miles
away, he replied, "It wasn't then.
There was a rail spur right into
Magdalena from Socorro. Check your
mape and you will see this.” He was
correct . Infact, although the linewas
pulled up in the 1960s, the old road-
bed is still visible in spote.

Another anonymous source pro-
vided several details concerning a
highly classified intelligence report
dealing with autopsy and structural
analysis of the alien bodies and eraft.
The witnessis still actively employed
at one of the intelligence agencies. To
daté, there appears to be no way of
verifying this information.

Through a lead from a Canadian
radio station personality, a former
USAF major was located who stated
that he had once interviewed a manin
New Mexico about & erached saucer.
When asked the name of the inter-
viewer, the Major replied, “'Barney
Barnett," without hesitation, An in-
vestigation into this recently un-
covered bit of possible corroboration
is still in progress. Details will be
withheld until this investigation is
complete, or until the Major in ques-
tion has given his consent for his

_hame to be used.

With respect to the presence of
University of Pennsylvania archaec
logy students at the Plains site as
mentioned by the Maltais', only part
of this story has been verified to date.
There is no doubt that there were &
number of archaeclogical digs in pro-
gress around the San Augustin
Flains area in July 1947. University
of Pennsylvania students were cer-
tainly involved in some of these
(although to a limited extent). Unfor-
tunately investigation has as yet fail-
ed to identify any of the likely
witnesses. In this regard, however, a
number of persons were interviewed
in February 1981, Several new possi-
ble leads have developed which have
vet to be followed up,

How Was the Saucer
Transported?

Diespite recent eritics, it has
definitely been determined that it
wes possible in 1947 to move an ap-
proximately thirty-foot dise from
New Mexico to Muroe Air Base in
California. The task would have to be
accomplished essentially by rail,
There are two precedents in which
large objects (not crashed saucers|

were moved successfully by rail,

The first of these took place in
1836, when the 200-inch pyrex mirror
for the Mt. Palomar telescope was
shipped by rail from Corning, New
York to Pasadena, California, It was
shipped upright on a cradled flat car.
The mirror, which measured 1634 foat
across, was actually about 24 feet in
diameter including insulation and
packing. and weighed some 29,000
pounds. After grinding and polishing
at Cal Tech, it was trucked 160 miles
up to Palomar Mountain in a trip that
took some T4 hours,

In 1945, an enormous steel drum
measuring 25-feet long, 12 fest in
diameter, 12 inches thick, and
weighing 428,000 pounds (214 tons!)
was shipped from Barberton, Ohio
inear Akron), toe White Sands, New
Mexico in secrecy for possible use in
the Manhattan atomic bomb project.
It also was shipped via flat car,

Both of these events clearly show
that a erashed saucer could have besn
shipped; providing, of course, that its

Is there still an active
and on-going cover-up
of facts and data?

weight was not greatly in excess of
200 tons.

In Coneclusion

Diid & flying saucer actvally erash
to earth in 1947, and were wreckage
and bodies recovered in great BECTRCY
by the U.S. military? Is thers an ac-
tive and on-going cover-up of facts
and data, the ultimete release of
which would without question con-
stitute the news story of the century?

I expect that some who examine
the data in this article will still
choose to regard the evidence as in-
eonclusive. But although the case for
the reality of a crashed UFQ is as et
unproven, at the very least, the
evidence presented here is highly
suggestive. Even if the continuing
Roswell investigation manages to
uncever nothing more thanis already
kmown, we are still perhaps one step
closer to the troth about unidentified
flying saucore. O
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Witnesses to The Retrieval |

Five witnesses who actually han-

‘dled bits of wreckage and debris in-

dependently corroborated what they
had seen and touched. Based on these
interviews, the wreckage wns doserib-
ed as follows:

A, Metallic “foll" of an extremely
thin and durable nature, resem-
bling dull aluminum or lead foil in
color:

— “could not be bent or broken
. .. or even dented [permanently]
by & sixteen-pound sledge ham-
mar. Almost weightless .. like s
metal with plastic properties.”
{Col. Marcel]

— “|was] very much like lead foil
in appearance but could not be
torm or cut at all . . . extremaly
light in weight.” /W, Whitmore,
JF]

— "[was] something on the order

of tin foil except that [it] wouldn't

tear. .. You could wrinkle it and
lay it beck down and it im-
mediately . resumed its original
shape . . . quite pliable, but you
couldn't erease or bend it ke or-
dinary metal. Almost like =
plestic, but definitely meatallic in
natura, Dad once said that the
JArmy [Alr Force] had once tald
hirm it was not enything made by
ug,” [Wm. Brazel)
{Mote: There are two photos of Marcel
with some of this material. most of
which definitely does resemble
alumimim foil.)

E. A guantity of balsa wood-like
beams covered with some sort of
unusual writing or figures:

— “small beams about 38" or
L2 sguare with some sort of
hieroglyphics on  them that
nobody could decipher. They
locked something like balsa
wiood, and were about the same
witight, except that they were not
wiood at all. They were very hard,
although flexible, and would not
hurn, or even smoke | | [Ehe sym-
bols] were pink snd purple.” (Cal
Mareel) 4

= “Imprinted along the edge of
zome of the beam remnants there
were hieroglyphic-bype charae-
tare...pink and purple. .. except
I don’t think there were any
animal figures present as there
are in true Egyptian hierogly-
phice.”" (Or. Marcel)

. = “Bome of these pieces had

something like numbers and let-
tering on them, but there were no
waorda we were sble to make out.
[When thess] were held op to the
light they showed what looked
© like pastel fowers of designs . . |
[The fipures] were written out
like you would write numbers in
colurmns . bat they didn't look
like the numbers we use at all
What gave me the idea they were
rumbers . . . was the way they
were all ranged out in columns.”
{Bessie Schreiberi
— "pome wooden-like particles
+ oo lkee balsa wood in weight, but
& bit darker in color mnd much
harder ... It-was pliabbe, but
wouldn't break” ... weighed
nothing, bt you couldn't scratch
it with your fingernall, AT had
was & few  splinters’ [without
markings]... but Dad did aay cne
time that there were what he call-
ed 'figures’ on some of Ehe pieces
he found. He often referred to the
petroglvphs the ancient Indians
drew on rocks around here as
‘figures” too, and I think that's
what he meant to compare them
with."” (Wm. Brazell
iNote: The “pieces" formerly in Bill
Brazel's posseszion were confiscated
by an Air Force officer named Arm-
strong in 1948), R

C. Other debriz variously described
as:
= “A pgreat deal of unuosual
parchment-like steff, brown in
eolor and extremely strong . - .

[and] & black metallic-looking box
geveral inches square' (Cal
Marcel]

— " Some thread-like materal, It
looked like silk . . . bot was not
gilk . . . & very strong material.
[Mo] strands or fibers like silk
wonald have, This wis more like s
wire — all one piece or substance,
In fack, I suppose it could have
been & sort of wire — that
thought never occurred to me
‘before,” (Wm, Brazell

= “'n piece of something, made
out of the same metallike foil,
that looked like a pipe slesve
About four inches scross and
eqqually long, with a lange on one
end . .. [Also] what eppeared to
be pieces of a heavily waxed
papar [like parchment]”. (Heseie
Schreiher) :
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Is the Holy Bible Holy?
Is It the Word of God?

DECEPTIONNS

AND MYTHS OF THE BIBLE
by Liovd M, Grakam

484 pages, Hardback.

Graham writes that the Bible 15
notl *the word of God,”™ but borrows
from pagdn sources, [is Eden was
taken from the Babylonian
account, The Fleod and Deluge are
echos of some lour hundred similar
stories, These are bul a few of the
miyihs discuszed, Mr, Graham savs
it is time the seriplural (vranny was
broken, &0 that we may devole
aurselves to Man and Civilization,
rather than saving our souls=which
he believes were never lost in the
first plage,

Order Now
at Special Discount!...
Only $9.95 (pub. at §14.93)
Hera Books, 2201 5. Paul St.
Ballimore, MD» 21218

$upport UFO Research
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Singe it began two years agoe, the
Fund lor UFO Research has:
=gawarded & 52,500 grant 1o under-
wrile parl of the cost of litigation
against the Central Intellience Agen-
oy for the release of UFD documents

—established the 51,000 Alvin H.
Lawson Award for published
rescarch or other writing which has
contribuied most significantly 1o
public understanding of UIFOs
—awarded a 5500 granit to the
publishers of UFD Phenomeng In-
terngiiongl  Annuwal Review, first
scientific refersed UFD journal,

The Fund lor UFD Eesearch has
meny other worthwhile  projects
under consideration. However, vour
supporl is necessary if this work isto
continue, You will receive periodic

{ news of prant activily and progress of

the Fund. Donors of 2300,00 or more
will receive special discounts on
Fund-sponsored ceports and other
bepefite, All donations sre tax
deductible.

To: Fund for LUFQ Hesearch, Box 277, M.

Ramijer. MDD T0712

Y5 § want o support LFQ ressarch, Enclos-
e 15 my contribulicn of &
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EDITORIAL

Wild goose

wo and a half years ago, the MJ-12 briefing docu-

ment, allegedly written in November 1952 1o inform
President-clect Eisenhower of two UFO crashes (Roswell,
1947, and the Texas-Mexico border, 1950) and of a
supersceret project called Majestic- 12, was unleashed on
the world, by Bill Moore in California dnd Timothy Good
in England. Today the issue remains unsettled, though at
the moment the skeptics seem (0 have the upper hand,

i They argue that the signature of President Troman on
another alleged MI-12 document, which arrived on the
same roll of 35mm film that the briefing document did, is
identical 1o Truman's signature on another, undisputed,
nen-UFQ document from the same period, the implica-
tion being that a hoaxer appended a real signatre o a
bogus document.) Within a few weeks Stanton Friedman
will have submitted his report on his investigation o the
Fund for UFO Research, which gave him $16,000 with
which to conduct the inquiry,

Al that time perhaps we will be able to come to a
fully-informed judgment. And perhaps then, too, we will
have a chance 1o reflect on whether it would have been
wiser 1o spend that money on further investigation of the
Foswell incident, next o which MI-12 (for which so far
evidence barely exists) is a distinctly secondary issue, Tt
is sadly true that the MJ-12 uproar, for all the paper it has
generated, has produced not much of substance (and not a
single serious researcher, even Friedman, willing o
identify himself as a “proponent™ of the document).
Certainly the MJ-12 affair has done little to enhance any
redl understanding of how the United States government
deall with the UFQ phenomenon, including the presumed
hard evidence from (he Roswell crash,

This is not to say that the briefing paper is unworthy
of investigation; it certainly ought to have been, and 10
be, looked into, at least as time and resources permit. But
in retrospect it seems clear that Roswell, not MJ-12,
should have remained the primary focus. It is wo bad
that the issue of the cover-up was allowed o drift from
something substantive (just kow substantive will become
clear next year when [UR reporis in full on what CUFQS"
Roswell investigation has uncovered) (o a document sent
anoniymously and presumably by individuals already
implicated in what everyone now acknowledges 1o be the
spread of disinformation. It must also be noted that it
was out of the MJ-12 swamp that the lurid pulp fantasies
of John Lear, Bill Cooper and Bill English bubbled to the
surface. According to Bill Moore, himself a central
figure in the MJ-12 controversy, those tall tales about
man-eating aliens were cooked up (0 to speak) by

- &
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Jarame Clark

intclligence-agency people secking further 1o confuse an
already deluded UFD buff. Moore acknowledges that he
helped the process along. As he told an audience at this
year's MUFON conference, “"The entire story of a secret
treaty between the ULS. government and the aliens, of gx-

| changes of technology between us and the aliens, of

battles between aliens and American armed forces, and of
aliens allegedly having implanted human beings ... came
about as a resalt of this process. Tknow becanse | was in
a position 10 observe much of this process as it unfolded
and I was providing regular reports on ils effectiveness o
some of the very people who were *doing it™.,.."

It rexquires neither iImagination nor paranoda to
conclude that it was also done to Moore, who over a
period of years (and continuing even now) has been the
recipient — not the only one — of astonishing but
unverifiable tales about Extraterrestrial Biological
Entities, including live ones in government cusiody.
Moore's informants, said to be military-intelligence
people, produced (despite promises) no docomentation
for any of these claims, which had at least the advantage
of being less insaltingly illogical than Lear-Cooper-
English"s brainless scenarin. As T remarked in an earlier
editorial (fU'R, September/October 1988), these sorts of
claims “make a certain hypothetical sense,” given what
might have followed from a Roswell incident (such as an
attempt o contact the controlling mielligences behind the
UFO phenomenon to leam what their purpose is), but
“the evidence supporting them is all but nonexistent.”

One of the interesting features of the MJ-12 paper,
nod often remarked on, is that it is not in concordance
with the EBE story, As the EBE story (or at least a part
of if) goes, in 1949 one EBE survived a UFD crash and
spent the next three years at Los Alamos before expiring
i 1952, Supposedly EBE was blabbing the full story of
the ET visitation to his caplors — a detail curiously
absent from the Eisenhower bricfing document. At the
same time, as /LR readers will learn in future issues, the
bricfing paper's account of the Roswell event is essen-
lially accorate, That is, | suppose, of some small comfort
to whoever still harbors hope for the briefing paper's
authenticity. Another small source of comfort has been

continued on page 22
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Roswell, 1989

by Mark Rodeghier

mm Mark Rodeghier is president and scientific
director of CUFOS,

he Roswell UFC crash of 1947 remains one of the

readers know, something peculiar crashed on an isolated
ranch in south central New Mexico in early July 1947,
The 1.5, military went to extraordinary lengths o inves-
tigate the crash and to conceal its interest and the true
natore of the object. An initial press release, dated July
8, claimed that the Army Air Force had recovered a
flying disc, as UFOs were then called. Later that same
day, the claim was retracted and the object was said o be
a weather balloon,

Behind the scenes the government was using all
available means o quash public interest in the story. The
site was staled and reporters were nol allowed access.
Agents visited radio stations and seized notes that
reporiers had made. Military personnel ferrying the
debris from Roswell were given misleading stories about
what they were guarding. The intelligence officer (Jasse
Marcel) who first retrieved some of the debris was not
allowed to see the report on the incident

The cover-up was executed with such dispaich and
precision that the Roswell event faded quickly from
public view. Early UPQ investigators paid no atention 1o |
the incident, and Ted Bloecher, in his excellent catalog
The UFO Wave of 1947, lists the cause of the event as a
downed weather balloon,

No government secret secms safe these days,
however, and the Roswell crash is no exception. In the
late 1970z, Jesse Marcel decided to reveal his rolz in the
event, Until then most ufologists had put litte credence
in stories of “crash-retrigvals” of UFOs, with the notable
exception of Len Stringfield. Marcel’s story was so
convincing and he was such a compelling witness that
William Moore and Stanton Friedman decided that the
Roswell crash deserved further attention, The result of
their work was published in 1980 in Moore and Charles
Berlitz's book The Roswell Incident.

Since then Moore had added somewhat Lo the book’s
details in several papers he has writien on various aspects
of the Roswell cover-up. Interest among ufologists in the
event has increased greatly in the 19605, and the crash

has been discussed in the print and broadcast media with
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some frequency. This is how matiers stood in the fall of
1988, when CUFQS became involved in the investiga-
tiom,

Don Schmitt, CUPOS Director of Special Investiga-
ticns, has been meeting quietly with Friedman and Moare

| for several years, keeping tabs on their investigation of
great unzolved mysteries of ufolory, Asmaost/UR |

the MI-12 docoment and discussing aspecis of the

| Roswell event. At onc of these meetings, Schmiit
| discovered inadveriently that, contrary o everyone's

understanding, the investigation of the Roswell incident
was incomplete. Friedman revealed that many witnesses
remained 1o be interviewed in full and that new wit-
nesses, both civilian and military, could likely still be
located.

This imporiant (and startling) information came to
my atention at a fortwitous moment. A CUFOS associate
in Chicago, interested in government involvement in
UFQ investigation, had been studying the details of the
Rosgwell incident as described in the book and in Moore's
papers. He had found inconsistencies in the dmeline of

| evenls, puzzling omissions, and odd behavior on the pant

of the military that Moore did not discuss. Together we

| were unable to make much headway in resolving these
| problems, and it was clear that additional investigation

was necessary, Schmitt's report that more potential

| witnesses were available came as welcome news.

Also in the fall of 1988, Schmitt began working
closely with Kevin Eandle, whose The UFOD Casebook
would be published a year later, Randle, who is a former

| military intelligence officer, became interested in the
| Roswell event after talking with Schmitt at a debate on

UFOs held at a science-fiction convention. Initially
skeptical, Randle became convinced that something
unusual had occurred at Roswell, and he and Schimitt
have been working steadily on the reinvestigation for the
last year,

As the CUFOS investigation proceeded, two lacunae
in the prior investigations of Roswell became quickly
evident, The first was that many of the primary witnesses
had not been interviewed systematically or in depth, The
second was that the actual site of the crash had not been
studicd. Mo search had been made for possible debris
still remaining at or near the impact point.

We have been working diligently o remedy these
shoricomings. Owver the past year, Schmitt and Randle
have interviewed over 150 individuals who are in some
way connecied with the event. The story of their investi-



Figure 1. The site with a 150-yard gouge running from northwest to southeast

gation and its results will be wold at & later date, but
almost everything they learn only further confirms the
extraprdinary nature of the Eoswell event,

We have used the results of their interviews, espe-
cially those with Bill Brazel, son of the ranchhand who
first discovered the debris, to plan and execute a system-
atic study of the Roswell crash site. As far ag I am aware,
this investigation by CUFOS ig the first-ever scientific
study of any site where a UFD crashed and was then
retrieved by the military, The remainder of this article is
a preliminary, nontechnical report concerning the
activities and results of the 1989 CUFOS Roswell
expedition, conducted from September 15 to 19,

The Roswell site

The Roswell crash, though named afier the town and
military base where the debris was taken, sctually
occurmed over 80 miles to the northwest, There is no
town, of any size, within 30 miles of the site. The site is
located in Lincoln County, famous for range wars in the
late 1800s. Billy the Kid 15 buricd not far away. The
area consists of large ranches which raise mainly cattle
and sheep. In many respects the area is linle changed
from the 19408, It is difficult 1o convey just how isolated
is this portion of New Mexico, but one detail should give
you a sense of itz The current manager of the ranch got
his first phone three years ago. The extreme isolation of

the crash site in 1947 made it much easier for the military
Lo put the cover-up in place,

Most of the CUFOS team stayed in Vaughn, New
Mexico, each night. This town, the largest in the area, is
still quite small but did have a 24-hour convenience store
and gas station, a boon to the expedition. We drove 90
minutes each moming to get to the site and 90 minates
back in the evening. As befits the isolation of the site,
the roads become progressively worse as one nears the
aréa. The last 10 @ 15 miles consist of horribly raned
dirt roads and, finally, about one mile over open range
land. The motel was a welcome sight each evening, We
had considered camping near the site, and two members
of the 1eam did =0 in a small camper, but we were unabla
Lo secure the necessary equipment for everyone,

The CUPDS team had 10 members, three of whom
were scientists, two with training in archeology and the
collection of soil samples. Mimi Hynek, Allen Hynek's
widow and CUFOS board member, was a member of the
team, as were Don Schmitt and Kevin Randle. We wene
in New Mexico for five days, thres days of which we
were aclually at the site. The first day, September 15,
was spent gathering equipment, supplies, and additional
maps in Albuquerque. The last day, September 19, was
occupied with packing, reviewing our work, and making
Future plans,

The site itself is at an elevation of approximately
G000 fizet on the broad platean from which the Rocky
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Mountains rize. I is a semi-desert environmendt, and
though there are some trees nearby, the site itself has no
large vegetation. It is covered by short grasses and yucca
plants (with sharp leaves, I can personally report),
scattered irregularly about the area. There are several
types of rocks in the area, though limesione is predomi-
nant. The ground is covered extensively by rocks of all
sizes, making digging somewhat difficult, The photo on
the cover of this issue is a view of the crash site, taken
from the south, looking northwest. Figure 1 is a sketch of
the site, giving an idea of the size and local topography,
We were able o locate the site with the kind assis-
tance of Bill Brazel. As you might expect from the
description sbove, it is basically impossible to find the
site without help. There are few natural or man-made
features for orientation (the nearest ranch house is six
miles distant), and the land consists of gently-rolling hills

between 20 and 60 feet in height. Even plotting the exact |

position of the site on 1.5, Geological Survey topo-
graphic maps was tricky and not completed on the first
day. This was chiefly becanse the contour interval on the
map was too crude 1o capiure the details of wpography
visible to the eye,

As we discovered on the second day at the site, the
area is infested with rattlesnakes. Two were seen by
members of the team during our stay, so the decision not
to sleep on the ground in sleeping bags wrned out to be
wise, We asked a ranchhand about the snakes, and when
we told him we had seen two, he thought for a sscond,
and then said, “Only two?” Luckily no cattle or sheep
decided wo graze on the site during our stay (though some
came at might), but we did s2e jackrabbits, deer and elk,

The spot of initial impact is located in 2 small draw
(valley), about 600 feet wide and 800 feet long. Bill
Brazel saw the site a few days afier the soldiers had
picked up what debris they could find, and he remembers
a shallow gouge in the soil running from northwest to
southeast, about 150 yards long. He describes the gouge
as incomplete, as if the object skipped as it struck the
ground, Mo obvious evidence of the crash is now visible,
either as disturbed vegetation, as a low spot in the
ground, or as rocks strewn in some clear pattern, The
rocky nature of the soll implies that an object crashing at
a low angle of incidence might skip rather than penctrate
softer soil, consistent with Brazel's testimony,

Jesse Marcel reported finding debris scanered over
an area several hundred feet wide by over three-quarters
of a mile long. As we did an initial inspection of the site
by foot, it became evident that, as we had suspected,
three days would not be sufficient i do more than a
preliminary study, There was simply too much ground 1o
be covered systematically by 10 people.

The amount of discretionary funds available 1o
CUROS has increased in the past two years, but while
solvent, we must still watch costs closely, 'We had
thought carefully about how many people to include on
the trip and how much time o spend at the site, balancing
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cost against potential results. Our estimates that three
days would be sufficient for a first reconnaissance turned
out to be correct. 'We had decided that this first wip
would be devoted more o leaming about the site than
actually searching for debris.

Following this plan, the various team members spent
the first day photographing the area and marking the
primary site with a square grid pattern 100 feet on a side
(see Photo 1). We next walked the area systematically,
looking for any likely arcas where debris may have been
concealed by soil deposition or vegetation. Several
potentially interesting spots were marked, including one

| large yucca plant that may well have been there in 1047,

During the initial inspection, we found several
sinkholes that might have collected stray debris, Sink-
holes are caused by erosion of the underlying rock by
rainwater. They are typically circolar, from 10 to 30
yards in diameter, and about five to 10 feet in depth,
According o local sources, even during heavy rains,
standing waler does not ofien collect in the sinkholes, but
simply seeps through openings to lower levels, Water iz
precious on the high plains, and the nearest well on the
ranch had to be drilled to a depth of 700 feel. The natural
drainage patterns of the site run wward the many zink-
holes,

The team was also advised to search carefully for
any man-made debris on the site, Only one artifact was
found, a rusted, large can which had been opened with a
knife. It was sitting on the surface, and it was not
possible to estimate how long it might have lain there.
We found nothing else that would indicate that the
military had visited the site in 1947, From Brazel's
testimony, though, we do know that the military cleaned
the area thoroughly before leaving, so the lack of debris
i§ not surprising,

efore proceeding with an account of the work, 1

wanl to explain briefly why we believe that a scarch
for debris is not a futile endeavor, For two months
following the crash, Bill Brazel was on the ranch assist-
ing his father. During this perlod he found several pieces
of the object, scattered nearby but not buried, His
descriptions of what he found are consistent with those of
Jesse Marcel and Marcel's son, Jesse, Jr., who saw the
debris when his father brought it to their house in Roswell
the night of July 7. Unforunately, when the military
discovered two years later that Brazel had pieces of the
object, officers confiscated everything, But the fact that
Brazel found debris after the military left the site implies
that more debris still exisis on the site. And there is no
evidence that the military ever closely searched the site
again after July 1947,

Of course, it's one thing to deduce that there is still
debris al the site, but another matter entirely 1o find i
One complication is that the debris was reported o be
quite light. The winds in this part of New Mexico blow
strongly for much of the year, and in 42 years the



Photo 1. Setting up the measurement grid on the first day

Photo 2, Preparing to dig a test hole with screen Photo 3. Conducting trowel test of soil
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remaining debris might have scattered widely. As we
have joked privately, perthaps the Roswell expedition
should have been based in west Texas instead!

Another consideration is how deeply the debris
would have been buried in 42 years, Brazel found pieces
on top of the ground, but that was only two months after
the evenl. The military would surely have found all the
large picces (the largest piece Brazel had was only about
four inches long), and their low mass means that runoff
from a heavy rain might have moved a pisce of debris an
appreciable distance. A sipnificant amount of soil
erosion occurs because of heavy rains during thunder-
siormig, and even a piece buricd under an inch of sodl
might be uncovered,

Given these uncertainties, we proceeded as follows.
A careful inspection of the primary area (400 by 1500
feet) was made by 1eams walking in a line from one end
lo the other. We walked the site in various directions to
look for preferential scattering of sunlight from any
debris (though it is possible that dint may cover the
material now), The weather during the three days was
favorable, with sunshine, low homidity, and few clouds.
We found nothing (except the can), and roughly estimate
that this method would have located any debris over one
inch in size that lay on the surface. No one really
expected to find anything this easily.

The second day at the site was spent digging test
holes w various depths in a systematic pattern in the
primary arca near the gouge, Standard archeological
screens were used with 1/4-inch screening. (See Photo
1) The method consists of digging a hole, placing all
shovelfuls in the screen, shaking the screen o remove the
dirt, and examining the remaining contents. Anything
above 1/4-inch in size will still be in the screen. A large
number of rocks remained after sifting out the dirt at
every spod, complicating examination of the screen’s
contents. Abouot 200 test holes were dug in all. The
process is inherently time-consuming, made even more so
by the wough grasses and rocks.

We also dug in the spots we had marked the first day,
including around the large yucea plant. Some of the
digging was done with the shovel st method, without
the use of a screen. Here, one person digs up a shovel or
two of soil and spreads it cut, and then a szcond person
uses a troweel (0 separate the soil and look for anything
unusual, Photo 3 depicts the work in progress.

A test hole to a depth of 46.5 centimeters was dog
and the soil face sketched in detail. The soil at the site
consists of brown, sandy loam. The amount of organic
matter is low. Chalk deposits are evident at lower depths.
Later in the day, another team member and I took shovels
in hand and explored a sinkhole some distance from the
point of initial impact. Here the soil was ¢learly affected
by runoff during rainstorms, with more fine soil on the
surface,

We had decided not to bring any sophisticared
equipment into the field for this trip, though we did have
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a theodolite for survey work and a metal detector. A
search with the metal detector discovered nothing of
interest, but as the composition of the debris is unknown,
the lack of resolts is not conclusive evidence of absence.

he last day at the site was spent with final measure-

menis, & drive around the boundaries of the site,
cleanup, and, most important, a close scrutiny of the
location where Bill Brazel found the debris after the
military had lefi. That spot, not far from the intial impact
poin, is relatively small in extent, so I and another team
member were able to closely search for debris, 'We raked
the area, dug around small clumps of grass, tumned over
some shovelfuls of dirt, and looked under large rocks
{after first checking for ratilesnakes). Nothing unusual
was dizscovered,

To facilitate futore work, we marked the location of
the prime reference point and the haseline of the grid that
was constructed. After the cleanup, very litile evidence

| remained of the expedition. Our agroement with the
| owner of the ranch stipulated that we disturb the site as

little as possible. The team departed the site on Septem-
ber 18 at 5:00 p.m., with one vehicle in need of repair,
The pickup truck had overheated and a radiator hose had
to be replaced at a service station in Corona.

The work at the site was not the end of our activities
in New Mexico, The next day at the Technology Appli-
cations Center, near the University of New Mexico, we
obiained a list of all available serial photographs of the
ared in which the sile iz located. The first was foriuil-
ously taken in 1946, Copies of some of these photos will
be ordered soon. Until now it was not possible to obtain
photos because the site’s location was not known with
enough precision.

Though ne pieces of debris were found, the expedi-
tion was generally a success. 'We have learned about the
site and now know what additional information and
equipment is needed to do a more complete job the next
time, Plans are being made to contact expents in the
ecology and geology of New Mexico. Information will
be requested on soil erosion and deposition rates, the
growth rates of yucea plants and other vegetation, the
action of water in sinkholes, and the advancement or

| Tecession of vegetation across rocky soil. More inter-

views are also planned with Brazel and others o recon-
firm cenizin points. While at the site, Schmitt and Randle
located several more leads 0 persons who have never
been interviewed. We also hope that someone on the
military tearn that picked up the debris will come
forward, That individual can help us locate probable
spots where debris might remain,

The above list, though not complete, is an indication
of the work remaining before the next trip o the site, As
@ courtesy to the ranch owner and oot of a desire w
protect the site, I have purposely not specified the exact
location of the crash. The recent Unsolved Mysteries

contirued on page 23



Radiative processes and the
generation of UFO experiences

by Chris Rutkowski

mm Chris Rutkowski, an IUR contributing editor
and prominent figure in Canadian ufology, works
as a curator at the University of Manitoba.

or over a decade specolation has run rampant

regarding the possibility that UFOs may be linked
10 electromagnetic radiation produced by underground
rock subjecied (o siresses, The most outspoken advocate
of the Tectonic Stress Theory (TST) in North America is
Michael Persinger of Laurentian University in Sudbury,
Ontario, Canada. In Europe a parallel theory has been
advanced by Panl Devercux in Britain, Their supporters
include John Derr, a geophysicist with the United States
Geological Survey and an authority on earthquake lights,
as well as Brian Brady, also with the USGS and involved
in seismological studies.

The TST has two hasic forms which are nol mutually
exclusive. Either the radiation causes the ionization of
gases which in turn give rse o UFD reports, or the
radiation directly acts upon the witnesses” brains (specifi-
cally the temporal lobe) and capses the distorted view of
reality which is interpreted as a UFO experience. Obvi-
ously a combination of the two is possible.

Ower the past few years proponents of the TST have
produced numerous statistical studics which seem o
show a relationship between UFQ sightings and seismi-
city, implying proof of the TST's effects. But in carrying
the TST 10 extremes, other phenomena have been linked,
including psychic abilities and even cancer. Recently a
major tremor in Queber was linked to UFD sightings in
Pennsylvania, hundreds of kilometers away, simply on
the premise that the UFDs were observed around the time
of the earthquake and hence were related. Seismologists,
unversed in ufology, seemed to consider the link persua-
sive. Yet as ufologists are aware, less than one in 20
UFO cases is found to require an explanation beyond
simple misidentifications of ordinary and conventional
phenomena, without involving the TST at all. In other
words, il is unlikely that an alleged UFO observed at the
time of a seismic event, especially some distance away,
is related to it in any way.

As for the other phenomena linked to geophysical
effiects, it has been suggesied that precognition and other
psychic effects such as poltergeists are enhanced during

periods of local seismic activity. This inference has been
made using the same statistical analyses employed 1o
show a UFQ connection. The relationship with cancer,
however, was made without the benefit of empirical
analyses. It was inferred by assuming that electromag-
netic radiation really is emitted in arcas prone 1o UFO
Maps and noting that a local population would therefore
be exposed o increased levels of radiation. Furthermare,
UFO investigators working in the field would face an
“occopational hazard” by being exposed to this radiation.

The critics of TST point o several problems with the
theory, The most obvious one is that according o
debunkers such as Philip 1. Klass and Robert Sheaffer, alf
UFOs can be explained easily, without the large numbers
of data on UFO sightings that TST proponents use 1o
show their statistical results. Obviously the raw UFD
data that are correlated with seismic evenis are nothing
maore than aircraft and stellar objects, according o this
view, 50 the entire body of TST literature is worthless,
Apart from being unsettling to TST proponents, this
should be also of concem to others, since we should ask
why the data seem to sapport TST through statistical
analyses which yield high probabilities and neat graphic
plots.

The data themselves are a problem, in that UFQ
{and, later, psychic-experience) reports from newspaper
clippings, magarines and investigators” files are used as
sources. But as Allan Hendry remarked in his IFFQ
Handbook (1979), undifferentiated TUFO reports cannot
b2 used in statistical analyses. As a case in point,
Ufalogy Research in Manitoba has been conducting an
ongoing reexamination of its over 700 UFQ reports for
the province. OF these only a few dozen are high-
reliability unknowns, and even some of these show signs
of solutions afier limited but intense investigations, 1f the
entire 700 cases were statistically analyzed, would the
results be meaningful, if they were mostly misidentifica-
tions?

Certainly one of the most important problems with
TST is the lack of a mechanism. Up until this past year
none of the TST studies cver addressed the way in which
the radiation underground could produce UFOs either in
the air or in the minds of the witnesses. Since the
statistical studies are insdeqoate to support TST, such a
mechanism is necessary before TST can be realistically
considered as an explanation for UFQs, especially since
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other explanations are available and do not require new | personnel. In fact, those of us who live in high-level

With debate raging with regard to abductees and
contactees, TST has also been entered into the fray.
Whitley Stricber, Budd Hopkinz and others prefer the
nuits-and-bolis scenario of extraterrestrial intervention
while Ann Druffel and D. Scott Rogo postulate “ultra-
lerrestrial” intervention as skeiched earlier by John A.
Keel, Still others soch as John Musgrave and various
skeptics hold that the abductees are merely recalling
ungsually vivid nightmares, Rima Laibow has noted
parallels between abduciees and child-abuse victims,
while Diruffel and Rogo have speculated that abductees
transfer emotional stresses into abduction fartasies. TST
proponcnts have attempied to link all of these suggestions
by observing that temporal-lobe effects can include the
induction of analtered siate of reality in which false
"memaories” of an abduction can be prodoced.

But the simple statement that abduction fantasies can

be produced by the action of electromagnetic effects must
be supported by empirical studies. Why should exposure
to clectromagnetic fields generate such specific images?
And we need alzo to ask the quantitative question: are
these electromagnetic fields really produced by TST
effects?

Since the TST debate cannot be resolved by statist-
cal studies and presentation of opinions, another track
must be explored.

UFOs and your microwave oven

Are we affected by low-level radiation? As il
ufology needed another debate, this is another question
without an eagy answer, Investigative journalist Paul
Brodeor has written an alarming book, The Zapping of
America (1977), in which he exposas the dangers of man-
made radiation we face every day of our lives — not only
from our ovens but from innocwous sources such as

apartment buildings at eye level 1o TV transmitters are
routinely radiated with more microwave energy than the
embassy stafl. As another example, crewmen on naval
surveillance vessels are rarely allowed on deck because
such ships are frequently “painted” with radiation from
the radars on the ships they are spying on, in order to
“bum out” the sarveillance equipment.

50 is there a harard? Yes, if you were to be deliber-
alely and intensely exposed w EM radiation. That is why
there are recommended limits to X-ray exposure from
medical tests. Similarly, there are limits to “safe” high-
altitude flights for pilots who would be otherwise exposed
10 cosmic rays. But the level of radiation from our
commaon microwave oven is carefully reguolated, and
although the amount of exposure from such sources is not
zero, 1t 15 negligible when compared with other soorces.

When a wave of UPFO sightings erupted near Carman
Manitoba, in the 1970s, investigators were puzzled as to
why the UFOs were scen only in specific areas. Theories
ranged from alien invasion to publicity stunts. Some
observers noted that the UFOs were seen often around the
“lowers.” These struclures were most often microwave-
relay stations, although some were radio masts; one
researcher, Grant Cameron, found some consistency in
reports of UFOs flying "between" the towers. This _
observation was noted and filed without moch consider-
ation, although it was brought oul again a few years later,
when there was a serles of UFQ sightings near the town

| of Sundown, 100 or so kilometers away, This time thers

television transmitlers, airport radar and even garage-door |

openers. Centainly, biological effects from these sources
have been noted, including some deaths, The increased
incidence of cancer among radar technicians is evidence
that physictogical effects from EM radiation are not
insigmificant.

A famous case of induced EM effects concemns the
radisting of the American embassy in Moscow, Siaff in
that building were reporting headaches, dizziness and
nausea, and in the course of a surveillance sweep it was
found that microwave transmitters across the street were
directed at the embassy. But American officials
downplayed the dangers, saying that other factors were
likely the cause, It urned out that microwaves were
being aimed at the building but at a level considered safe
by American standards.

Studics on the effects of such low-level radiation
have been inconclusive and it could not be “officially™
stated that the microwaves were a threat to embassy
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Were no microwave towers near the town, and no obvioos
regson why UFOs would have chosen that location. On a
hunch, however, I obtained a map of microwave circuits
in that part of the province and was pleasantly surprised
to find that & circuit passed directly over the sites of
several ebservations of UFOs. Was this a coincidence or
were the UFD reponts relatsd to microwaves?

TST proponents would of course say “Yes!™ and
proclaim victory, but the connection is not so simple.
Why would the circuit cause UFO reports there and at
that specific time? Here, the extraterrestrial hypothesis
has a mare obvious solution, by having the aliens
interested in the microwaves, instead of the other way
around. But in the former caze the question still remains:
how can EM radiation produce the effects?

In the field and under the wire

In these days of environmental concens many
hazards are being found in things not often considered
dangerous, Although we live near power-transmission
lines, few of us are concerned about the radiation leaking
from them. Yet numerous environmental studies have
been conducied upon the biological effects of electric and
magnetic fields, and particularty those associated with
transmission lines, Matwrally this is of concem to those
living near new power corridors, but we can get a feel for



the complexity of the subject by determining the power
levels experienced near them.

For example, a 700 kV line will leak an average of
& kV/m gndermeath it. What do these numbers mean? In
comparizon the felds near typical appliances are a few
orders of magnitude less than this but still not insignifi-
cant. Your cleciric blanket has a feld of a few hundred
volis per meter (about 0.25 k'V/m), your stereo has about
100, and your TV perbaps 30, and a typical light bulb
gives off a field of 2 Vim. These are for electric ficlds,
Magnetic fields are of less concern for transmission lines
and arc much stronger around applisnces, Fields of
several hundred microTeslas are common around solder-
ing guns, hand massagers and fluorescent lights, while the
ficlds under transmission lines are of the order of only a
few microTeslas, In other words, the leakage from
transmission lines is only an order of magnitude more
than that from typical domestic appliances. But this does
roi mean that there iz absolutely no danger from trans-
mission linez, since other factors such as the duration
spent near the lings and drops in efficiency of the lines
play an important part in the exposore,

An important book on the subject is Biological
Effects of Transmission Line Fields (1987) by Edwin L.
Carstensen. He has surveyed the literature on EM effects
and has not found support for all proposed biological
consequences. Many studies show some effects bat at
intensities greater than those experienced in everyday
life. For exampbe, at fickd strengths comparable to those
underneath iransmizsion lines, changes in the activities of
bees have been noted.  Also the perception of hair
movement ("on the back of your neck™) by human
subjects has been confirmed. Many of the effects
claimed by researchers could not be confirmed and there
were usually no mechanisms offered to explain the
effects. Amaong these experiments were those performed
by TST proponent Michael Persinger, who described
various behavioral changes in small mammals with
exposure o magnetic felds, (Carstensen remarks,
“Although the anthors [Persinger and another researcher
named Paar] discuss effects on behaviar, it is difficolt o
see consistent differences between control and exposed
groups in the reported data.™)

Most studies on biological effects were performed
upon nonhuman organisms, although a few attempted o
see how cffects were translated o human exposure,
Many factors could influence and alter extrapolations to
human beings, so the specific resulis of a 1est on rats, for
example, cannot be compared easily to people. Yet we
know that some effects in humans are probable,

Recently Persinger has suggested that UFOs may be
related to cancer, based on geographical considerations
and the theory that seismic radiation affects human
beings. To support his assertion, he cites studies which
seem (0 have established relationships between EM
fizlds and high cancer incidence, But when Carstensen
reviewed these same studies, he declared them well short

of definitive prool and dependent on other variables,

Still, the problem of physical mechanisms remains.
After examining the possible physiological mechanisms
that might give rise to effects in biological tissue,
Carstensen concluded that fields more than 1000 times
the maximum strength detected under power lines would
be required to produce the effects, Field strengths of
about 1000 kV/m would be needed for physiological
changes, Bul il a sensitive electrochemical mechanism is
alfected (i.e., the temporal lobe), it is possible that lower
field strengths could produce some change,

Herein lies the next challenge of TST: not o prodoce
mare statistical studies which can never constituie proof
of an effect but 1o quantify the energy constrainis, And it
is reassuring to see that this is finally being done 1 a
limited extent. Not long ago Persinger produced a paper
in which some valoes for EM frequencies were given,
suggesting rigorous studies on brain stimulation, This Iz
encouraging but it is only a stant in the right direction.

What is further needed is an assessment of the energy
available from underground rock strain. Is this in any
way comparable with other sources of radiation 1o which
we are exposed in everyday life? One of the more
interesting objections o TST is that while it postulates
physiological effects from strain-induced radiation, it
docsn’t say very much about ocher sources of radiation.
As noted earlier, certainly radio transmissions, radar and
MICrOWaVEs MIOST ACl upon us in a similar fashion as
suggested by TST. It scems logical that in seismically-
inactive areas, where TST is suill claimed responsible for
UFO experiences according to its authors, the effects of
these other radiation sources would be much stronger
than seismic radiation, at least under some circomstances,

This would be true, of course, with all the effecis

i claimed for TST. It is in fact much easier 1o understand
| abduction experiences, for example, as temporal-lobe
| effects due to microwave-relay radiation than as stress

radiation from rock strain, especially since the latter may
not exist af all, This might be the circumstance for
claims by an abductee living on the 15th floor of an
apartment building in a seismically-quiet part of the
country. Rather than come up with novel ways of getting
strain energy to that ahductes, it might be better o
explore sources of environmental radiation from conven-
tional sources. (This is not to say that [ endorse this view
of abductions; I'm merely presenting this snggestion as a
thought exercize.)

Even if UFO expericnces were due to an cnergy
inflox uwpon the brain, TST wouold still be pressed 1o come
up with a reazon why the temporal lobe would cause such
specific “memaories™ as UFD abductions and religious
visions. Persinger has shown that amnesia can be
induced under certain conditions in the laboratory, but
could this occur in nature? And Carstensen classified
Persinger's findings on this matter as “unconfirmed” for
various reasons. The suggestion that strain energy can

continued on page 23
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Daylight dumbbell

by Richard F. Haines

mm Richard F. Haines, Ph.D., an JUR contributing
editor, is an aviation psychologist who works

for NASA. He is the author of Observing UFOs
(1980) and Melbourne Episode (1987) and editor
of UFO Phenomena and the Behavioral Scientist
(1979).

n Saturday, April 15, 1989, at 5:30 p.m., M.H., 46,

and his son Kevin, 16, were siting in the family
van parked outside their home in Movato, California,
when something in the clear bluc sky caught their atten-
tion. They looked up and saw a “strange object” hanging
motionless in the sky.

As they both got ont of the vehicle, they realized that |
it was not moving. [i looked like “two spheres connected
together by a stem.™ As the father ran back inside his
house to get his Tx35 binoculars, his son continued to
keep it in view. The object did not move fast but did
seem o descend slowly as MLH. watched it through the
binoculars.

The two spheres were three-dimensional, possessing
shadows consistent with the solar illumination. They
were golden in color with a whitish “zura™ or halo around
them. No flame was seen coming from the object but
MLH. sensed that something was emitted from the
dumbbell object. He saw no markings or other surface
texture on the spheres,

This is the accounl we had alresdy beard from the
report MLH. mailed to CUFDS when on the afiernoon of
Miay 26 Carl Lunsford and T visited the site (o conduct an
mterview with the wo wilnessesz, We obtained taped
narratives of what each witness had scen and we then
asked M.H. questions from the CUFOS Investigator
Form, We also asked questions regarding the observers’
sighting and wision, inspected the 8x30 TASCO Model
308 binoculars which were used, recreated the sighting
event and requested both witnesses to redraw what they |
had sesn.

The main details of this sighting are the same ag
related in the above synopsis, In addition, we learned
that the object remained in the eastern sky, did change
directions (as it departed woward the east it seemed o
tumn 0 degrees abrupily into a horizontal flight path),
appeared solid with a discernible outline, and reflected
light.
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Both witnesses recalled seeing a number of small
golden spheres somehow associated with this main
object. M.H. could see them only through the binocolars
and sketched them as pale gold spheres, Kevin zaid he
could see them with his naked eyes and drew four of
them as small flat discs.

ML.H. wears prescription plastic lens eyeglasses with
a slight astigmatic correction of about (0,54 in his left eye
and no astigmatizm in his left eye. Both of his eyes have
a spherical comrection of about +0.5d for incipient
preshyopia. The lenses are UV coated. When I had him
readjust the binocular eyepieces for infinity focus, he set
both 1o -5.5d. He said he was 20:20 corrected,

The TASCO Model 308 binoculars were Bx30 power
with coated 1.2-inch-diameter objectives and 0,70-inch-
diameter pupils, Stamped on the body of the binoculars
were these figures: “393 fi at 1000 yds"™ and “131M/
1000M." We found the optics to be free from any defecis
or interngl flaws which would produce an optical image
such as was reported.

We all walked 1o the same spot where the two
wimesses had stood. This site was located about 300 feet
north of the intersection of Inye Circle and Crossroads
Court in Novalo.

Looking initially at a steep angle upward {(approxi-
mately 75 degrees above the horizon), bath witnesses saw
what appeared 10 be two spheres, one above the other and
immovable relative to cach other, i.¢., they both moved
wogether,

From sketches M.H. drew, it waz learned that the
apparent angular size of the dumbbell was just less than
the apparent width of M.H.'s thumbnail (at arm’s length)
ar gbout 1.5 degrees. The two equal-diameter spheres
were separated by about 00,25 times the diameter of each
sphere and the connecting rod was about 10 to 15 percent
af the sphere’s diameter.

Kevin also drew two sketches of what he saw, one
as viewed without binoculars, the other with.  He tried
1o draw their sizes taking the optical magnification into
account. In addition, he added four smaller objects at
their initial positions relative o the main object in the
second drawing. These smaller objects all appeared o
approach the main object along straight lines at irmegular
intervals, The two lowermost discs approached the lower
bulb on the object while the two uppermost discs
approached the upper bulb. It isn't clear whether they
merged with it or suddenly disappeared. Both witnesses



were vague about the dynamics of these smaller objects.
Seen initially at about 75 degrees” arc above the eastzm
horizon, the object began o descend slowly to a mini-
murm of 60 degress” arc, 'While it was at its lower
positions, both wilnesses saw from five to cight small
gold-colored “satellites”™ come out of the object in
approximately the same eltiptical orbit. They emerged
at irregular intervals and always reentered the object
along a more or less horizontal plane.

M.H. also noted the strange absence of kids and dogs
at the ime they watched the object. There are usually
many present at this time of day.

The two connected spheres were described as being a
rigid object a all times, The dumbbell did not tilt or
wabble at any time. It always remained vertically-
oriented.

M.H. was positive that the object was not a balloon.
While the wind was calm, he stated that there was no
harizontal motion at any time. The object dizsappearcd by
rising slowly vertically (estimated at one degree of arc
per minute) and slightly toward the east untl it
as a point and then il veered sharply to the lefi (i.e., 1o the
southwest) and accelerated obliquely uniil it was out of
gsight. M.H, estimated its height as 30,000 feet.

He said there was nothing in the newspapers afier the
evenl, nor did he hear anyone else talking about the
object. “Ii was strange,”™ he said, “there was no one else
who saw iL... 1t was very quiet at the time." No sound
was ever heard coming from the direction of the object.

We asked the witnesses each to make a rough sketch
of the field of view present during the sight. This
included the foreground lawn, a small tree and the object.
From this we hoped to be able 1o establish the vertical
angles. A comparison of their two sketches indicated the
following:

The ratio between the vertical angle from the local
horizon o the top of the tree and the vertical angle
between the local horizon o the UFD for each witness is
AB =027 for MLH. and A/B = 0,16 for Kevin. This
different is small, indicating reasonably good agreement
between the two wilnesses, particularly when we con-
gider that there were no fixed references in the sky
against which to compare the location of the UFO at any
mme.

The weather on the day in question was clear and
sunmy, according to meteorological records, The temp-
eratures were in the mid-70s. Winds were variable from
the northwest from five to 15 kis. As M H. subjectively
recalled it, the iemperature was 75 degrees F., the wind
was coming from the west at five 1o seven mph, Visibil-
ity was clear and ceiling unlimited.

Hamilton Air Force Base is located nearby but has
been officially closed for years., There is no aviation
activity there, according to M.H. At Traviz AFB, 28
miles o the east-northeast, numerous heavy ransport
atrcraft land daily.

[ found both witnesses o be forthright and clear in

continued on page 23
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The trouble with UNICAT — part two

by Paul Fuller and Wim van Utrecht

mm Paul Fuller, councll member of the British
UFO Research Association, is a professional
statistician. Wim van Utrecht direcis the
Belgium Studiegroep voor Vreemde
Luchtverschijnselen (Group for Study of
Strange Aerial Phenomena) and edits SVL
Mewsletter and SVL Repon.

n this saction we wish to discuss the problem of

choosing, defining and coding relevant variables
{parameters) which we can use w identify siatistically
significant differences between cases, This, of course, is
the whaole point of creating a database like UNICAT
becavse we wish to idently statistical cloes o the nature
of unexplained UFD data by comparing different rypes of
UFOQ events across a whaole range of relevant information.

Unfortomately, it is not easy o know which variahles
should be recorded in UKICAT because we do not know
what our unexplained cases represent. For this reason we
suspect that Willy Smith has correctly decided o code as
many variables as possible, in the hope that the irmelevant
variables will become obvious and will be discarded.
This policy seems reasonable but it runs a grave risk of
over-parameterisation for the rarer UFD events, (Multi-
varigte siatistical 1ests cannot be applied to datasets when
the number of cases is lower than the number of vari-
ables, e.g., we could not use more than four variables in
any statistical model wested on five radar cases.)

We have already pointed oot that the UNICAT
variables soem to make assumptions about the sorts of
explanations that will eventnally account for unexplained
UFQ data. We also draw attention 1o the following im-
poriant i55ues;

(a) The reliance of the database on
subjective, ordinal or nominal variables

Of the 225 variables contained in the UNICAT
database we believe that fower than 40 (18 percent) are
objectively defined variables, i.e., variables in which
there can be no possibility of ambiguity or miscoding
(e-g-, the sex of a witness, the year of a sighting, the
location of a sighting). Examples of objective UNICAT
variables include Children's Accounts (CA), Denied by
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Airport (DA), and Hypnosis (HY). Of course, most of
these objective variables say nothing of the characteris-
tics of the UFO event; they merely refer to chance
characieristics of the sighting or the follow-up investiga-
tion {e.g., Never Saw Anything Like It [NS], Drawing of
Entity Exists [DE]).

Since very few of the objective UNICAT variables
refer wo characteristics of the reported event, some degree
of judgment is required before the case details are entered
into the UNICAT database. The reliance of UNICAT on
subjective variables such as Complex Case (CX), Intelli-
gent Answer (IA), and Curiosity Exhibited {CE) greatly
reduces the utility of UNICAT to identifly satistically-
significant differences between cases becanse the
accuracy of these variables depends wholly upon the
judgment of the witness, the ability of the investigator,
and the reliability of the UNICAT coders to record
identical characteristics in a consistent manner,

It is our belief that we cannot be sure of the accuracy
of many of the UNICAT variables and so, for these
redsons, critics can dlways argoe that any statistically-
significant variations discovered in the database simply
reflect variations in the value judgments of the witnesses,
the investigators or the UNICAT coders rather than real
statistical differences between unexplained cases. OF
course, were UNICAT to concentrate on recording the
more objective variables (such as age, occupation, 1),
this charge would be less supportable,

To test this criticism we suggest that the UNICAT
Project send a dozen of its “full case reports™ (chosen by
the use of random-number tables) to independently
located researchers who are not connected with us or the
UNICAT Project. Each researcher should independently
allempt o code each case using the UNICAT variables to
see if @ consensus is achievable, 'We maintain that
different researchers will code individual cases in
different ways because most of the UNICAT varisbles are

=0 subjectively defined.

Perhaps UNICAT's biggest single mistake has been
to code virtually all its 225 “repeatable characteristics™ as
nominal (present/absent) measures — the lowest form of
mgasurement — instead of uzing ordinal, ratio or interval
measares (which are often more appropriate). Examples
of this oversimplification include Electromagnetic Effects
(EM}, which could have contained several similar effects
(e.g., Siatic on Radio, Headlights Dimmed, Engine Stut-



tered but not Stalled, Engine Failed); Lonely Road or
Place (LE) should really be some measure of population
density or the distance to the nearest hamlet or own; and
Entities Plural (EF) which should have been coded as the
Number of Entities rather than Yes There was More Than
One Entity.

This greatly reduces the ability of the database 1o
identify statistically significant differences becanse the
reliance upon nominal measures means that UNICAT can
gpply only nonparametric tests to UNICAT data. This is
& major disadvantage because:

M In general, nonparametric statistical tesis require
appreciably higher sample sizes o identify the
same variations g5 paramedric ests (which are
based on higher levels of measurement);

M Some categories of UFO reports are rare (e.g.,
radar-detection cases), The combination of low
sample sizes and nonparametric hypothesis
testing further reduces the possibility of identify-
ing statistically significant differences. The use
of parametric testing is not such a problem with
low sample sizes;

B The reliance on nominal measurements and
nonparamerric statistics greatly restricts the
range of available statistical Lests that can be
applied to UNICAT data (e.g., there are no
nonparametric equivalents of cluster analysis or
principle componenis analysis);

(b) The extensive use of variables
within the database

Because UNICAT is composed almost entirely of
nominal measures, there is extensive duplication of the
variables which reduces the 225 variables w only 170 or
#0. We cannot be accurate about the full extent of this
problem because precise definitions of the variables have
net been published (indeed, no completz technical
description of the project scems (o have been published or
made available o ufologists in its five years of exis-
tence). Weo cannot understand why the project has been
promoting its collection of 225 variables when such
obvious duplication is oceurring.

{c) The omission of crucial variables

We are concerned that UNICAT lacks witness-
related variables such as age, sex, marital status. Ocou-
pation, 1Q level, social class, and 50 on could be used o
demanstrate whether or not witnesses to unexplained
cases dilfered significantly from witnesses to explained
cases and from populations in general. One of UNI-
CAT's primary aims must be 1o éxamine whether a

lypical witness profile for (different) sub classes of cases
can be established.

Following on from this, we were disappointed at the
omission of variables recording specific meteorological
conditions such as precipitation, snow, hail and high
winds (although more general variables such as Clear
Weather [CW], Mist, haze, vapor [MI], Weather Other
[WO] and Extreme Weather Conditions [WX] arc
recorded). Surely if anomalous phenomena are appearing
in the atmosphere we should expect some of those
anomalous phenomena to be meteorological in origin
(e.g., ball lightning).

We applaud the use of Hynek's strangeness-credibil-
ity scale and the atiempt 10 measure investigative quality,
But we also wonder whether it would be productive to
record the delay between the sighting and the investiga-
fion to examine whether case quality, credibility and
sirangeness vary with investigative delay,

(5) The decision to count cases
instead of reports

Currently, the UNICAT database counts each case as
a single record in the database. We recognize that this is
a complax issue with no straightforward answers, but we
criticize UNICAT’s policy becanse:

B Al present we cannol examing variglions in the
degree of conflicting witness testimony between
different types of cases because at present all the
wilnesses’ reports are compressed into a single
(nominal) code for each case. Surely ufologists
should be examining variations in the degree of
internal consistency between diffesent sub
groups of cases to see if witnesses agree or
disagree on the basic reported events. For
example, if 95 percent of witnesses 1o car-stop
cases agree on all the basic reported details, but
only 50 percent of witnesses 1o cases involving
entities completely agree, does this not suggest
that the latter case would be less objective than
the former?

W At present UNICAT cannot examine the order of
events during cases. Surely we wish to establish
(for example) whether a high proportion of car-
stop cases really do follow the stereotype car-stop
model, or whether the accepted order (UFO
appears, headlights dim, static on radio, engine
dies) is just a myth,

B Surcly ufologists pray for good multple-wimess
cases because these (allegedly) greatly reduce the
poasibility of misperception by the witnesses, Tf
this is so, why are multiple cases given the same
weighting as single-witness cases? Surely a case
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in which five persons report secing an unexplained
phenomenon should be counted fve tdmes in the
database (becanse it is five times more important
than a single-wilness case).

B 'We note with approval thal Smith distinguishes
between Multiple Witness (MW cases when the
witnesses are grouped together and Multiple
Winess cases where some wilnesses are Independ-
ently Located (IW). This allows us to identify
whether or not the clustering of multiple witnesses
together increases or decreases the caliber of cases
(i.2., do excited witnesses contaminate each other's
stories or do witnesses stick to their version of
evenis despite noticeable differences?). Signifi-
cant differences here would (again) indicate that in
some way (some) reporied events rely upon the
circumstances of the observer rather than real
differences between the events,

W By counting reporis instead of cases, sample
sizes would be significandy boosted for the rarer
categories of event (thos making for more
confident statistical inferences).

Again our criicism is not 5o much that UNICAT
reconds cases instead of reports, but that Smith has not
discussed these issues and the important implications of
hiz decision in the literature. We acknowledge that by
recording reports instead of cases the amount of coding
required would increase substantially and that some
means of flagging separate records to indicate that they
belong to the same cases will be required, It might also
be necessary to redesign UNICAT into a nonflat dats-
base. (A flal database is one in which cases are restricted
i & single value for cach variable, A nonflat daabase
could record all the witnesses' ages [or all the reported
colors] with repeat group structures o allow us o
examine the order of reported events within individual
cases. Unfortonately this makes for more difficult

interrogation techniques. )

The reliance of the UNICAT Project
on the use of a single coder

In 1953, when the Battelle Memaorial Institute carried
out the research that led 1o Project Blue Book Special
Report #14 two years later, the project team employed a
complex method of classilying, coding, and checking
cases which greatly reduced the possibility of miscoding
or misevaluating individual casas. This involved using a
single Battelle worker and an evaluation panel which
would independenily examine a case prior to reaching a
decision about the case and its merits, Only if both the
Bauelle worker and the evaluation panel agreed would
the case be submitied for further analyvsis and the evalu-
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ation adopted.

The UNICAT Project seems to rely wholly upon one
coder (Smith), whose expertise by necessity must cover a
wide range of unrelated subjects (meteoralogy, astron-
omy, psychology, military technology and more.)
Despite his academic credentials, we do not always agree
with Smith’s opinions about individual cases, 'What we
challenge is the strain on his knowledge of s0 many
disparate fields and the fact that any potential errors will
go uncorrecied and would consistently affect the entire
databaze,

The lack of statistical expertise and
guidance

Many of the problems with UNICAT stem from the
lack of a statistician to advise on the project’s design and
methodology. Regredfully, the project director’s own
statistical expertise leaves much to be desired. His
application of the chi-squared test on a contingency table
where cases have been double counted and his abuse of
existing statistical terminology (e.g., “parameter correla-
tioms™) illustrate our poinL

Summary

We have tried hard o be constructive in our exami-
nation of the UNICAT Project, but in short, we do not
feel confident that the project is soundly based upon
standard statistical methodology, Althoogh many of our
eriticisms could be better aimed at ufology's lack of prog-
ress in general, rather than UNICAT's specific failings,
we have not met with the confidence of UNICAT s
director when raising these issues and we acknowledge
that our comments may on occasion be based upon mis-
understandings, for which we apologize in advance,

Wi have nol set out to prove that the statistical
treatment of UFO data is a pointless pursuit, or o give the
impression that the UNICAT Project has no intrinsic
vilue 1o ulology. We do maintain, however, that the
statistical analysis of UFO data involves the use of many
assumptions and echniques with which the UNICAT
Project failed 1o deal. 'We look forward 1o further
comstructive debate on these important, challenging
izgues, W

() Paul Fuller and Wim van Utrecht

Coming in IUR...

The Roswell incident —
the full story of the most important
event in UFD history




Letters

Gulf Breeze photos
To the editor:

Wim van Utrecht ("How to Take Your Own Gulf
Breeze Photos,” fUR, May/Tune) makes a good, honest
effort to replicate the type of UFO I photographed. But
the difficulty with the reflection-off-glass theory he
propoases can be expressed this way: How do you set up
the glass, hang the model, and all the rest, and shoot the
picture il yoo are in the limited confines of the cab of a
pick-up truck (as | was when [ took the road shot)?

Consider the many different locations of my phoio-
graphs. None shows a scene through any window. Even
if you set up a model and a piece of glass at, say, a
shoreline location, how do you hide the staging props as
others run to the area within seconds of seeing the flash

of the SKS camera?

But most damaging 1o the reflection theory is this:
How can you explain the flash’s not reflecting off the
glassT Plus, the SRS stereo camera clearly shows the
game type of UFD and complicates the hoax theory
beyond reasomn,

Ed Walters |
Gulf Breeze, Florida

T the editor:

In your editorial in /U/R, July/August, vou state that
the Gulf Breeze case must remain open in the “ahsence
of solid disconfirming evidence,” implying that such
evidence does not exist, This is not true.

The UNICAT Project has obtained computer-
enhanced images of some of Mr. Walters' photographs,
These clearly show the presence of a support under the
alleged UFQ. We have been legally prevented from
publishing those results — which would end the contro-
versy — on the grounds that the original photos are
copyrighted, but we hope to overcome this difficulty in
the near fulure.

In addition, computer analysis of the anomalous
image appearing in the so-called ghost photo has shown
beyond the shadow of a doubt that it was obtained by .
double exposure, and hence that the photographer was [
familiar with the 1echnique months before the first

alleged UFO incident. The only better “disconfirming
evidence” [ could think of would be a signed confession
from the photographer,

Willy Smiith, Ph.D,
UMICAT Fraject
Longwood, Flarida

Fantasy, abuse and abduction
To the editor:

We read with interest the article by Rima E. Laibow
(*Duoal Victims: The Abused and the Abducted " FUR.
May/Tune). In it Dr. Laibow stated that a higher inci-
dence of child abuse occurs among abductees when
compared o the general population,

We concur with Laibow's observations and note the
possible relationship between fantasy-prone personalitics
and child abuse. In “Abductions: The Fantasy-Prone-

. Personality Hypothesis™ (fUR, May/Tune 1988) we also

noted the apparent correlation between being an abducies
and having a history of child abuse, We also mentioned
that the correlation exists between abuse as a child and
possession of 3 fantasy-prone personality. The implica-
tian in the latler instance, as with generation of multiple
personality due to some traumatic experience (child
abuse, for example), is that unusoal mental states may be
generated following abuse as a child.

We encourage UFO researchers and health profes-
sionals to examine the potential links connecting abuse as
a child, abductions and fantasy-prone personality. We
recommend the article by 5. J. Lynn and J. W. Rhue,
“Fantasy-Pronencss: Developmental Antecedents,”
Journal of Personality 55(1) (1987).

Keith Basterfield and Robert E. Bartholomew
Australia

Disinforming
T the ediwor:
The primary objective of both military and civilian

intelligence is to gather information on a variety of
subjects from whatever sources are available, The
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counlerintelligence aspect of all this is to obstruct
foreign (or even merely unofficial) agency in its ability 1o
do the same,

The UFD community 15 valnerable o counterinizlli-
gence efforts to protect classifisd UFO data. The strange
mixipre of UPD fact and fiction emanating from such
sources 15 typically either swallowed whaole or dismiszsed
im its entirety. In either case confusion is the result

This past July, in an address o the MUFON Sympo-
sium in Las Vegas, rescarcher William L. Moore dealt a
blow o UFD disinformation. He demonsirated that the
current UFQD rumors are hardly random; they have a
source and & purpose. Instead of ignoring anonymaous
information, we most check it carelully w see if it

conforms to checkable facts. By that T do not mean 1o
say that because more than one source is spreading the
same rumor, therefore it must be true. Some sopposed
ledks may be significant but they can also be cloaked in
disinformation,

The Air Force Office of Special Investigations acts as
a watchdog over certain classified government informa-
tion and it engages in counterintelligence activities.
AFOSI regulation 124-88 states the following:

“A major concern in leak cases s w avoid lending
credence 1o the compromised material. Often the greatest
harm comes from confirming that the U.S. has centain
intelligence, wechnologies, or policies. In the absence of
official confirmation, publicized maizrial can be damag-
ing but must siill be classed as speculation, Sometimes,
the very existence of an official investigation provides
confirmation. This problem may be a determining factor
in deciding whether an imnvestigation should be under-
taken. "

Conzider the significance of these words in the
context of the MJ-12 documents and other so-lar-
unconfirmed “leaks™ involving alleged UFQ secrets. One
might conclude that the professionals who guard the
secrets are doing their job, It is up 1o us 1o do oors,

Brian Parks
Torrance, California

DISinformed

To the editor:

Where in the world did George Eberhart ever get the
idea that [ have ever “worked as an agent for the Defense |
Investigative Service” ("The Current Literature,” FI/E,
Joly/August)? 1 must ask that you correct the record (o
reflect the facts as they are and not as someone would
like them to be. Fact is that I am not now, nor have [
ever been, connected with the DIS, although it is possible
that zome of the information [ supplied o AFOST ended
up in its files, Jf this occurred, responsibility for it would
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liz with O3] and not with me,

Perhaps Eberhart should reread the text of my Las
Vegas presentation so that he can be absolutely certain of
precisely what I did and did not say so that he can avoid
making similar ervors in the futare. [ have always
respecied him and his work and so was rather surprised
{to say the least) when I read his IUR piece.

William L. Moore
Burbank, Callifornia

Encounter types
To the editor;

The Fund for UFQ Research, Inc., is looking for an
individual to conduct a study of UFO-sighting wrends
during the past decade, using the Hynek system of
categarization (i.e., CE1, CE2 and 50 on). Interested
persons should contact the Fund, giving their educational
and technical qualifications, sources of data, and pre-

dicted time and costs of the stdy.
Don Berliner
Fund for UFQ Research, Inc,
Box 277

Mourt Rainier, Maryland 20712

Conspiracy crowd
To the editor;

I want to express both agreement and disagreement
with your editorial “Flying Saucer Fascism™ (JUR, July/
Auguzt).

I strongly agree with your criticism of the regreitable
piece published in another UFD journal. It carried
paranoia (o an extreme and carried (to my mind as well as
yours) elements of implicit anti-Semitism. 1 hope the
editor in question shows better judgment in the future, 1
also endarse your criticism of the practices of some UFD
debunkers who persist in ad hominem attacks and never
let the facts get in the way of a good debunking.

I take isspe, though, with your unqualified dismiszal
of all claims made by Lear, Cooper, et al. [ agree that
they have not provided substantiation for their claims and
1'in no way endorse any extreme allegation that lacks
proof. 1 do feel, however, that there are indications that
not all of their claims are without merit and a number
deserve further consideration. I°ll cite a few cxamples.

Anyone who thinks that a theory viewing the
assassination of President Kennedy as a covert operation
i% ludicrons should read David Lifton’s voluminous 1980
book Best Evidence. [ was initially skeptical but find the



evidence Lifton cites persuasive. Lifton makes an
impressive case that the President’s body was altered with
Secret Service and Navy complicity to implicale Lee
Oswald and hide evidence of the true assassin. He
concludes that the assassination was a covert operation
ordered at the highest levels of the executive branch.

This is compatible with the Lear/Cooper scenario,

I must also say that I am uncasy with the National
Security Agency’s response to Sg. Clifford Stone's
efforts to authenticate the Snowbird document. Tf these
allegations are so absurd, why has the NSA taken him so
seriously? Why has it sought (o prevent him from
contacting members of Congress and the media? Why
has it refused to answer his inguiries, elaiming they
involve sensilive national security matiers inappropriate
for discussion? And what is a satisfactory explanation for
the Cash-Landrum incident, if all these allegations are
nonsense?

It’s worth réemembering that years ago all serions
ufologists scoffed at reports of crashed discs and alien
abductions as unworthy of investigation, Some still hold
that view, but an increasing number have changed their
minds about these bizarre reports as the supporiing
evidence has mouneed.

Dan Pirchas
Gaithersburg, Marvland

To the editor:

I have o commend you on your editorial in the July/
August issue. What you said needed saying and could
not have been said more eloquently. [ have been waiting
{(impaticntly) for someone 1o stand up 1o the conspiracy
crowd for months and am glad that you did not juse Tet it
pass, as some would rather do.

I find myself not only agreeing with bat animatedly
cheering your editorial comments every issue.

Jerold R. Johnson
Aystin, Texas

To the editor:

You deserve a standing ovation for your editorial on
“Flying Saucer Fascism,” It's truly a shame that more of
those who should know better are not showing some
backbone and taking these fools 1o task lowdly and
publicly,

It's even more of a pity that newcomers 1o this field
— Irying o cope with 42 years® worth of data which are
at least grounded in fact or something approaching
consensus reality — also have to contend with this drivel.
And what of thoze supposedly experienced and intelligent
researchers who go to amazing lengths o implicate

everyone from John Foster Dulles o Howard Hughes in
the grand web of conspiracy?

My prayer for the "90s is: Lord save those who seck
the truth in something resembling a reasonable fashion,
and deliver us from all the rest. Keep calling it the way
YO 50 it

Mark Packs
Stratford, Connecticut

The disunited states of ufology
To the editor:

I was saddened to see the badly-needed debate
initiated in the March/April issue of IR presented as
“UFO Wars.” The wrong tone: we are all simply trying
to understand the baffling UFD enigma, surely?

Even more depressing was Jerome Clark s article
"Two Cheers for American Ufology.” After admitting
that “most American ufologists™ are ignorant of much
ufological thinking, he goes on to ignore the implications
of that and to be personal toward me and others. If he
had talked with me as he had with Budd Hopkins, he
would have discovered that I was not at all “over-
wrought” in making my comments (I would, however,
have accepted the description “exasperated™). On the
other hand, many people who noted the tone of Stanton
Friedman’s attack on me at the 1983 BUFORA Congress
in London would agree, T think, that the term “over-
wrought” could have been applied accurately & him in
that instance. It cuts both ways.

Clark may judge some of my commenis (which he
never dealt with) to be “self-serving nonsense,” but
doubtless our metaphysical visitor to Salem would have
been zimilarly castigated by the inhabitants, onable o get
outside their own collective mindset. Talking with just
one New York psychologist, | discovered she had clients
whao are convinced that their hushands are ETs or are
acting out potentially dangerous commands they feel they
are receiving from ETs. Clark may not consider this
hysteria, T do and so did that psychologist.

Hopkins' abduction interpretation of, zay, the "Kathy
Davis" case may be perfectly commect, What I am saying
is that the facts as he describes them also fit perfectly, in
every detail, the other explanation I suggested in my
letter. Hopkins' refusal even to consider that in frtriders
tzlls me that there is a need-system for the ET/abduction
answer. And if many American ufologists do not know
of other possibilities in any depth, how can their conclu-
sions be fully objective?

Mo one is saying, as Clark implies, that a 40-year-old
case is invalidated by its age; but he does not deal with
the implications of that vintage. (Think, for example, of
how many people would have had to be involved in the
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hush-up, at how many levels from military guards 1o
scientific teams to government officials — and we would
now be coming up Lo the third generation of such keepers
of the secret.) The USA certainly has an excellent
Freedom of Information law, but even with that every-
thing is still very elusive, isn't it? That in fact makes it
all the more suspicious, 1 have some sympathy with the
anomymous British ufologist who wanted to see wreckage
and bodies, for evidence of government secrecy is not the
same as demonstrating an ET case. There's nothing
mysierions about government secrecy — just come Lo
Eritain to find that out!

The ETH may be correct, bot is the study, the
histary, the memory of that explanation really considersd
by the current crop of abduction researchers? Clark
dabbles but doesn't come 1o grips with the implications.
Each round of the ETH is dealt with as if by amnesiacs.
Where, for example, are the ski-suited Venusians now? It
i% all right being now oh-so-superior about contactees, as
Clark is, but what will the ahduction theme look like in
25 years? If onc goes into the 40-year history of the
ETH, themes come and go and they all looked valid to
researchers at their times, but flaky later. If we look at it
in perspective, it does not appear as if we are dealing
with a physical ET sitwation, Considering how readily
many American commentators who bother at all slap
down the carthlights approach, I think it is strange that
skeptical consideration of the ETH as a phenomenon in
its oown right is 50 muoted.

If Michael Persinger's magnetic helmet really does
generale NDE/OBE/abduction types of experiences which
are remarkably similar from sobject to subject, as is
claimed, should not abduction theorists really stop and
consider the implications of that?

Twenty-three years ago [ assumed the ETH to be
carrect, T moved from that position becaunse [ simply
found the theory inadequate. My own research — and,
yes, personal experience with light phenomena (it's not |
just abductees who can claim an experiential factor) —
make me much more satisfied with the earthlights
approach. If the current mainstream American ufologists
arc objective and not simply pushing a spaceship expla-
nation, why do they not set up a long-term Hessdalen-
style field study at a Jocation such as the Marfa-Big Bend
area of Texas, where light phenomena pop away with
mioderate regularity? If abduction skeptics can be
accused of remaining in their armchairs instead of poking
around in another person’s epidermis, carthlights doubters
can be similarly criticized for not making the required
effor. Light phenomena can be racked down because
they are real and we are identifying the landscapes in
which they babitually ocour,

Of conrse, there may be ET craft and exotic ierres-
trial phenomena such as earthlights. In that case we have
two remarkable and instructive matters on our hands!
Again, perhaps they are one and the same thing; maybe
the terrain-related nature of earthlight/UFD behavior is a
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clue o us — in which case ETH adherenis ought o be
much more inquisitive about earthlight phenomena, My
guess is that the lack of American interest in these
matiers occurs becanse UFOs have already been identi-
fied conceptually as ET craft, It seems the decision has
already been made, This is true to a lesser exlent in
Britain, tno, One woman shouted at me during a lecture,
"These earthlights may exizst, bt I'm here to find out
about UFDs!™

Mark Rodeghiers editorial was a litths more meas-
ored and useful than Clark’s piece, but even here there
wis the throw-away comment that “fault lines, after all,
are everywhere.” II that is thought to be an adequate
summary of the carthlights approach, then American
ufology really is in trouble. Also, for the record, I should
point cut that the earthlights work of my colleagues and
me in Britxin arose independently of the excellent work
of Persinger, John Derr, et al, in North America. I came
across Persinger’s work for the first time during research
for Earth Lights (1982). Persinger's work is superh,
dealing with statistical research and the all-important
neurophysiological aspects of electromagnetic fields. But
that docs not make it necessarily “more sophisticated”
than our own research; it just deals with different aspects,
We have the most intimate landscape studies and aware-
ness with regard to earthlights available anywhere, We
have wraced the folk memory of these things in specific
regions, and we have noted aspects about the lights not
covered by the North American work. Tt all needs doing,
And none of ug, in any case, was the first 1o make the
UFO-geology connection. That honor goes to France
(Lagarde) and, in another sense, 1o Ttaly (Galli).

S0 let’s save the xenophobia for the ETs, shall we?

FPaul Devereux
Brecon, Powys
Wales

To the editor:

Paul Devereux's remarks { “Letters™ JUR, March/
April) suggesting that abductions are just a “fad™ we
should ignore are utterly blind and silly, Failing to
pursue the abduction mystery would be like hearing a
thief in your home and not responding because you think
you may just be hearing things, or it is not really impor-
tant and you need to be doing something more pressing.

Dan Warley
Connerseille, Indiana



Pleiades pendulum

To the editor:

Bruce Maccabee's article “Pendulum from the
Pleiades™ (JUR, January/Febroary) shows how easy it is
for even the most capable ufologist o overlook positive
infermation contained within UFO evidence if scemingly
negative information is also present. T refer o Billy
Meier’s movie-film scgment of March 18, 1975, near
Wetzikon, Switzerland, in which the UPD circled or
maneuvered either in front of or behind a tree situated
next o a farmbouse a substantial distance from Meier's
movie camerd. The tree was sbout three times the height
of the farmhouse, The fact that Dr. Maccabee noticed
that on one swing of the UFO"s maneuvers the object
““did appear (o contact the very wp branch of the ree™”
shows the importance of examining this and related
episodes for any other indications which support their
REnuineness,

In 1979 when the Japanese film crew and Jun-ichi
Yaoi observed the film at Meier's residence while it was |
being videotaped, Yaoi agreed that on one or two of its
passes the UFQ had passed behingd tho tip of the tree. On
the videotape, however, insufficient contrast is presentto |
allow the viewer to decide which side of the tree top it
had traversed. This is not 1o say that Yaod may not since
have been persuaded that he had been mistaken,

There are formidable problems which a hoaxer's
accomplices would have had to overcome in arranging
for the upper part of the tree under discussion to have
suddenly moved in the direction of the UFD's raverse
just as it moved past a position corresponding to the
treetop. I this is hypothesized o have been accom-
plished by pulling at the proper instance on a very long
cord attached to the treetop, one must seriously qoestion
how such a cord could have been put into place. The tree
was dense in branches and could not have been climbed,
and any tall ladder placed against its side would have
provided a precarions ascenl. Is the hoaxer supposed to
have anticipated Flying Saucer Review (March 1958, p.
12} and have known that tree limbs can be bent forward
out of the way as a UFD passes?

This tree later died and was cut down, according 10
Wendelle Stevens, or removed by the Pleiadeans,
according to Meier. Both agree that the latter disposition
occurred (o the tree around which Meier's photos of July
9, 1975, show the UFO to have been posing, Tt is that
tree which has been identified as a mature abier altv, or
European silver fir (MUFON UFO Journal, December
1987, p. 6).

The fact that the motions of the UFO in this film
resemble those of an oscillating object suspended by a
line, or of a pendulum, was apparently first pointed out
by Stevens in his 1962 book UFO ... Contact from the
Fleiades: A Preliminary Investigation Report (p. 280).

But Stevens noted some reasons why he felt the sus-
pended-ohject hypothesis hreaks down, [ find the most
convincing of these to be that in one or more instances
the UFQ changed its direction of oscillation rather
abrupily with no change in the tili of itz vertical axis.
Although the UFQ executed some wobbles during its
manecuvers, it twice hovered absolutely motionless for
several seconds relative to the treetop. This would be a
rarc and difficult feat for a hoaxer w achieve with a
model tethered by a line as long as 12 w 16 feet, attached
to a 25-foot (inclined) pole. A Meier movie segment of
March 29, 1976, exhibits more pronounced wobbling
motions at imes, but in three instances these wobbles
stopped much more abraptly (in less than a second) than
could a model's oscillations, unless any such model had
been skillfully controlled using puppet strings. In the
movie segment of March 8, 1976, after the UFO jumps
from the top of the frame to near the bottom with no
discontinuity whatever in background cloud edges, it is

| observed to have some 20 diameters of unobstructed sky
. above it while undergning no wobbles ar oscillations. It
| departed by moving upwards. Thus if it had been a

maodel, its tethering line would have had 1o be at beast 20

| to 30 feer long.

I recommend that the advocate of the hoax hypothe-

| sis perform the necessary tesis, using an eight-mm movie

camerd, 10 determine the degree of difficulty in atiempt-
ing to achieve thesa effects.

Jim Deardorff, PhD.

Research professor emeritus
Depariment of atmospheric sciences
Crregon State University

Corvallis, Oregon

Bruce Maccabee replies:

Dr. Deardorft points out that the URD appears 1o
have contacted the top of the tree. I it were known for a
fact that there had been a larpe tree in the location
indicated in the film, I would agree that it would be
difficult to hoax the contact of the treetop with a pendu-
lum UFQ, If the tree was small (several feet high) and
filmed from a camera position near the ground, however,
the hoax might not be so difficult. This would be true
whether it was a real, growing tree or a fake tree.

At any rate, if there had been a small tree, then no
one would have missed it when someone remaved it (the
Pleiadeans, according wo Meier), If it had been s large
tree, as one is led to believe, then surely there would have
been evidence of a normal removal (e.g., a stamp); it was
cul down, says Stevens, and at least someone would have
remembered it before it was removed. One could, T
suppose, search for pictures of the house in the years
before Meier's film so that one could see if there in fact

continued on page 24
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EDITORIAL — continued from page 3

the absence of any truly compelling arguments against
the briefing document itself, though plenty of arguments
pretending o be that have been advanced. (As already
noted, an MI-12-related document, part of the briefing
paper's appendix, Truman's supposed September 24,
1947, order bringing Majestic-12 into being, does appear
vulnerable.) Friedman and Moore have done a good job
of showing where the critics are mistsken, but even they
concede this is not an argument for the briefing paper's
authenticity, It is always possible, and in this case maybe
even probable, that the critics are right even if their
TeasoOns are wrong. '

Perhaps the most surprising claim the briefing paper
makes is that Donald Menzel, Harvard astronomer and
archdebunker of UFO repons, was a member of Majestic-
12, thus making him a consclous agent of an anti-UFD
disinformation campaign. This remarkable assertion led
Friedman to conduct the sorts of inquiries into Menzel's
background that no one had done before. Friedman
learned ("The Secret Life of Donald H, Menzel," [UR,
January/February 198%) that Menzel possessed the
highest security clearances and was well-placed within
the U.5. intelligence community — just as he woold have
had 1o be 1o be privy to the Ultimate Secret. This
amounts to & finding of the consistent-with-the-hypothe-
sis variety, but nothing more. No hing that Menzel
secretly wok UFOs seripusly has come to light, and thoss
whe knew him best, including his wife, reject the idea out
of hand. To this Friedman rejoins, reasonably enough,
that Menzel would not have breathed a word of this even
o family members. Yet Menzel's ferocious UFObia was

far in excess of what he would have had to exhibit io lead

the press and fellow scientists away from the scent {not
that most even knew there was a scent), sugpesting that
he was not acting under orders but out of the sort of
manic ohsession that has fueled other sincere

if misguided debunkers.

Nonetheless Menzel’s appearance on the MJ-12 list
is undeniably curious. Presumably it means something.
It may indicate, since practically nothing of Menzel's
secret life in intelligence was known before Frisdman's
investigation, that the hoax (if hoax it was) was perpe-
trated by individuals privy to classified information, In
other words, this is no ordinary hoax; it had a serious
purpose connected with national-security concemns, On
the other hand, the hoaxer may have erred in making one
extraordinary claim too many. Amusingly, it is not the
briefing docurment’s claim of a UFQ crash that is the
most difficolt to believe; it is the claim that Menzel knew
about it. The evidence for the crash is subsiantial, that
for Menzel's knowledge of it nil, A friend of mine once
suggested that perhaps Menzel's name was put on the list
for a reason: 10 assure any knowledgeable person within
the intelligence community that the briefing paper was
not, after all, a real leak of real information.

22 WA SaplemberOciober 1059

Mone of this is to say, of course, that the MJ-12
briefing document has been proven to be bogus, or that
no such project (whether called MI-12 or something else)
could have existed. But it is to say that, despite the
enormous, even heroic, research effonts of Stan Friedman,
the issee is as unresolved — and probably unresolvable
—as ever, It could be true, It could be one of those
exceedingly rare instances in human history when
diamonds are found floating in cesspools. That doesn’t
happen often. More conceivably (though also unprov-
ably), the briefing paper was haiched as part of a scheme
1o disteact investigators from pursuits traly threatening to
the cover-up.

To all present appearances (though future events may
radically alter our perception)), the MJ-12 controversy has
gotien us nowhere, maybe less than nowhere, since it has
consumed valuable time that might have been spent more
productively on other matters, not the least of them
Roswell. From the beginning, it is trae, CUFOS encour-
aged the MI-12 investigation and [UR has reporied, and
will continue to report, new developmenis. But ufology’s
resources are limited and I think most would agree, after
2 1/2 years, that MJ-12 has eaten up too many of them
already. Unless Friedman's Fund repont brings forth
major new evidence, all of us would be well-advised o
move on 10 something else, I an answer o the MJI-12
puzzle it to be found, perhaps we'll get 1o it one day,
while we're looking for something else. But as a whole
new chapier in the Roswell saga begins to unfold, we
have better things to do than 1o pursue a wild goose
across @ barren landscape. — Jerome Clark

Available now...

Joumnal of UFQ Studies, Vol. 1, new
series, with three major papers: Thomas
E. Bullard's "Hypnosis and UFQ Abductions:
A Troubled Relationship™; Eral A. Faruk's
“The Delphos Case: Soil Analysis and
Appraizal of a CE2 Report™; and Michael D.
Swords' “Science and the Extraterrestrial
Hypothasis in Ufology.” Pius an issues
forum on the abduction controversy, with
confributions by felklorists, psychologists,
scientists and ufologists. Plus book reviews
by Ron Westrum and Mark Rodeghier. 174
pp. JUFOS is the only refereed scientific
journal of UFO research, methodology and
theories. Available from CUFQS for $15.00

postpaid.




Roswell — continued from page 8

television program on Roswell did mof flm at the actual
gile. CUFOS wishes o preserve the site for future
scientific research,

It iz, of course, entirely possible that we will never
recover any debris from the crash, no matier how elabo-
rate the effort, Bl it is imperative that someons iy to do
50. It is a shame that this work is ocourTing nine years
after the book on Boswell was published, but Moore and
Friedman, for whatever reason, did not plan, or cven
suggest, an onsite study, Forty-two years after the event
iz & long time, but CUFOS has high hopes that scientific
methodology, combined with trained personnel and the
proper equipment, may just open up this secret chapier in
UFO history.

We plan to publish future updates on the Roswell
investigation in the pages of IR, Randle and Schmin
are planning a book which will concentrate on their
investigation and interviews with the many persons
connected with the event, CUFDS will eventually
publish a technical report on the complete investigation,

At zomic time in the future, T will be recruiting
personnel for the next expedition. If any reader of this
article believes he or she can help with tis work, [ invite
thai person o contact me, To bomow & phrase, CUFDS
will leave no stone unturned in its study of the rocky, dry,
sparsehy-populated, and isolated Roswell crash site. W

Radiative — continued from page 11

affect the iemporal lobe in human brains is not well
supported by research,

Furthermore, although TST proponents have sug-
gesied that this same Strain SNergy may cause increased
levels of cancer in persons living or working in UFO-flap
arcas, the literature is not supportive of such effects. In
fact, on the matter of low-level radiation’s causing
cancer, Carstensen says, “The entire body of laboratory
investigation provides no evidence m support of such a
possibility. The evidence from epidemiology is very
weak,”

We are all being constantly bombarded by radiation
from a wide varicty of sources. There is some evidence
that low-level EM radiation may be responsible for some
health effectz, 5o far laboratory findings have been
conflicting, and the precise nature of these effects and
their mechanisms is nof known with any certainty, Given
that we are exposed 10 varying amounts of radiation from
man-made sources, the contnbution from vagoely-
understood seizmic radiation al conzsiderable depths from
us is most likely less than is required to produce the broad
effects claimed by TST proponents. The controversy
over biological effects of man-made radiation exisiz on

several fronts, and the difficulty in verifying or onder-
standing the effects iz obvious when one examines the
literature on topics such as the hazards of video-display
terminals and “sick building syndrome.”

TST is an interesting theory which deserves attention
for several reasons. First, it may be a viable explanation
for a small fraction of UFO sightings which are not
otherwise given (o a simpleinterpretation. Secondly, the
research involved in developing TST may provide insight
into environmental-radiation concemns, As well, we are
lzaming more and more abogt the mechanics of seismic
encrgy, not to mention the advances we are making in the
fields of electromagnetics, earthquake lights, physiologi-
cal psychology, perception and a host of others, The
claims of links with parapsychology and other anomalous
phenomena should be taken with a liberal amount of salt,
gince the statistical studies that use such data are not
supporied by mechanisms with bases in science at the
present time. But as a contribution to ufology, TST
merits consideration, though probably not the wide
attention and acceplance it has received, W

UFO dumbbell — continued from page 13

their descriptions and details. When [ asked for an
interpretation of what the object might have been, M H,
would mot venture an opinion. He osed reasonable
gualifications in his statements, He said he was willing
by be inferviewed in person at any reasonable time and
did not seem embarrassed at being contacted about his
sighting. He said he had never seen anything like this
object before. He had seen the major modern movies
depicting UFOs (Close Encounters of the Third Kind,
E.T.) but remarked that these films did not contain
imagery similar 1 what he and his son saw, Although he
had never sighted a UFD before, he said, he had heard
several stories of radar contacts made in Korea during the
war while he was stationed there. M.H. has a bachelor's
degree in mechanical engineering. Son Kevin behaved
like a typical teenager, seeming impatient with our many
questions and wanting to leave to do something else.

Reports of dumbbell-shaped objects are notl uncom-
mon and have been related in the UFD literature. One
such case follows;

M.D,, a private pilot, and his father E.D. were flving
in a light plane on October 24, 1982, at %:24 a.m. local
time about 10 miles southeast of Lowell, Indiana, when
they sighted two metallic connected spheres of different
size and with a complex series of nozzles hanging below
them, This rigid object performed strange aeral flight
maneuvers and was clearly self-propelled. It accelerated
al a much greater rate than that of the 1968 Cherokee
model 140 airplane. It produced, the witnesses said,
turbulence behind it 1
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Letters — continued from page 21

was a large ree there,

Asfmlheahmplchﬂnmiudmmicsufmnpwﬂna
lum, the pendulum could be forced o move or change its
state of motion abruptly by a string or strings attached
directly to the pendulum UFQ. At the very beginning of
the film segment the UFO moves slowly o the left and
upward in an arc, just as one might imagine if a pendu-
lum bob were pulled away from its normal rest position
directly below its suspension point by a thread attached
directly to the UFQ. By manipulaling the suspension
itself, perhaps using a pole, and by also using a thread
attached directly to the UFO, a hoaxer could create
numerous types of motions of the pendolum,

Te the editor:

Before we let Maccabee condemn Meier to the pit
with a pendulum, we should recall that the characteristic
of harmonic motion is common to a large set of other,
generally-accepled sighting repors.

Witnesses say, for example: “Traveling at a high rate
of speed, they seemed 10 be oscillating about their lateral
axis..." (July 4, 1947, Portland, Oregon); *An unusual
Might characteristic was a slow fluttering motion — it
rocked back and forth in approx. 40-degree banks at
about one-second intervals throughout its course™ (March
29, 1952, Misawa, Japan); “As it flew, it oscillated from
side 1o side, much like the pendulum of a clock” (Sep-
tember 22, 1956, Williston, North Dakota).

Similarly, for objects descending or hovering: *As it
kost height, it began to flutter like a beaf or, if you prefer,
oscillate like a pendulum” (September 19, 1952,
Dishforth Airdrome, Yorkshire, England); “Tt made a
tighteircle in the sky, its luminous focus on the ground
rotating around itself™ (February 24, 1958, betwreen
MNazare and Salvador); and so on and on,

Thus, if a movie were available for each of these
cases, Maccabee's quantitative analysis could be applied
amndd the same conclusion reached.

It is not my intention to defend Meier but o advise
caution, lest we, as Allen Hynek would say, throw the
baby out with the washwater,

Thomas M, (Nsen
Phoeniz, Arizona

The current literature

Druffel, Ann, and D. Scott Rogo. The Tijunga Canyon
Contacts, New York: Signet, May 1989, J41p, 54,95,

A revision of the original 1980 edition, this paper-
back provides an interesting update to the series of
- abduction evenis that occurred 1o a group of southern
California women, beginning with the March 22, 1953,
experiences of Sara Shaw and Jan Whitley, Sara Shaw
remains active in the California UFO community and is
still seeking the meaning of her experiences, while Jan
Whitley, whom some have scen as a catalyst fior the
abductions, died in 1987,

Druffel and Rogo continue to hold differing opinions
on the nature of abduction events, Droffel now believes,
along with Gordon Creighton and Ahmad Jamaludin, that

the abducting entities are intelligent, nonhuman entities
known to the Koran as jinns, Rogo adheres to his opinion
that UFD abductions are objectified projections of the
abductes's mind, He admits, however, that the evidence
i& not so clear-cut as it once seemed, and he cautions
abduction researchers against emotional commitment to
any particular theory.

One serious flaw in this edition is probably the
publisher’s fault: instead of a revision of the index that
appeared in the earlier work, we get an omission of it.

Randle, Kevin D, The UFO Casebook, New York:
Wamer Books, September 1989, 256p, $4.95,

Peaple new to the UFOD field have few current
sources of information on the subject’s rich history,
Richard Hall's Uninvited Guesis is one excellent over-
view, but it 8 usually found in only the larger bookstores.
Now Kevin Randle has produced a mass-market paper-
back that serves as a handy introduction for beginners as
well as a memaory-jogger for old hands. His “just the
' facts, ma'am" writing style recalls the old Project UFO
TV series and is understandable given his former role as
intelligence officer in the U.S, Air Force, Randle also has
some perceptive comments about military UFO investiga-
tions and the probability that UFOs are taken seriously at
very high levels of government. Many of the major cases
since 1947 are covered adequately, as are Randle’s own
investigations and interviews (including one with
CUFOS" Don Schmitt), — Georpe M, Eberharr
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Cal. Williem Blanchard (left], base
commander, Roswell Army Air Field,
talks with Brig. Gen. Roger Ramey
(right), Credit: RAAF Vearbook, 1047:
courtesy Hoberl Porter.
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FROM THE DESK OF
STANTON T. FRIEDMAN

Toe the readers of JTiE:

Crver the last few months 1 have had inguiries from a number of persons whe
know how much I was involved in the initial and follew-up research inte the
go-called Roswall incidént. They have sclicited my views of the research
being done on this vital case by Don Schmitt and Kevin Randle of CUPDS, I
waeld like to go on the record as follows:

{1} I am moat Lavorably impressed wich che time, effort and money they have
put into their research. I know they have made many trips to Mew Mexico and
elgawhare and have managed to locate new witnesses living in the area as well
ag others invelved with transpert of the UFD wreckage and with the cowver-up
gonerally.

(2} 1 have spent time with persons they have interviewed and know these
witneasss think well of tchems.

{3) I appreciate their cooperation with the Fund feor UFO Research’s Crashed
Baucer Project. They have made thelr witnesses, and those witnesoos’
testimony, available, and they have shared cheir infermation and ideas.

(4) Cver the last two years we have seen a great deal of unpleasant
bickering, backbiting and infighting in ufology, Thue I am particularly
pleaged by the excellent working relationship Den and Kevin, who have been
working on a book about the incident, have with Don Berlimer and me, also
preparing a book dus out in 1991. We agree that the recovery of a crashed
SAUCEL, O BauCers, in Hew Mexico in July 1947 is a hiatorie event worthy of
far more investigative efforc tham any btwo persocns can provide., In such
circumatances it is futile to enter inkte competition., That dessnt mean that
all four of us agree on every aspect of the stery. But we certalnly agree
that at least one saucer was recovered, that bodies were found, that there
has been an effective cover-up of these events by the U.5. government, that
wa muat work guickly because we are racing the undertaker, that none of the
arguments made againet the reality of the recovery stand up under serutiny,
and that the witnesses are special people who have not been sesking gain or
notoriaty.

(5) 1 am especially pleased that Kevin and Don have independently validated
the work I began about 15 years ago with my first convermation with Lydia
Eleppy and 12 yeara age when I was the first to speak with Jesse Marcel and
Vern Maltais. It took courage on their part to plunge in and persistence to
continue in the face of considerable opposition from those who either hold o
the foolish belief chat me saucer could have been recovered and covered up or
feel that all the research that ecould have been done was completed a few
WeArs ago,

Stanton T, Friedman, a auclear physicist, is a well-known lecturer, writer and imvessigator.
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Roswell: Anatomy of an investigation

by Mark Rodeghier

mm Mark Rodeghier Is president and scientific
director of CUFOS,

hiz isswe of UK 15 undque, as it is devoted
I almost entirely to a detailed exposition of the
investigative methods and sources that Don
Schmitt and Kevin Randle have used to reconstroet the
Roswell story, In this mtroduction, [ want to explain why
CUFOS (and Schmitt and Randle) felt it necessary 10
present the extremely detailed matedal you will read in
the following pages.

Az sotne JUR readers may know, vatious charges
have been made this year about the guality, originality and
competence of the CUFOS Roswell investigation. These
charges have been made by Bill Moore and Jaime
Shandera and their supporters in both published and
unpublished articles and editorials, ples conversations
they have had with several ufologists. To further compli-
cate matters, a witness whom Schinint and Randle had
located, J. Bond Johnson, has recently changed his
account of his role in the events of July 8, 1947, in Fort
Worth. And by changing his story, he has impugned the
eredibdlity of the CUFOS investigators, since be now
claims that he did photograph the actual debris from the
Roswell crash, in contradiction to the version of events in
“Fort Worth, July 8, 1947: the Cover-up Begins™ (IUR,
March/April, pp. 21-23) by Schimin and REandle, He
makes this claim, amazingly enough, despite the fact that
wii have him on fape saying exactly the opposile several
months beforehand!

To clarify this confusion, o answer the charges that
have been brought against us, and to document the seope
of the CUFDS Roswell investigation, we decided to
publish three detailed articles about our sources and
investigation. We believe in being completely open about
our methods and sources; moreover, if questions are
raised about our investigation, we prefer to confront the
matier directly. We are perfectly willing to let the readers
of IUR decide which version of events is the more likely
and believable, and whose investigation is more complete
and comprehensive. Copies of Kevin Randle’s telephone
records showing his five calls to Johnson, as well as
audiotapes of the actual conversations, are in the CUFDS
files.
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Before concluding, let me add a few remarks about
the art of investigation and the sifting of evidence. Much
history—and in the case of Roswell, ofology is a very
historical diseipline-is written from multiple sources,
with varying versions of events, Historlans reason about
the differences, Are the sources reliable, the stories
consistent internally, the disputed version consonant with
established fact? Then they decide and offer us their best
reconstnuction of historical events,

But what do you do when a witness, seemingly sober
and sane, changes his story and claims that you have
erred? If 1, Bond Johnson's new aceount iz correct, the
Roswell events would be notably dilferent from the
seenntio established by the Schmitt-Randle research, O
course, it’s not impossible that someone should suddenty
of gradually remember a different "troth™ than he said
before, but it cerainly isn'i likely.

Do Schmitt and Randle have to change, beenuse of
this witness, their version of what went on in Fort Waorth
and Roswell on July 8, 19477 They and CUFOS say
absolutely not, and 1o explain how we have reached that
conclusion, the first article, in the detail necessary,
presenis their reasoning and evidence, As vou read i,
recall the comments above about history and sources, and
decide for yourself what version of Johnson's testimony is
most coherent and consonant with other established facts,

The second anticle discusses, in similar dedail, the
charge that our investigation has not been hased upon
original work, and the third presents a long listing of the
sctual sources for the preceding two articles. With that we
close the Boswell porion of the issue, hoping not to hawe
taxed the reader’s patience too severely. Yet given the
level of interest expressed in the Roswell event, 1 expect
that most will find this look behind the cortains into the
Roswell investigation both [ascinating and convincing as
to the scope, originality and competence of our work.
Indeed, in the course of putiing this article together for
IUR, Kevin Randle made additional phone calls to I, Bond
Johnson and Irving Newton and in the process leamed
more about the number, sequence, and provenance of the
Fori Worh photos. =



Roswell: Anatomy of an investigation

by Mark Rodeghier

mm Mark Rodeghiler Iz president and scientific
director of CUFOS,

his izsue of LR is unique, as it is devoted
I almost entirely to a detailed exposition of the
investigative methods and sources that Don
Schmin and Kevin Randle have used 1o reconstroct the
Rosvwell story, In this introduction, [ want to explain why
CUFOS (and Schmitt and Randle) felt it necessary 1o
present the extremely detailed material you will read in
the following pages.

As zorme JUR readers may know, varous charges
have been made this year about the quality, originality and
competence of the CUFOS Roswell investigation. These
charges have been made by Bill Moore and Jaime
Shandern and their supporters in both published and
unpublished anicles and editorials, plus conversations
they have had with several ufologists. To further compli-
cate matters, o withess whotn Schmin and Randle had
located, J. Bond Johnson, has recently changed his
account of his fole in the events of July 8, 1947, in Fort
Worth. And by changing his story, he has impugned the
eredibdlity of the CUFDS investigators, since he now
claims that he did photograph the actual debris from the
Reswell erash, in contradiction to the version of events in
“Fort Worth, July 8, 1947: the Cover-up Begins™ (IUR,
MarchfApril, pp. 21-23) by Schmitt and Randle. He
makes this claim, amazingly enough, despite the fact that
wie have him on tape saying exacily the opposile several
months beforehand!

To clarify thiz confusion, to answer the charpes that
have been brought against us, and to docoment the scope
of the CUFDS Reswell investignton, we decided to
publish three detailed articles ahowt our sources aml
investigation. We believe in being completzly open about
our methods and sources; moreover, if questions are
raised aboul our investigation, we prefer to confront the
matter directly. We are perfectly willing to let the readers
of IUR decide which version of events is the more likely
and believable, and whose investigation is more complete
and comprehensive. Copies of Kevin Randle’s telephone
records showing his five calls to Johnson, as well as
awdiotapes of the sctual conversations, are in the CUFDS
files,
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Before concluding, let me add a few remarks about
the art of investigation and the sifting of evidence, Much
history—and i the case of Roswell, ufology is a very
historical discipline—is written from multiple sourees,
with varying versions of events. Historians reason about
the differences, Are the sources reliable, the sioties
consistent internally, the disputed version consonant with
established fact? Then they decide and offer us their best
reconstruction of historical events.

But what do you do when a withess, seemingly sober
and sane, changes his story and claims that you have
erred? I J. Bond Johnson's new account i eomrect, the
Roswell evenis would be notably different from the
scenario established by the Schmitt-Randle research, OF
course, it’s not impossible that someone should suddenly
of gradually remember a different “troth™ than he said
before, but it certainly isn'i likely.

Do Schmitt and Randle have fo change, beeause of
thiz witness, their version of what went on in Fort Worth
and Roswell on July 8, 19477 They and CUROS say
ahsolutely not, and 1o explain how we have reached that
eonclusion, the first article, in the detail necessary,
presents their reasoning and evidence, As you read it
recall the comments above about history and sources, and
decide for yourself what version of Johnson's testimony is
mesl coherent and consonant with other established facts,

The second article discusses, in similar detail, the
charge that our investigation has not been hased upon
original work, and the third presents a long listing of the
actual sources for the preceding two articles. With that we
close the Roswell portion of the issue, hoping not to kave
taxed the reader’s paticnce too severely. Yet glven the
level of interest expressed in the Roswell event, T expect
that most will find this look behind the curtains into the
Roswell investigation both fascinating and convincing as
to the scope, originality and competence of our work.
Indeed, in the course of putting this article topether for
IUR, Kevin Randle made additional phone calls to . Bond
Johtson and Irving Newton and in the process leamed
more ahout the number, sequence, and provenance of the
Fori Worth photos. =



FROM THE DESK OF
STANTON T. FRIEDMAN

Toe Ehe readers of TUR:

Crver the last few monthe I have had inguiries from a number of pereocns who
know how much I was involved in the initial and follow-up research into the
go-called Roswell incident. They have sclicited my views of the research
being done cn this vital case by Don Schmitt and Kevin Randle of CUPSS, I
would like to go on the record as follows:

{1} I am most Eavorably impressed with the cime, effort and money they have
put inte their research, I know they have made many trips to MNew Mexiceo and
elsewhere and have mansged toc locate new witnesses living in the area as wall
as others involwed with transport ef the UFD wreckage and with the COVer -up
ganarally,

12} I have spent time with per=sons they have interviewsd and know these
witnesaes think well of them.

$3} I appreciate their cooperatlion with the Fund for UFD Research's Crashed
Zaucer Project. They have made their witnesses, and those wlthesses®
teabimony, awvailable, and thew have shared their information and ideas.

(4] Ower the last two years we have sesn a great deal of unpleasant
bickering, backbiting and infighting in ufelogy. Thus I am particularly
pleased by the excellent working relationship Don and Kevin, who have been
working on a book about the incident, have with Don Berliner and me, also
preparing a book dus out in 1%31. We agree that the recovary af a crashed
SAUCEr, O 8aucers, in New Mexicoe in July 1947 is a historic event warthy of
far more investigative effort than any two persons can previde. Inm such
circumetances it is futile to enter into competition. That doesn't mean thakb
all four of us agree on every aspect of the story. Buc we certainly agres
that at least one ssucer was recovered, thakt bodies were found, that there
has been an effective cover-up of these eventa by che 0.3, govarnment, that
wa misb work guickly because we are racing the undertaker, that none of the
arguments made against the realicy of the recovery atand up under scrutimy,
and that the witnesees are special pecple who have not been seaking gain or
notoriety.

(5} I am sapecially pleased that Kevin and Den heave independently wvalidated
the work I began about 15 years age with my First conversation with Lydia
Sleppy and 12 years ago when I was the first to gpeak with Jesse Marcel and
Vern Maltais. Ikt took courage on thelr part to plunge in and peErsistance to
continue in the face of considerable cppoeition from those who either hold ko
the foclish belief that no ssucer could have been recovered and covered up or
feel that all the research that could have been done was completed a few
Years ago.

Stanton T, Friedman, a nuclear physicist, is @ well-known lecturer, writer and investigator,
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The Fort Worth press conference:
The J. Bond Johnson connection

by Don Schmitt and Kevin D. Randle

mm Don Schmitt, CUFOS director of special
investigations, and Kevin D. Randle, a profes-
slonal writer and former Air Force intelligence
officer, are authors of Roswell, to be published in
1891. This and the two articles that follow are
responses to recent criticisms of the CUFDS
Investigation of the Roswell incident,

ho would have thought that an incident

outside the normal flow of the events at

Roswell would now generale more contro-
versy than the crash itself? Who would have thought that
a new witness uncovered by us in the course of our
investigation would now change his story significantly?
Who would have thought that we would have to impeach
ouUr 0wWn witness to protect the integrity of our research
afidd the eredibility of our work?

These are the unforiunate circomstances we now face,
after a series of public and private assaults on our integrity
and competence a5 investigatiors. We must now go inio
detail, extreme detail, about the so-called press confer-
ences in Fort Worth on July 8, 1947, dealt with originally
in our “Fort Worth, July 8, 19%47: The Cover-up Begins™
(fUR, MarchyApril). (According to the dictionary, a press
conference ks the meeting of any celebrity or official with
several members of the press.)

And we must trace the path that led us w our discov-
eries about the events of July & so that readers will
understand how we came lo our paricular conclusions
about what did and did not happen on that important day
in the history of the UFD phenomenon.

We first learned of 1, (James) Bond Johnson while
trying to track down the photographs taken of Brig. Gen.
Roger Ramey in his office at 8th Air Force Headquarters
in Fort Worth, Texas, on July B, 1947, We leamed that the
Fort Worth Srar-Telegram, for which Johnson worked,
had tumed its photo files over to the Special Collections
Division of the University of Texas at Arlington Library.

When we called there, we leamed that we wene not
the first to ask for those specific photographs. In fact,
Betsy Hudon said that she had talked with a man who
claimed he had taken the pletores. We realized that this
man would be a particularly valuable wimess, another
source who was in BEamey's office during that critical

July 8 period. He could tell us what Ramey said, what he
did, and what he observed.

Hudon did not want to violate the man’s privacy bat
did say she would forward a letter to him from us, Then, if
he wanted, he could call us. We quickly sent off a letter
explaining that we were researching the Roswell crash
and expressing a desire to speak with him.

1. Bond Johnson called shortly after receiving the
letter, He was excited about the event now and said that
he had not spoken 1o any investigators in the past. The
first long interview with Johnson, lasting 40 minutes, ook

| place on February 27, 1989, With Johnson's consent, we

recorded that call. Copies of the tapes and the transeripis
are on file at the CUFOS offices. A transcript of part of
that interview follows,

CUFOE: You took the pictures of Marcel and the
guys with the wreckage?

JBJ: 1 ook the pictare with Gen. Ramey and the
wreckage. [It now appears that Johnson actually ook four
phatos, three of which, Figs. 3-5, are shown here.] Gen.
Eamey was the commander of the 20th Air Foree at that
time, Or maybe not the 20th, maybe the 15th,

CUFOS; 1 think it was actually the 8th Air Force at
that time.

JEJ: 1 think that"s not right. [Tt was, in fact, the &th
Air Force,] T have the information anyway. 1 went to
Texas around Christmas just before and went down to the
newspaper and they tumed me over to the library and T
found and went back in the microfiche. [ found the
pictures, Interesting. | booked for the— they had tumed
the negatives from those years over to UTA [University of
Texas at Arlington] where you had contacted —

CUFOS: 1 found that out as well.

JBJ: They, interestingly, they could not find the
negatives that T had taken. They had disappeared which is
kind of interesting, [Actually, some of the negatives are
on file at the library.] But of course [ got copies from the
paper. It ran in both the moming and aftermoon editions.

CUFOS: That was the Star-Telegram.

JBJ: The Star-Telegram. The interesting things that
you can gef into, that vou may know about . . . oh, those
pictures have been used on a couple of TV shows. . . . One
was Star Trek . ., no, Star . . . fn Search of, which
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Fig. I. Maj. fezse Marcel and the alleged Romwell debris, moss
likely raken by Maj. Charles A. Cavhon, the Fort Worth PICE
Dorted lines indicate the dimensions of the cropped phote (n
Berlitz and Moore's The Roswell Incident, Credir: For Warth
Star-Telegram Phorograph Collection, Special Collecrions
Divizton, The University of Texas af Ariingron Libraries,

Leonard Nimoy was the host of. [Johnson®s photos were
n used on fa Search off] And [ was siliing watching the
TV and it popped up and showed this picture and oh,
there's my picture. That kind of thing. Then another time
it waz on ABC, They had done a similar sort of thing and T |
was going to . . . Alan Landshurg puts together the In
Search of and be invited me over to a party at his house
and this major was going to be there, the one from
Raoswell,

CUFOS: Marce]?

JBI: Iz he the one that got the—

CUFOS: He was the one that went out and picked up
the material.

JBJ: Marcel, yes. He has a son. I saw the son inter-
viewed on TV recently.

CUFOS: Yeah, that is exactly right.

JBI: The son said interesting things, That the father
catme home and told us about the bodies and so forth,
lAccording to Jesse Marcel, Jr., his father never men-
ticned bodies.] And then said that we can't talk about or
don’t tell anybody and so forth.

CUFOS: Marcel mentioned bodies?

JEI: Mo, the son.
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Fig. & Second photo of Marcel, also probably taken by Coashor
“We even tried making a dent in it with a 18-pound sledge

hammrer, and there was still me denr _ | | " —Majior Jesse A.
Marcel (The Roswall Incldent). Credit; Port Wonh Siar-
Telegram Photograph Collection, Spectal Collections Division,
The Umiversity of Texas af Arlirgion Libraries,

CUFOS; Marcel says that his father mentioned
bodies?
JES: Came home and old us about it [The informa-

| tion about the bodies here is inaccurate.] My interesting

part of this, having taken the picture and now going back
and looking at the picture because 1 didn't have a copy of
it ... is that [ don’t kmow whether the Air Force was
pulling a hoax or not. It looks like a kite. There was
another thing that the gal from UTA gaveme . . . there is a
negative they have of Ramey looking at this my-wind
[sle] kite or something and it was printed in the paper a
couple of days earlier. [In fact, this is one of the photos
Johnson took. There is no evidence that Ramey was
photographed with a Rawin target device earlier. ]

CUFOS: Marcel is ordered off Roswell and they load
the material into a B-19 and flew it to Fort Worth for

| Bamey o look at.

JBJ: That's when I got Into it because the AP picked
up that they were flying it down there, And 1 walked into
the Star-Telegram. I was primarily a reporter bt I had a
camera, Speed-Graphic, that I carried in my car. T worked

night police. | was a back-up photographer. The city
editor came over and said, “Bond, you got your camern 7™
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Fig. 3. A J. Bond Sohnson phoro of Gen. Ramey with the alleged
Roswell debris, *Bord fouched the foil-like marerial and
discavered har i was very light, bur rigid, por like anytking he
wias fremilior with. He acked the gereral what i war and Ramey
armwered sometling to the gffect thai be didn 't keow whar in
hell fr was, ® [ “Three Howrs Thar Sheok the Press ®) Credis; Fort
Worth Star-Telegram Photograph Collecrion, Special
Collectiors Division, The University of Texas ar Arlington
Libraries,

And T said ves and he safd, "Ger out to General BEamey's
office. They ve got a flying saucer and they*re bringing it
froin Boswell,” And they were flying it down there.

CUFOS: 1 think what happened was that they realized
what they had, They realized that it was something
extremely unusual. That it really was an alien spacecrafl.
Then Ramey comes up with this weather-balloon non-
ECOSE.

JBI: Right, That was g koax, Irhink, That's when
they called and what [ saw. I think [ was duped. [Empha-
sis wdded.]

CLUFOS: Yes, You and all the rest of the reporers
were duped.

JES: That we saw . . . that they came up with this
weither-balloon thing as an added . . . that’s my feeling. [
rever gaw the real stnff [Emphasis added.]

CUFOS: Okay.

JEI: Then they came oul with that story almost
simultaneously [about] the weather-balloon thing.

Fig. 4, Joknson s first plhoto of Ramey and DuBoge, ;™. they
otk smiled thar self conscious kind of smile thar this was an
important picture and that they were somehow more important
Jfor being im . ® [ "Three Hours That Shook the Press ™) “Gen.
Ramey and his adivtant [5ic] Col. DuBose posirg with this
subgitrute “wreckage. " " (The Roswell Incident) Credif; Fort
Wonh Star-Telegram Phofograph Collection, Special
Collections Diviston, The University of Texzs af Arlingron
Libraries

CUFOS: They came out with a weather-balloon story
from Circleville, Ohio, where it really was a weather
balloomn. And the local sherfl identified it I couldn™t
believe that a sheriff could identify this thing and the
intelligence officer of a bomb group wouldn't be able o,

JBI: And it"s imeresting that if it was a ray-wind [sic]
or a balloon that the commander of Roswell wouldn't
have known that and that—

CUFOS: The intelligence officer should have known
that.

JEI; That's right but they had to get some warrant
officer to chop on it at Carswell. [Technically it was the
Fort Worth Army Air Field.] What | want to find now iz
that negative and see what that pictore is that happened 1o
be in the paper just a couple of days sooner with Ramey
looking at the weather balloon. 1 have one identified on
the caption of Ramey looking at it and it was published in
the Star-Telegram. That's from the Srar-Telegram file that
s in Arlington [Texas). [The photo he thought to ba of
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Flg. 5. Johnson's secord photo of Ramey
aned DuBoxe. “A second pichire of Ramey
and DiuBose was taken and this fime they
weren 't amiling, They looked very grim, ©
{ “Three Hours That Shook the Press™)
Credit; J. Bond Johknson.

Flg. 6. Warrapr Officer
Trving Nevivor with the
alleged Roswell debris,
“What ke [Mewton)
icdentifind was handed ro
Trim; it was nor what was on
Ramey's floor, " { “Three
Hours That Shook the
Press®) Credie: UFIL




Eamey taken eatlier is in reality one of his own photo-
graphs. There was no picture of Ramey and & Rawin
tatget balloon in the paper prior o July 8.]

CUFDS: 5o you've been through the files at Arling-
ton?

J&J: No, no. I'm just talking to the same girl.

CUFOS: Okay.

JBJ: She sent me the list for all Ramey's photographs
at the Star-Telegram. At first T didn’t know how 1o
identify them. She sent a st of all the Bamey pictures but
mine was nol incleded.

CUFOS: She's doing the same thing for me because |
had asked her about Bamey and that stuff. [ said, “How
about Marcel?™ And she said that the other fellow didn't
know about Marcel. 5o I thought maybe the picture . . .
["ve got & couple of questions that T need 1o ask you that
ight help me out later on. Is there any way that you
could find out who would have been at the first press
conference and taken the other pictures of Marcel? [Fig. 1
and Fig, 2.]

JBI: Mever heard of that, They ran in the Star-
Telegram?

CUFOS: There are pletures of Marcel —

JEF: T diivin®t knvover about that at the time and T ean®
imagine that T wouldn 't have.

CUFOS: There's a picture of him holding the
wreckage. There's a picture of Marcel,

JBI: You're sure that’s not Bamey.

CUFOS: No, it"s Marcel. It"s Marcel holding the
wreckage, [According to Berlitz and Moore] Marcel said
later that if you see the pictures of him in Ramey's office
it"s the real wreckage and if you see Ramey and his aide,
11"s the balloon, Marcel knew there wers two sets of
pictures, That's why I suspected there were tao press
conferences, One when the stuff first arrived and one—

JBJ: When [ went there, there was no press confer-
ence. I just went out and Ramey was there and the stuff
wis seattered | . . spread out on the floor in his office. He
had a big office as most of them do. And he went over and
T posed him looking af it, squatting down, holding the
stuff,

CUFOS: What Marcel said was that they wouldn't let
the photographers in the room when he was there, They
had the suff on the foor and there's & picture of him
erouched, holding up a piece that looks, basically, like a
white sheet of paper. You can't sce any detail on it. It"s
different than the pictures of Ramey holding the weather
balloon stuff, [The picture in The Roswell Incident, by
Charies Berlitz and and Willism Moose (New York:
Grossel and Dunlap, 19800 looks differcnt from the
pictares of the material showing Ramey and Col. Thomas
1. DuBoge, It apparently has been cropped for that
purpose, See Fig. 1.]

JEI: Have you seen that picture?

CUFOS: Thave a copy of the pleture.

JEJ: That's the one [ took. Of Ramey.

CUFOS: Did you only take one pieture?

JBJ: T ook one, T had one holder. 1took. . . they
were essentially duplicates. T took two shots, T just had
ane holder. That"s all T had with me. [He actually had two
holders and took four photos.

CLUFOS: So you used all your film.

JBJ: That was it. | got back at the newspaper, The
newspapers had godfen excited, The AP had sent over a
portable wire photo transmitter and 1 got & call from
Blackthom or whatever or all the newsphoto people.
Everybody wanied an exclusive and 1°d taken two [i.e.,
four] pleces of film,

CUFOS: Your big chanee for fame and you blew it.

JBJ: Exactly. But it was not an exciting thing. fr was
Just a bunch of garbage anyway, [Emphasis added. ]

CUFOS: Apparently there was a press conference
held when the stuff first amrived.

JBI; Okay.,

CLUFOS: Marcel was s1ill there,

JBJ: 1 don't know who would have been at the press
conference.

CUFOS: There were reparters there.

JEI: They weren't from our paper.

CUFOS: The pictures are from the Star- Telegram.

JBI; Okay.

CUFOS: That's what it says. | had Betsy [Hudon of
UTA] looking for the pictures as well. She's sending me
the list too. T figure someone i going o go to Fort Worth
to look through them to find out if the sruff is really
missing. | have seen— I"ve gol one picture and it's a very
bad copy of Marcel holding the wreckage. I've seen
pictures of Ramey with the stuff, Look magazine did
something in 1966 and talked about this; it showed Ramey
holding the stuff. [Fig. 6; it*s really a picture of Irving
Mewtan with the debris. Newton was one of the weather
officers at Fort Worth and was the one who identified it as
i Rawin target device for Ramey.]

JBJ: Tt might be my picture. He was squatting down
and looking at it It was on the floor in hiz office, There
were no other reporters there. T went in and 1 don™t
remember. | think there was some aide there,

CLUFOS: His aide was there,

JBEF Okay. And that™s all I think were there, 1 ook
the two pictures and then they sald— bur that time they
said, ol we 've found our what it is and you know, §t's g
weather balloon and so forth. No big deal, [Emphasis
added.] T didn't press it. | accepted that. 1 was rather
naive. | acoepted it

CUFOS: Evervbody did.

JBJ: T had no reason (o come on then and say, “oh,
you've got 1o be lying.”

CUFOSE: Why couldn’t your intelligence officer
identify this?

JSBS: See, | was not pressing him,

CUFQS: Okay. So you went to Ramey's office, you
saw the wreckage, you took the two pictures, you talked
to Ramey, he said it's a weather balloon, you wenl back
to—
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JBJ: The Star-Telegram and gave them the wet prints
of the thing. They wanted them right out. T went in and
developed them and gave them wet prints, And I wrote—

CUFOS: And you don’t kmow of any other phato-
graphs taken at the Star-Telegram of Marce] when he first
got there or anything like that?

JBI: T never have heard that mentioned.

CUFOS: 1 wonder if they got the newspaper wrong.
How about the cihet newspapers in the area like the
Dallas—

JBI: The Forr Wortk Press was the only other one,

CUFOS: The Dallas Morning News—

JBJ: They would not have been over there. 1 don't
think they came. I never saw any other pictures at that
time. They wouldn't have been 80 anxious (o get mine if
they had had any others, Particularly if they had some
earlier. When I got back there they . | . there were a whole
bunch of people there, We didn’t nomally send wire
photo directly. They had . . . in fact they went out of
Dallas. And they had to send over . . . any tme they
wanted something they d have to send over a portable
transmitter. That's what they had done just while I had
gOne out o, . .

CUFOS: The Dallas paper did,

JBI: Mo, the AP did, Then we put it right on the air
from there. Because we were late |, . . I was lale in the
afternoon. On the east eoast it would have been deadline
tinwe, And that's why they wanted it . . . for the New York
papers and all. That"s why they were rushing me. This is
towands the end of the day.

CUFOS: [According to Berlitz and Moore] Marcel
subsequently said that if you've got the pictures with me
in them, then it’s of the sctual wreckage. If you've got
Gen. Ramey it’s the weather balloon. So abviowsly there
was another photographer at Ramey's office at some time.

JEF; | don't know who that would have been. Let me
look at my UFO file. T have Ramey squatting down.
That's July 10 and then there's a consolidated news story
right by it from news dispatches. “Fireballs Dim Disc over
Texas.™ And then I have the other one. On Sunday, July &,
the front page of the Star-Telegram: “Sky Mystery
Mounts as More Flying Discs Are Sighted All over the
Country.” It menfions Texos and New Mexico and
Washington and Oregon. But it does say New Mexico in
that article. And then on July 7, Monday, on the front page
again, “Flying Discs Cavort All over 1,5, as Mystery
Continues to Mount,” Seven-nine [July 9] iz my story on
the front page that was in earlier thar day. [Emphasis
added.] That's when they debunked it. Oh, [paraphrasing]
ohject found at Roswell was stripped of its glamour as
flying disc by a Fort Worth Army Air Field weather
officer late Tuesday . . . identified as a weather balloo,
Warmant Officer Irving Newton from Medford, Wisconsin,
weather forecaster at the base, said the object was a my-
wind target used 1o determine the direction of wind at high
altitudes. Hurried home and dug up the remnants and so
farth. It had been found three weeks previously by a New
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Mexican rancher, W'. W. Brazel on his propery 85 miles
northwest of Roswell and thiry miles from the nearest
telephone. He had no radio and so forth.

CUFOS: What we've got 1o do is find the name of the
photographer whao ook the picture of Marcel. From what
you're saying, it wouldn't be a Star-Telegram picture.
You were the only reporter, photographer, who went out
there.

JEI: Yes, rght.

We finished the interview with some discossion about
other crashes that have been reported, for example those
at Del Rio, Texas, and Kingman, Arizons, Johnson then
azked if we could send him some material and we agreed
to put something together for him.

Naturally there were additional questions to be asked,
But some of the information that Johnson gave us contra-
dicted earlier printed accounts. He said there was no press
conference in Fort Worth and that he was the anly reporter
there 1o take pictures; had there been a real conference
later, he would have been the one assigned to attend it.

The problem we had was trying to fit Johnson's
account in with what Berlitz and Moore had reported in
their book. They described & press conference with
numerous reporters who also took pictures of the aciual
wreckage, a8 well as the substituted balloon. According to
their version of events, Marcel stated that if it was himseIf
in the pictures, then these were of some of the less spec-
tacular wreckage, and if it was anyone else, it was the
weather halloon,

Later we leamed that the real wreckage had never
been photographed at Fort Worth by any members of the
press. According to testimany, Mareel said that the few
pieces he had brought from Roswell had been spread out
ofi Ramey's desk. The general, waniing to sce exactly
where the craft had crashed, took Marcel to the map room.
When they retumed, the real wreekage was gone, replaced
by the weather balloon. There was no real wreckage
available when Johnson or any other reporiers armived.

Omn March 24, 1989, we called Johnson again. We
wanted to clarify some of the points raised in the first
interview. Although the call lasted 44 minutes according
to our phone bills, very little of it related to the press
conference in Fort Worth. A complete copy of the tape is
in the Center files.

CUFOS: Could you just sort of tell me what you
did— what transpired when your editor gave you the as-
signment to go out to the base?

JBS: Okay. My name is initial I. Bond, it's also
James Bond Johnson. I'm the original. T was a reporter
and backap photographer for the Fort Worth Star-
Telegram in July of 1947 after having served in the Air
Corps as a pilot-cmdet in World War I

On Tuesday, July &, 1947, late in the afternoon, |
retumed from an assignment to my office in the eity room
of the Fort Worth Star-Telegram, which was hoth a



moming and aflemoon newspaper. My city editor of the
moming paper ran over and said, “Bond, have you got
vour camera?” I said ves, [ hoad it in my car. | had a four-
by-five Speed Graphic that I had bought recently and I
kept it in the car because [ was working nights and police
and so forth and had it at the ready. He said go out to Gen.
Ramey’s office and . . . He said they*ve got something
there and to get a picture. 1 don't now recall what he
called it. He said they ve flown something down . . . 1
don"t think he called it something . . . he gave it a name
because | was kind of prepared for what [ was going o
sec. He said something ermshed out there or whatever and
they pe— we just got an alert on the AP wine . ., though it
might have been the UPI [He means the United Press; the
UPT wasn't formed until 1958.] . . . that the Air Force or
the Air Corps as it was called then s flying it down from
Roswell on orders from Gen. Ramey. Tt would be located
in his office. It was or would be by the time I got out
there,
So 1 drove directly 1o Carswell and my recollections
are now | went in and 1 opened my carrying ease with my
Graphic and 1 had brought just one holder with me with
iwo pieces of the four-by-five film. [In an interview an
December 23, 1990, Johnson told us be had vao holders
and four pieces of film.] Black and white of course. T
posed Gen, Ramey with this debris piled in the middle of
his rather large and plush office, It seemed incongruous to
have this smelly garbage piled up on the floor . . . spread
oul on the floor of this rather plush, bg office that was
probably, oh, 16 by 20 at least.

| pozed Gen. Ramey with this debris. Ar thar time
wals briefed on the idea that it was not a flving disc as first
reported but in fact was a weather balloon that had
crashed, [Emphasis added.] [ retumed o my office. [ was
met by @ barrage of people that were unknown to me,
These were people who had come over from Dallas. In
those days, any time we had—we normally bused any
prints that we were sending to the AP, we bused them to
Dallas o be transmitted on the wire photo machines, We
had a recedver but not a sender in Fort Worh in those
days. And no faxes,

S0 Cullen Greene, who was my city editor, said
“Bond, give us a wet print,” which was not unusual. I
nortmally operated on a very short time span at night or
whatever . . . on an sccident of a murder or whalever
which [ usually wound up taking pictures of. And, ah, he
aaid, "Give us a wet print.” 5o [ went in. They had
brought up a portable wire photo transmitter and had it set
up there in the newsroom, There was some assored
people around there.

CUFOS: Other reportersT?

JEBI: Mo, these were technicians that had come over
in the time that it had taken me to drive out to Carswell
and interview Gen. Ramey, get briefed and come back to
the office. They had come from Dallas and set up this wire
photo machine, They were people | did not know. They

were AP personmel.

CUFOS: Did you talk to Gen, Ramey very long?

JBJ: No. There wasn't much to say. As I remember, [
probably wasn't there more than 20 minutes which was
not unusual. Generals are pretty busy. You get inand 1
didn’t have a whole Iot to question him on, This was a
very new thing because the very first article T saw n going
back and researching it much later—the first story 1 found
in the paper was July 6. -

I went in and developed those two [four] pictures and
they were just identical almost |Figs. 3-5]. T came out
with 8-by- 10 wet prints and gave them to our photo
people and they said thank you and by that time the
telephone operator gave me a whole stack of messapes
that had come from all over the country, Everybody—
photo services like Blackthomn wanted exclusive photos
and T could have retired very carly. [ had those teo
pictures 5o I had nothing to sell, | printed those two and
that was it. The picture—it was too late in the day as [
remember it. They didn’t run it in the moming paper but
they did run it the next afterncon and the following
moming. Because the photopraphs T have now are—it ran
on the moming of Tuly 10 and the aftemnoon of July 9. It is
entirely possible that I was brigfed by the PIO. [Emphasis
added. ] [Johnson s second photo, one of Gen, Ramey
alone, appeared in the Star-Telegram on July 10; it is not
reproduced here.

Omn August 4, after a couple of letters, we again spoke
with Johnson for 28 minutes. Unformnately, the tape
malfunctioned so that all we have of that conversation are
the notes we took. We simply wanted to go over some of
the things again and check the exact sequence. We
weren 't concerned. All the information, with one minor
exception, was on the other tapes,

Johnson said that it was late in the afllemoon when he
went 1 Ramey”s office. He mentioned that he was mildly
surprised that they were ready for him when he arrived,
The front gate had been told he would be coming and
there was a pass waiting there. He was sent (o Ramey's
office and shown the weather balloon. He said that It
smelled of bumed rubber and wondered why it was so
important that they would bring it up to the general's
office.
Johnson said that it took him about 30 mimtes o get
to the office after he had been alerted. They had received a
teletype message that the material was on its way to
Ramey. When he got there, the balloon was spread out on
the floor, filling up one part of the room. He took his
photos of if, spoke with the general, and then left,

That, of course, was not our last contact with
Johnson. We spoke with him again in November and
December and then, finally, on May 28, 1990. Suddenly,
his story was different. Now Ramey had told him at the
wvery start that he—Ramey—didn't know what the
wreckage was. Johnson now thought he had photographed
the real wreckage and that the balloon answer did not
surface until afier Johnson retumed to the newspaper,
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Again we laped the conversation. In the beginning of
the comversation, we discussed the pichures that were
taken in Ramey's office, We were positive that all the
pictures taken there showed the weather balloon which
had been substituted while Bamey and Mareel were out of
the office. [That was obviously done on Bamey's orders.)

JEI Why would Eamey have 1old me he didn't know
what it wasT
CLUFOS: T have no idea,

JEI: I was kind of like— [ don't recall the words, but |

when 1 went back they asked me, "What did he say it
wasT" He [Eamey] didn’t have any idea.

CUFOS: In the story you wrote you sald it was i
weather balloon. '

JAT: [Long pause.] Well, T didn't know that; 1 don't
know what [ wrote, Unless that was what you were just
saying. [Long pause.] Because [ didn’t know that; 1 don't
vel know that, And I'd have o look at one and see if it
looked like it 1o me. I don’t know what size they are—

CUFOS: They did this because the debrz bhad been
queated as being tom up and wrecked. They fpped the
thing apart when they broaght it into Ramey's office so it
grossly resembled the debrs they had a1 Roswell.

JBJ: | remember that after T got out of the darkroom
they had several messages to call prople. That™s what took
up my time. I didn’t even write an anticle then. Bul it was
shortly after that that they received this cover story.

CUFO3: The cover story wenl oul right away.

JBI; They did not have it when | got back until after
had developed the pichures because then there would have
been no urgency.

CUFOE; What you'd said to me was, “These were
people who had come over from Dallas, Tn those days,
any time we had . . . we normally bused any prints that we
were sending 1o the AP, we bused them 1o Dallas 1o be
transmilled on the wire photo machine. We had a recejver
bt ned & sender in Fort Worth in those days, And no
faxes.™

JBI T would not have said bus unless that was just a
slip of the tongue.

CUFOS: That may well be. Then it talked about they
had come from Dallas and they set up the poriable,

JEI: Yes, they had come from Dallas. These were the
technicians. These were people T didn®n know. They were
pushing me.

With that we discussed the genesis of the ferm fying
saucer and some of the technology available during the
late 19405, Johnson mentioned that the Star-Telegram did
a morming radio program from the news room when: the
late-breaking stories were read for the listeners. But then
we retumed (o the discussion of the [actual emors that
Johnzon now claimed had erept inlo our article,

JEI That was [a] factual error that Bamey, you said
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in here [FUR], that Ramey told me that 1t was o weather
balloon.

CUFOS: Thats what you told me.

JEI: Ko, That was in error because—

CLUFOS: That's what you told me.

JBJ: Okay. He didn't know because [ remember
asking him and he shrogged and he said, kinds like, “How
the hell should T know?™ 5

CUFOS: You told me originally that Ramey told you
il was a weather balloon.

JEEWell, Twouldn 't have becauss even when we
got back to the office and I know he didn*t say that, The
facts of the other people, They were very excited and
anxious to get that and get it on the air and they were, ah,
o gt it transmitled. That's why | had to rush it out 50
quickly, to give them a wet print and, ah, they were on the
deadline of the East Coast with the— it was late in the day
and they're three hours later [sic]. This is what | remem-
ber talking about, and they had an East Coast deadling,

But they didn't at that time know, there had been no
cover story. That came somme time later before I lefl the
office. T think T nommally left there about seven or seven-
thirty unless [ went to a dinner meeting to cover that or
something.

Okay, because Ramey, whatever, when he explained
about the weather balloon, came along afier.

CUFOS: You said o me and I quote exactly from our
March 24 interview. You said 1o me, *I posed General
Bamey with this debriz. Ar that time | was briefed on the
idea that it was not a flying disc as first reported but in
fnet was a weather balloon that had crashed.”™ That®s
exactly what you fold me on the tape so if there is a
factual error it"s because I was going with what you told
me.

JBI; Okay. Well. | don't know, 1 didn’t make a
recording of it I°d like to hear it. Ah, but, that wouldn't
have figured. | wouldn't have said that,

CUFOS: That's expetly what vou said 1o me.

JET; Okay.

CLFOS: Exactly,

There are other ways o verify what happened in
Ramey's office that day.

Walter Haut, the Roswell P10, released the original
press statement about the recovery of a flving dise.
According to Haul, ®As soon as he [Marcel] retumed from
Fort Worth, he complained that he was ondered 1o be
photographed in the staged balloon pictures while in
Ramey's office.”

Irving Mewton, the weather officer, reported that he
saw it and that it was nothing more than a Rawin target
device. He was called in to identify it for the assembled
reporers—ihe very reponers that Johnson said wers not
there.

Jesse Marcel, in taped inferviews with Stan Friedman,
talked about the reporters being there too. How can we
explain the difference between what Johnson claimed and



whal cthers have said?

Quite simple. Johnson never saw the other reporters.
He went to Ramey’s office long after the real materal was
removed. Ramey explained it as o weather balloon.
Johnson took his four pictures and then lefit, driving back
i the newspaper office.

MNow, Johnson is convinced that he saw and photo-
graphed the real debris. He asked us in August 1989
whether we thought it could have been the real stuff. This
was our first indication that Johnson was beginning o
change his story. Mo longer was he sure that it was the
weather balloon. Mow he wanted to know if it couldn™t
have been the real thing. We replied, as we have all along,
that it wasn't. The real debris had not begn photographed
in Bamey's office.

In The Roswell Incident, Berlitz and Moore, in an
imterview with Marcel, claim that Marcel 1old them:
“There was half a B-29-ful outside. General Ramey
allowed some members of the press in to ke a picture of
this stuff. They took one [emphasis added] picture of me
on the floot holding up some of the less-interesting
metallic debris. The press was allowed to photopraph this,
but were not allowed far enough into the room o touch it
The stuff in that one [emphasis added] photo was pieces
of the actual stuff we had found. It was not a staged pholo,
Later, they cleared out our wreckage and substituted some
of their own. Then they allowed more photos, Those
photos were taken while the actual wreckage was already
on its way to Wright Field, [ was not in these.”™ {The
Roswell Incident, pp. 67-68.)

There are major problems with that statement
attributed to Marcel. First, there was not ong photo of
Marcel, but two, The single photo published in the hook
was cropped (see Fig. 1) in such a way that the majority of
the wreckage, spread out on the floor, was not visible,
Had it been, it would have been obvious o anyone that
the debris in that pleiure was the same a5 the debriz in the
other photos,

Second, in o transcript that Bill Moore provided of his
February 1979 interview with Jesse Marcel Sr., it now
reads, “There was half a B-29 full outside. General [Roger
Maxwell] Ramey allowed the press in to take TWO
pictures of this stuff, f was in one, and ke and Col
DuBose were in the other [emphasis added]. The press
wis allowed to photograph this, but weren't allowed far
enough into the room to touch it. The stuff in the
FHOTOS was the actual stuff we found. THESE WERE
not “staged” photos,”

Third, in their article “Three Hours That Shook the
Press,” Focus, new series, Vol. 5, nos, 4-6, June 30, 1990,
Jaime Shanders and Moone write: “In his interview with
Moaore (The Roswell Incident) Maj. Marcel mainiained
that the debris in the two photos with him is the real
stufl™”

And fourth, in their editorial *Enough Is Too Much,*
Focus, new series, Vol, 5, nos. 7-9, September 30, 1990,
Shandera and Moore again quote Marcel. “They took one

|emphasis added] picture of me on the floor holding up
some of the actual stuff we found. Tt was not a staged
photo. Later, they cleared out our wreckage and substi-
tuted sotme of their cam.”

The question is: which quote is accurate? The

| numbers of photos taken of Marce] changes, and then
| other officers are added 1o the list of those photographed

with the debris. And it suggests that Marcel was photo-
graphed either with the real material, as was everyone
else, or with none of it, including the photo that was
alleged by Berlitz and Moore to show the real material.

Theugh the photographs ceainly speak for them-
selves, are there other witnesses to the aclivities in
Ramey’s office on that day? Marcel, unfortunately, died in
1986. But there are others who still live and who can
testify about those activities,

Johnson, of course, was one of them. A copy of one
photo, available through the Bettman Archives (902
Broadway, New York, NY 10010), gives the cutline that
appeared on the pictures he ook, According to that,
“Brigadier General Roger M. Ramey, Commanding
General of 8th Airforee [sic], and Col. Thomas J. DuBose,
Bth Airforee Chief of Staff, identify metallic fragments
found near Roswell, N. Mex. as a rywin [sic] high
altitude sounding device used by airforce and weather
bureau 1o determine wind velocity and direction, and not &
flying disc. Phodo by J. Bond Johnson, 11:59 PM CST.™

That, and his original testimony that he was tald it
was 8 weather balloon, seem to rule out the possibility he
saw the real debris and was allowed 1o photograph it. Now
he ¢laims that if we report this fact he will deny it He
claims that when he got back to the office, he didn"t know
what it was, Ramey didn’t know. It wasn't until later that
the answer was handed out to reporters.

Again, can we prove herwise? If Johnson now
denies he snid those things to us, is it his word against
ours, and his word against his own on the tape, or is there
maore evidence that can be brought 1o bear?

There is indeed. Trving Newton was there on JTuly &,
1947, In o interview with Newton, condueted after we'd
talked with Johnson the first time, we learned more about
the events,

According to Newton, he was alane in the weather
olfice when a colonel called and told him o get over to
Ramey's office, Newton explained that he was alone and
couldn’t leave, A few minuies later the general himself
called and ordered Newton to get over to his (Ramey's)
office. Newton was to drdve over and, if he didn't have a
car, to take the first one that had the keys in il. Ramey
wanted him there immediately.

When Newton arrived, he was met by a colonel and
briefed. According to Newton, he was told: “Some
olficers in Roswell found what they think is a flying disc.
The general thinks it's a weather balloon [emphasis
added]. He wants you to take a look at jt.”

Newton then entered the office. He said there were 10
or 12 people there. Marcel was one of them, also DuBose
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and Bamey and a few other officers, Maj, Charles A,
Cashon, the base PIO, was there, a5 was Ramey's aide,
Capt. Roy R. Showalter. There were no more than four
reporiers.

Mewton looked at the debris on the floor and
anfciinced that it was a Rawin target balloon. "There was
g pile of deteriorated neoprens rubber and pleces of fodl
and wood sticks,™ he told us. In The Roswell fncident he
was quoted (Moore inferdew, July 1979 "If wag cul and
dried. I had sent up thousands of them and there's no
doubt that whar F was given were parts of a balloon . . . I8
was very flimsy.” (Emphasis in original.} There was no
question in his mind. As soon a5 he said that, Bamey
turmeed 1o his aide, Showalter, and ordered the special
flight to Wright Field canoeled.

Mewton erouched near the debris and his pleture was
taken—the very same debris that Johnson photographed,
that Marce] was photographed examining, and the same
debris that Bamey and DuBose were photographed with.
The debris that Berlitz and Moore claimed was both the
real stuff and the weather balloon.

Interestingly, Beritg and Moore suggest that the
picture on page 33 in their book shows Ramey holding the
press pelease that would announce that the wreckage was
nothing more than a weather balloon. The obvious
question is, if Ramey had the press release already written
afid ks olding i in the photograph taken by Johnson
(which it is), why would Ramey tell Johnson that he
didnt know what it was?

Thomas DuBose remembers the event well. He
appears in two of the pictures that were taken (Figs. 4-3).
He is glancing down at the debris, When we asked if he
ever saw the real stuff, his answer was quick and to the
point. “Mever,” he said.

DuBose was insistent on that point. He never saw the
real material and it was nod on display in Bamey's office,
although Moore now claims that Marcel said it was. The
caly conclusion that can be drawn is that either Marcel
wiis mistaken or he was misquoted, And since the quotes
from the book by Berlitz and Moore, and later by Shan-
dera and Moore, are different from the quodes being
circulated novw, logic dictates that we belicve that Marcel
was misquoted, We asked DuBose aboul the weather
balloon in the general’s office. DuBose told us, “Actually,
it was a cover siory, the balloon pan of it . . . That par of
it was a story we were told to give to the public and news
and that was iL.”

DuBose, then, was involved in part of the cover story.
Gen, Clements Mebullen was Bamey's superior in
Washington, D.C, According to DuBose, "He [McMullen]
called me and said that | was— there was talk of some
clements that had been found omn the ground at Roswell,
Mew Mexico, that the debris or elements were to be
placed in a suitable container and Blanchard was o see
that they were delivered . . . to McMullen in Washinpton.
Mobody, and [ must siress this, no one was 1o discuss this
with their wives, me with Ramey, with anyone. The
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matter, as far a5 we're concerned, it was closed.”

What DuBose i clearly siating is that the material
from Roswell was ordered to be taken to Washington.
According to him, the materdal was sealed in 3 bag when
it transited Fort Worth. But the most important thing that
DuBose said aboul that was that it was two or three days
before the press conference. Then, when the press leamed
about the debris and demanded answers, McMullen or
someons in Washington provided the halloon answer—
before the press, any of the press, arrived at the Fort
Worth Army Air Field.

DuBose claimed he rever saw the real debris and
thar the ballpon answer wis in place before the press
arrived. He said that Washington was orchestraing the
bailloon answer, The press was never allowed to see the
real debris. Every picce of information was handed by
Maj. Cashon, the PTO, o the reporters.

REamey, on the other hand, did see some of the debris,
which was brought to Fort Worth by Marcel, Ramey,
without DuBose’s knowledge, got a look at some of it
Famey then made sure i wag ouf of the office before any
reporters were allowed in to take photographs or interview
the officers.

That, of course, supports what Johnzon told us
originally. It suppors what Mewton and DuBose said,
And most imporant, it supports the visual evidence of the
photographs, They all show the same balloon debris,

Stan Friedman interviewed Johnson in July 1989, At
that time Johnson asked if Friedman thought that he,
Johnson, had photographed the real debris. For a man who
had been in Eamey®s office, he didn™t have much of an
idea of what happened. First he asked us if it might have
been the real debris and then he asked Friedman, Just as
we had done, Friedman replied, "1 don’i think s0,™

Johnson told Friedman, as he had us, that he thought
he had been duped and that Bamey had substituted the
real material with a weather balloon, Friedman said, “He
didn’t impress me as having a clear memory of the event.”

Jesse Marcel Ir. saw the material when his father
broaght it home on the evening of Tuly 7, or early moming
of July 8§, 1947, He has seen the pictures. And, acoording
L him, they do not show the real debris, He sadd that it
leaked, in g gross sense, like the debris he'd seen, but it
was not the same. It was too shiny and too wrinkled.

Friedman, who interviewed Jesse Marcel Sr. a
number of times, said that Marcel never said anything to
him about the pictures, He certainly didn't tell Fricdman
that the one photo of him showed the real debris,

Len Stringfield, who interviewed Marcel during April
1978, was never told about the photos: “If there had been
pictures of actual debris available, T'm sure he [Marcel]
wontld have mentioned them—he never did.™

Reporter Johnny Mann interviewed Marcel at length
and in fact accompanied Marcel to Roswell to shoot
segments of a five-part TV series he prepared about the
events in Roswell. The question of the pictures came up in
their discussions of the crash.



Mann believed that there was some confusion about
which pictures Marcel was talking about. When Mann
first asked Marcel if there had been pictures taken of the
debris, Marcel said that there had been. Mann, while
researching the newspaper files in Roswell, found o copy
of the photo (July 10, 1947, edition of the Roswell Daily
Record) that had appeared in a3 number of papers around
the country, That was the piciure of Marcel crouched by
the weather balloon (Fig. 1). Mann said that when he saw
it, he was disappointed. *T thought we'd wasted our time.™

As they finished shooting in Roswell, they went to
one of the local book stores, and Mann bought tero
hardback copies of The Roswell Incident. He opened one
and showed Marcel the picture published-there. Mann
said, “Jesse, that looks like a weather balloon,™

According to Manh, Marcels response was, "N, Mo,
Thar pictare was staged. That's not the stuff T broughe
home.”

In fact, Marcel said that all the pictures taken in Fort
Worth were staged by Ramey for the benefit of the press,
Ramey had the balloon brought in and then had Marcel
pose with it, allowing the pictures to be taken.

The confusion, then, was about which pictures Marcel
was referring to when he said that he was photographed
with the real debris. According to Mann, Marcel talked
aboul pictures of the debris being taken, but it seems those
pictures had been miade in Roswell, The photos taken in
Fort Worth had been staged.

Tryving o get io the botiom of this, we asked Jesse
Marcel Ir. if he had ever discussed the picrures, or the
bowok, with his father. He said that neither he nor his father
ever read the book. They had skimmed it but did not
discuss it. And they had never talked about the pictures.

The important point here, however, is that Marcel,
when he saw the piciure in The Roswell Incident, ex-
plained that it did ror show the real debris. The picture
there was the weather balloon,

The cotversations between Mann and Marcel were
witnessed by a third person, Julian Krajewski. There was
no gquestion that when he saw the photos, Marce] said that
they showed the weather balloon. Onee again, the state-
mehts fit with the facts as we've been able (o leam them.,

So what did happen in Fort Worth on July 8, 19477
Why, if the material, some of it, had already passed
through Fort Worth, were they suddenly holding press
conferences about it? That seemed to be letting the press
in on something that they didn™t know moch about,

Walter Haut had issued a press release on the morm-
ing of July 8. (Haut has said repeatedly that he was
ordered 1o make the release by Col. William Blanchard,
the commanding officer of the 309th Bomb Group,) He
told the world that officers at Roswell had recovered a
flying disc and that it was being taken to Fort Worth.

The question has always been, why would Blanchard
order Haut to make such a statement? If they kept quiet,
the press wouldn®t have known about it and the trouble in
Fort Worth would have never happened.

The answer is damage control. Roswell was already
filled with rumors of what was happening at the base.
People were talking about the crash. Frank Joyee, of radio
station KGFL, had broadeast the news. The sherdffs
deputics and his family were talking about the crash.

On orders from Washington, Blanchard instructed
Haut to say they had a flying disc. Later, when the balloon
answer was given, it would shut down all the rumors. A
miystery for a couple of hours and then something so
normal that no one gave it another thought,

Emphasis was shiffed from Eoswell, where the recov-
ery was still underway, to Fort Worth. They provided an
answer to get the reporfers of their back. That was the
reason for the reporters being allowed out at the Fort
Worth Army Air Field. Ramey and his staff were putting
oait a fire that had been ignited in Roswell, At no time on
July 8 did they or Ramey tell anyone that he didn't know
what was found. Ramey told everyone that it was a weath-
ef device. And that includes I, Bond Johnson as he stood
in Ramey's office.

The conclusions to be drawn from this are obvious,
Something crashed at Roswell and it was rot a weather
balloon of a Rawin target balloon. Those who were there,
in Roswell, and who saw the material on the debris field
say it was not o weather balloon. The men in positions of
authority in Fort Worth, Col. (now Gen.) DuBose, said
that the balloon was a cover story, The material found in
Roswell was nol the material seen and photographed by
the press in Ramey s office. There is no reason to believe
that a balloon of any kind played any role in the true
cpisode at Roswell,

Jehnson took four pictures of the weather balloon in
Fort Worth. (Two of these were then provided to the As-
sociated Press as a matter of routine.) Other people ook
the rest of the pictures—DuBose has said one was Maj.
Charles A. Cashon (we asked Cashon directly whether he
took them, but he refused to answer). There are af least
seven photos: two of Marcel, two of Ramey, two of
Eamey and DuBose, and one of Newion, All show the
same thing: the weather balloon.

Now we come to the saddest pant of the story. Since
we identificd Johnson in January 1989 and interviewed
him in Pebroary and March, it is clear that be has con-
seiously changed his sccount for unknown reasons. He
changed his story so that, if he were testifying in a court,
his testimony would be worthless, The question would be:
was he telling the truth in February and March 1989, or is
he telling the truth now? And how do we know?

Don Schmitt 1alked with Jaime Shandera in Califomia
in July 1990, At that time, Shander said that he and
Moore had a new star witness. They were preparing an
article that would blow us out of the water, Once they
introduced their star witness, our attempts to report about
Roswell would end, Shandera also insisted that we had
interviewed Johnson only ence, and if we produced a tape,
he would say that it was doctored. He refused 1o listen
when Schmitt explained that we had interviewed Johnson
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@ half dozen times and we had tapes and transeripts of
those interviews,

Both Shandera and Moore have accused us of sloppy
reporting and of changing the facts to fit the scenarios that
we developed, all the time ignoring the fact that The
Roswell Incident contains many errors of fact. (Bill Moore
Iz called The Roswell Incident “a disgmeeful hodge-
podge of fact and fiction.™) They quote it as a source as il
o suggest that because it is in print, it must be comect.
Their own aricles dismiss as hearsay or specolation facts
that dom't fit their scenarios, They have threatened our
publisher with legal action if the book is published, They
accuse us of not acknowledging their work on the case.

But who is their new star witness? I, Bond Johnson,
the man we located in January 1989, Unfortunately, he
now has a new story. Johnson teld Randle on Aogust 13,
1990, that if we printed our story, he would deny it He
would deny that he sadd the things that he originally said.
And Shandera refused to believe that Randle could
produce tapes and phone bills that sheared the calls o
Johnzon—not one bill, but several, each lasting aboul

thirty minutes or more.

What has happened iz that Moore, who claimed as
recently as June 14, 1990, in a letter to researcher Herbert
5. Taylor, that he would welcome a reinvestigation of
Roswell, apparently will do so only under his conditions.
He has moved to block the publication of our book, which
would deny evervone a complele account of what hap-
pened in Roswell.

When we again contacted Irving Newton about the
current claims—1that he is pictured with actual pieces of a
UFD (Fig. 6)—he reiterated: “Absolutely not! 1 told them
at that time Twould eat it without salt and pepper if it was
not & balloon. This is nonsense.” VR editor Jerome Clark
states, *If those pictures contain the real thing, then the
object at Roswell was a balloon. It's that simple.”

But as we have demonstrated and will continue 1o
prove in our forthcoming book, the object at Roswell was
not 3 balloon, It was truly something extrsordinary and
atill remains a government secret.

The gquestion now 15 why are we again being asked o
swillow the balloon story? B

Roswell investigation notes

by Don Schmitt and Kevin D. Randle
n an editorial entitled “Enough is Too Much!™

I published in Focus (Vol. 5, No. 7-9, pp. 8-12), Bill
Moore and Jaime Shandera present a litany of

charges about our investigative sources and methods,

based on their reading of our anticle “Did a Balloon Crash

at Roswell™ (TUR, July/August, pp. 4-5). The following

quote from that piece summarizes their complaint:

“Whereas Schmitt, Randle and their colleagues at
CUFDS have continuously ballyhooed their claim that
S5/R"s forthcoming book Roswell is the product of *origs-
nal” research, and that *it is the result of an extensive
imdependent investigation based on primary source mater-
ial,” this particular excerpt provides us with an excellent
opporunity to demonstrate that this just isn’t true—that in
fact the 5/R book relies upon and liberally borrows (with-
oait due credit or permission) from material previously
published by Moore, Berlitz, Friedman and Shandera.”

In their editorial they list eight specific points and
then a number of general commenis that they believe
support these charges. We'll use the same format in
examining their charges, but first it is imporiant that we
explain for the record what reliance, if any, we placed on
previous investigations into the Roswell event.

After Dion Schmitt leamed from Stan Friedman in
1988 that there was much work still to be done on the
Roswell case, we decided to begin a reinvestigation.
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Meither of us had read much of the literature on crashed
saucer stories until then, and we found such reports
generally unbelievable. This made it possible for us to
purposefully refrain from using any of the existing
literature of investigator®s files on the case. In other
words, a5 much as possible, we conducted our investiga-
Hom from seraich, finding and interviewing both those
who had already been contacted and, as we nole below,
many new wilnesses, (o the evenis associated with
Roswell. This is why our work is, indeed, “the result of an
extensive independent investigation based on primary
source material.”

U triode point about sources before we discuss
Moore's and Shandera’s specific charges, For the record,
a primary source is one who has firsthand kmowledge of
an event. Walter Haut, for example, iz o firsthand witness
1o some of the activities that surround the recovery of the
debris at Roswell, Mew Mexico, The wrilings of Chatles
Berliz and William L. Moore, Jaime Shandera, and
Stanton T. Friedman are secondary sources, Or if it iz a
story, such as that told by Ve Maltais about what
Bamey Bamett said, and repeated by others, then that
report by others becomes a thirdhand source, The impor-
tant fact i5 that Walter Haut remains a primary source, no
matter how many people be has spoken fo, of in what
order.



HMiw, fo the specific complaints raised in Forcus,

First, they point cut that Moore, in The Roswell
Tncident, had already observed that the men of the 509th
Bomb Group were highly trained experts. The implication
i that if Moore had already said it, then we couldn’t have
learmed of it for curselves,

The 509th Provisional Group was the special unit
created to drop the atomic bombs on Japan, Paul Tibbets
and the Enola Gay were photographed at the Roswell
Army Air Field. Reports of their expertise were in the
newspapers of the day. All these items are things that
anyone in any library can leam. Our own kmowledge is
based on interviews with former members of the 509th,
the Roswell Daily Record, the Roswell Morning Disparch,
and the unit history of the 509th available through the Air
Force Archives at Maxwell Air Force Base.

The one (act that Moore didn’t know was that
Randle’s uncle had been a member of the 509th Bomb
Group, He described the activities at Roswell in depth for
Randle and pointed out that the members of the bomb
group were transferred frequently to form or upgrade
other bomb groups, They were the experts, used to train
others.

Second, they suggest that we leamed of Circleville,
Ohin, from The Roswell Incident. An incomplete accoumt
of the Circleville find was included in that book, With the
assistance of the Roundiown UFO Society, incloding Pete
Hartinger, Delbert Anderson, and John Fry, we wer ahle
to kake it muach farther, We leamed that the balloon was
kept by the Campbell family for a mumber of years and we
were able to interview Jean Romero, the daughter of
Sherman Campbell

We leamed of the Circleville case from the Des
Muoines Register, which carried not only that story in its
July 6, 1947, edition but also a picture of Jean Romers,
{The Register incorrectly identified the person in the
phaoto as Mre, Sherman Campbell. We learned it was their
daughter, Jean.)

The chronology we reporied was based on when the
stofies broke. Circleville was reported before Roswell, An
examination of the whole story, however, reveals that our
chronology was correct. According to the Circleville
Herald, Camphbell first sighted the “wreckage™ about
July 1, a day before Brazel made his discovery north of
Roswell, Our information stems from interviews with Pete
Hartinger and Jean Romero and repors from the Herald,
the Des Moines Register, and the Cedar Rapids Gazerte.,

Third, Moore and Shandera report that Berlitz and
Mesore wrote that Mac Brazel had discovered the wreck-
age of two balloons long belore he found the debris field,
Moore and Shandera claim that we merely verified the
fact by contacting Bill Brazel,

While it iz true that Bill Brazel told us his father had
found other weather balloons, we learned about it through
the Roswell Daily Record. The July 9 edition reports that
Mac Brazel had found weather balloons on two previous
occasions, But we took it farther, leaming from Loretta

Proctor, Juanita Sultemeier, Tommy Tyree, and Jeff Wells
that weather balloons are often found on the ranches in
that area of New Mexico, This was a fact easily uncovered
through independent research.

Fourth, they talk about the testimony of Floyd and
Loretta Proctor, pointing out that we couldn®t have spoken
with Floyd because he died several years carlier. While
that iz true, we have spoken with Loretta about the crash
several imes. We've also spoken with her brother, Robert
Porler, and her sons, William D. and Nortdz Procior, not to
mention two of her daughters, Loretia and Alma. Each of
them gave us new insights into what happened in July
1947. Loretta even tried hypnosis to bring new details to
the surface for us.

Again, they are correct that Jesse Marce] Sr. is not a
primary source for us. We have, however, seen the state-
mends he made on fa Search of (aired before The Roswell
Incicdent was published) and the statements he gave o
Johnny Mann for Channel Four News, and we interviewed
Jesse Marcel Jr., Viaud Mareel (his mother), Len String-
field, who spoke with Marcel a number of times, and Stan
Friedman, who was the first researcher to find Mareel,

And while it might be troe that Bill Moore made the
analogy of fiber optics in 1982, Bill Brazel himself
pointed to Randle in front of additional witnesses (Shirley
Brazel and Don Berliner) and claimed that Randle was the
first 1o suggest it to him, Do we think Bill Moore didn't
make the analogy? Mo, We believe the account. Bat it is
such an obvious analogy, given the description by Bill
Brazel of a wire through which a light can be shone, that it
is no wonder that others have come up with it.

Fifih, they retum to the Jesse Marcel accounts of the
crash site and claim that the only place we could have
leamed of them is from the previously published material.
Except that Jesse Marcel 1old others about the erash =i,
We used Jesse Jr., Viand Marcel, Stingfield, Walter Hawt,
Mann, and Friedman. We did not need to use anything
from The Roswell Incident.

Shandera and Moore believe they have a prima-facie
case against us because Marcel is dead, Such would be
true if Marcel never talked with others about the crash, As
we have cited, once 5tan Friedman spoke with him in
1978, Marcel talked with many others, including reporiens
Steve Tom, Bob Pratt, and Mann, He was interviewed
dorens of times for radio and television shows and he
spoke with many interested people. Marcel s words were
spread far and wide without the help of The Roswell
Incidens. No foul here. It"s just that & dozen or more
independent sources are available,

Sixth is the claim that they had reported civilians
turned back by the military cordon. They cite a paper
published in June 1990 as one of our sources, Our story,
however, was published in the July/August issue of IUR
and writlen long before their June publication. {Our
sources include Bud Payne, Jud Roberts, Loretta Proctor,
William Woody, and Marian Strickland.)

As the witnesses all point out, it was no secret that the
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military cordoned off the area. Again, we took it further,
and discovered how the condon was set, We cited a source
whao told us that the military had parked to the side of the
road and that the MF stopped each approaching ear,
tuming it back. That information had not been printed.

Seventh, while it is true that Moore had reported that
the crash site was swept clean by the military, our article
explains the techniques used to do it That information
was certainly the result of our independent investigation
and was original research. Reporting by athers does not
antomatically negate our discoveries conceming specific
aspects of the information. (One of our sources was
Robert Smith.)

And edghth, we are attacked because the Biformation
that Mac Brazel was held by the military had been
published in the past. Bill Brazel was quick (o point out
his father took an oath of secrecy and was held in
Roswell. Marian Strickland told us that Mac Brazel was
kept in jail, though he was actually held in the guest house
on the base. All this is information that eame from

primary sources, even though some of it had been reported
previously. Our sources? Bill Brazel, Marian Strickland,
and Loretta Proctor, among others.

Moore and Shandera finish by elaiming that there is
not one single example of orginal research anywhere in
our article. Let™s look at that claim.

First, we reported our interview with Jean Romero,
the daughter of Sherman Campbell. Her name is an
example of original rescarch. We leared it in the Dex
Muoines Register, The Roundtown UFD Society provided
the location of Jean Romero 5o that we eould interview |
her.

Second, in our list of witnesses o the matedal we
include Robert Smith. That was the first time that Smith
had been mentioned in connection with the crash. No-
where in their article do Moare and Shandera identify
Smith, and in fact they ignore him in their editorial,

Third, we mentioned for the first time that the
material was so densely packed on the crash site that the
sheep refused to cross it. (Tommy Tyree told us that.)

Fourth, we mentioned for the first time the gouge that
had been deseribed by some of the witnesses. Bill Brazel
told us that it was still visible two years later.

Fifth, a5 mentioned earlier, we described for the first
time that 50 or 60 soldiers, using wheelbarrows, collected
the debris. Mothing lke that had been published prior to
CUF plece,

Sixth is the description of three additional flights of
material out of Roswell. (We mentioned only those three
because they were germane (o the anticle. There were nine
flights from Roswell.) And, although we didn't report it
there, the destination of those three airerall was not
Wright Field as might have been expected.

Seventh, in connection with criticism from the
skeptical community, we revealed that Mareel had a radar
interpretation officer on his staff. We had been told that

Marcel might not have recognized the balloon if he wasn't
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trained in mdar. Our response was that the officer as-
signed to him, trained in radar, would have. We later
leamned that Marcel had been tralned in radar operations,
which rendered the criticism irrelevant. (This information
comes from the Roswell Army Alr Field unit history and a
personal interview with Jesse Marcel Jr.)

And last, we mentioned the daily launches of weather
balloons from downtown Roswell and that one had been
launched from Alamogorde on June 28. (Jud Roberts, Ar
MecQuiddy, and the Roswell Daily Record were some of
OUF SOUTCes, )

These are cight facts that couldnt havé been lifted
from Berlitz, Moore, or Shandera, because they have not
reported on them to date,

But then Moore and Shandera prove our case for us.
In their amicle they quote from a transeript of an interview
with Jesse Marcel, one published in The Roswell Incident.
It beging, “We heard about it on July 7 . . ." They then
point out that it was a typo that should have read July 6. If
wi had been copying their work, wouldn't we have made
the same mistake rather than correcting it? No original
research? Doeen't that alone suggest we have been
conducting our own independent investigation and
interviewing the wimesses ourse]ves?

They also charge that our discussion of the photos
taken in Fort Worth is either plagiatdsm pure and simple
or an extremely unforunate coincidence,

The truth of the matter is that none of the photos, not
those of Marcel or of Ramey, DuBose, or Mewton, shows
the real debris 88 Moore and Shandera now asserl. We
have shown in the first aticle (z2e *The Fort Worth Press

| Conference: The 1. Bond Johnson Connection™ in this

issuc) that Marcel was misquoted, as their own transcripts
show, and that he later said that all the Fort Worth photos
wens staged for the press. And we have discovered tha
there were at least seven photos, not six as Shanders and
Moore report.

Our report, then, is neither plagiarism nor serendipity.
It is an example of orginal rescarch providing new
answers Lo old questions. Tt demonstrates how in owr work
we have taken the inguiry in new directions,

They continue, reporling once again that Shandera
cited 29 mistakes in our first article and 22 instances of
lifted information. Continual repetition of mumbers does
not make them accurate. (Again, see our previous article
in this issue.}

In their piece they claim that Marcel, Blanchard and
Wilcox are dead, and sinee Cavitt told us very litle, there
are no other firsthand witnesses to what happened in the
sherT"s office. Again, this s a mistake,

We have spoken with one deputy sheriff who was in
the office on July 6. We have spoken with both daughters
of Sheriff Wilcox. They were in the office when the
military arrived. We have interviewed Jay Tulk, who was
also there. And we have read the relevant parts of the
diary kept by Mrs. Wileox. All gave us a good idea of
whal was happening in the sherlfl"s office that day.



We did say that Marcel, Cavitt and Blanchard
responded to the sherifl™s call. While that statement is
accurate, it can also be misleading, According to the
winesses, afler Gen. Clements McMullen in Washington
called Blanchard, he did go to the sheriff*s office. In fact,
there were quite & few military vehicles parked outside the
sherifls office on the aftermoon of July 6, causing several
people to comment about it

Moore and Shandera go on to eondemn our chronol-
ogy of the events al Roswell, questioning our statement
that the military, within hours, changed the fying disc
into a weather balloon. Again, the answer is simple. We
were referring to the published reports.

Look at it from that point of view. Blanchard ordersd
Walter Haut 1o issue his press statement ai 11 a.m. on July
&, By noon, according (o A MeQuiddy (editor of the
Roswell Morning Dispartch), the information was out over
the radio wire. (That from a personal interview conducted
with McQuiddy in January 1990.) At 6:17 p.m. there is
the FBI memo (discovered by Brad Sparks) that refers to
the weather balloon, That is a matter of hours, however
you shice it

Shandera and Moore finish their editorial declaring
that they had compiled *a list of no less [sic] than sixteen
specific grievances™ against us. But of the 16 grievances,
15 of them are irrelevant, blatantly untrue, or both. And
the 16th refers to t-shirts commissioned by CUFOS (o
defray the costs of the September 1989 expedition to New
Mexico, Neither Schmitt nor Randle had anything to do
with the 1-shirts and received no profits from them.

Cither charges, such as that “during the summer of
1989, Schmitt and Randle, acting in conspiracy with
Stanton Friedman and with the knowledge of CUFOS,
deliberately and maliciously misrepresented facts and
slandered my [Moare’s] name and reputation to varioos
individuals connected with the Unsolved Mysreries show,
based in Los Angeles, 50 as to keep them from contacting
me for either information or an appearance, and 1o keep
them from making any mention on their show of the
extstence of The Roswell Incidenr book which was current
in paperback,” are absurd,

Don Schmitt had no connection with the program
whatever. CUFOS was not consulted, Meither Rundle nor
Friedman had any rode in the selection of the guesis for
the program. And if Unsofved Mysteries were inclined to
mention any books, wouldn't Randle have had them
report on his own UFD Casebook which was released on
Seplember 1, 1989, just three weeks before the broadoast
was aired?

Moore also claims that “Schmitt and Randle deliber-
ately and negligently failed to Inform their publisher,
Avon Books, aboul the existence of our additional
published material and our ongodng investigations of the
Reswell Incident because they knew that to do so would
diminish their chances for a book deal.™

Omnce again, that simply is not true. Both our editors
at Avon knew of the work done by others (including

| Timothy Goosd, Len Stringfield, and Stan Friedman), but

bath editors also had seen the scope of our work. In other
words, the editor who bought our book bought it because
of the work we had done and not because we falled to
disclose the work done by others. In faet, if Moore and
Shandera have new information or a new book, there is
nothing to stop them from taking their manuscript to any
of the other dozens of publishers listed in Writer's
Marker,

At the end of his August 17 letter, Moore writes,
“Examination of them [our manuseript, research files,
notes and tapes, which he threatens to obtain through
subpoetia] will determine whether we will take this thing
any further by inftiating additional complainis in federal
court for copyright infringement and plagiarism.™

Yet in August, while talking with Jerry Clark, Moore
said that he knew they had no case for plagiarism. If that
Is Moore's opinion, then why the continoing complainis
of plagiarism by us? What could be his motive? What is
his and Shandera®s true agenda? Are we to be their next
Bennowitz?

In his letter he writes, “1 allege a deliberate and
malicious conspiracy to slander my name, defame my
reputation, and deprive me of deserved publicity and
much-necded income through careful manipulation of
people and events connected with the September 1989
Unzolved Mysteries \elevision show,™

Could that be the motive here? He wasn't invited 1o
participate in the Unsolved Mysteries program and blames
us. He feels we cost him “several thousand dollars in
consultation fees™ though no such fees were paid, except
for a small honorarum to Friedman. T is also ineresting
o note that Moore told Schmitt in December 1989 that
Charles Berlitz called him the night the Unsolved Myster-
ies segment aired in September. He charged that he was
going to sue Kevin Randle for “talking about Roswell.™

These are the sorts of unsubstantiated assertions that
Moore and Shandera made in their August 17, 1990, letier
1o our publisher. It should also be pointed owt that Moore
never sanl copies of it to either Schmin or Randle, whose
copics arrived eventually from third parties. We are happy
to report that their efforts to sabotage and derail our book
were unsuceessiul,

Alas, the sad thing is that we must continue to defend
ourselves against baseless charges. We have published
information to share it with those who have an inferest in
Roswell. We have published minor updates as we have
leamned more from the primary sources, the men and
women who lived the adventure, We have published this
because Roswell is (oo important to be ignored or rele-
goled to periodic update papers. The world needs to know
about it—now,

With professional debunkers questioning everything
that anyone says, we don’t need this infighting, especlally
over the sort of nonissues to which we are being forced 1o
respond here. @
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The Roswell sources

by Don Schmitt and Kevin D. Randle

he preceding two articles were the result of

nearly two vears of investigative work. They are

based on more than 60 sources, many of them
primary, including witnesses to many of the events in
Roswell. More than 40 percent of the persons listed are
new. The following is a list of our sources:

Bill Brazel, personal imterviews in 1989 and 1990
Shirley Brazel, personal interviews in 1989 and 1990
Sheridan Cavilt, personal interview in 1990, by phon

W

Juanita Sullemeier, personal inferview in 19940,
*Christine Tulk, personal interviews in 1990,
*Elizabeth Tulk, personal interviews in 1990,
*Jay Tulk, personal interview in 19940,

June Tyree, personal interview in 1990,

Tommy Tyree, personal mtetview in 1989,

*Jeff Wells, personal interviews in 1989 and 1990,
W illiam Moody, phope interview in 1990,

We need 1o add a special thanks o the following

1989,

*Charles A. Cashon, phone interview 1990,

Thomas J. DuBose, persofial interview 1990,

Stanton Friedman, personal interviews in 1989 and
1990,

Peie Hartinger, phone interviews in 1990,

Walter Haui, personal inferviews in 19859 and 1990,

*Betsy Hudon, phone interviews in 1989 and 1990,

*]. Bond Johnson, phone interviews in 19889 and
1990,

Frank Jovece, personal interviews in 1989 and 1990,

*Johnny Mann, phone interviews in 1990,

Jesse Marcel Jr., personal nterviews in 1989 and
1990,

Viaud Marcel, personal interview in 1990,

A MeCuiddy, personal inferview in 1990, by phone
in 1989,

*Phyllis MeQuire, personal interviews in 1990, by
phone in 1990

Irving Mewton, phone interviews in 1990,

*Bud Payne, personal interviews in 1990,

*Curtiss Platl, personal interviews in 1989 and 1990,

Robert Porter, personal interviews in 1990,

Logseita Procior, personal interviews in 1990,

*Mormis Proctor, phone interview in 19940,

“William D, Proctor, phone interview in 1990,

Lewis 5. Rickett, personal inferviews in 1982 and
1990,

George “Jud” Roberts, personal interviews in 1990,

* Jean Romero, phone inferview in 1990

*Robert Smith, phone interviews in 1990,

Marian Strickland, personal interview in 1990,

Len Stringfield, personal interviews in 1989 and
19580,

*Indicalss wilnesses who wene found throngh original reseasch.

individuals, institutions and organizations for their
nssistance in iracking down withesses and supplying

information:

Betiman Photo Archives, New York City.

Maxwell Air Force Base, Alabatma,

Dion Mitchell, Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Ralph Heick, Roswell, Mew Mexico.

Brad Radcliffe, Milwaukee, Wisconsin,

Eoundtown UFD Society, Circleville, Ohio, Clifford
Srone, Rogwell, Mew Mexico.

University of Texas of Adingion, Special Collections
Library.

The following newspapers were used in the prepara-
tion of the two anticles:

Albuguergue Jowrnal, Mew Mexico, July 1947,
Cedar Rapids Gazerte, lowa, Tuly 1947,

Circleville Herald, Ohio, Tuly 1947,

Dayton Daily News, Ohio, July 1947,

Des Moines Regizter, Towa, July 1947,

Fort Worth Star-Telegram, Texas, Tuly 1947,

Las Vegos Review-Journal, Nevada, July 1947,

Los Angeles Herald-Express, California, July 1947,
Loz Angeles Times, California, Tuly 1947,

Roswell Daily Record, Mew Mexico, July 1947,
Roswell Morning Disparch, New Mexico, July 1947,

The following documents helped in the preparation of
the tao arlicles:

Aromic Blast, BEoswell base newspaper,

Telephone directory for the RAAF, August 1947,

Eighth Air Foree Unit History, microfilm, 1947,

509th Bomb Group Unit History, microfilm, 1947,

Articles and noles writlen by Mrs, George Wileox,
1947-1952,

Copies of many of the inpes are on fike at CUPQS, Yideotaped vensons of
siome intervigws are on file 29 CUFOS and the Fusd for UPD Research,
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Transcripts and letlers of Jesse Marcel Sr.,
19TE-19E80. m



Letters

Gulf Breeze continued
To the editor:

Ini his letter in the July/August issue of JUR, Ed
Walters responds to my Guif Breeze Double Exposed,
recently published by CUFQS, and in the process raises a
false and misleading issue,

According to him, "the witnesses say™ that the ghost-
demon image occurred on the “third photo plate™ in o 108
Polaroid pack, admittedly a virtual impossibility if the
image was produced by double exposure, He demands
that CUFQS demonstrate how this could have been done,

This would be a valid request if Carol (pseudonym),
the girl in the ghost-demon photo, had been the third girl
photographed. There is, however, no reason 1o believe she
Was.

Walters wriles “the witnesses say™ but cites no
nuthority for that statement. When [ checked with Carol, 1
learned that Walters had not questioned her, But Iam
awnre of o joint presentation at the recent MUFON
symposium by Walters and Bruce Maceabee, who made
the same points Walters raises in the letter. They referred
to the following from p, 18 of my monograph: “[Carol]
said that Ed took only one Polaroid picture of each of the
girls. He laid all three on a fable and developed them one
by one. Carol’s was the last one developed and showed
the ghost-demon.” Walters and Maccabee maintain this
establishes that Carol was the third girl photographed.

Actually, Carol's slatement refers only o the order in
which the photos were revealed o the erowd, socom-
plished by peeling off a backing which also stops the
development. With a Polaroid 108 pack vou must pull a
shot out of the camers before you can take the next
picture, Development stans as the picture leaves the
camera and continues Gl the backing is removed.

Ini the Carol seance and the Linda seance, Walters
ook the three shots in suecesshon and then peeled the
backings off afier all three had been taken. The fist two
pictures would get more than the optimum 60-second
development, but Polaroid tells me this would not ruin the
pictures, It would have been simple for Wakters to keep
track of the first shot taken and make sure it was the last
one pecled open, Any good showman would want the
suspense to build as the three photos were revealed,
culminating with the anticipated ghost-demon.

These additional quotes from Double Exposed
describe the typical sequence of events and demonstrate
just how misleading Walters and Maccabee's version of

what happened is:
Page 7 (Linda’s seance): “[Walters] 1ook individual

pictures of the three. . . . They went inside and peeled off
the film.™

Page 4 (Carol’s scance): “[Walters] took a picture of
each of the girls. He put them in his pocket and he pulled
them out after a certain time and Carol was the “chosen
m- L]

Walters and Maccabee cannot deny they are familiar
with this method of taking and developing a group of
Polaroids. Walters' first alleged UFD photos were
supposedly taken the same way,

Pages 30-31 of the Walterses® The Gulf Breeze
Sightings (1990) have this to say: “The pictures were
scattered on the ground, each where 1 had taken it and let
it fall. . . , We went into the house. . . . Frances . .,
walched over my shoulder as [ peeled the backing off
he pictures.”

Would the last "UFO™ photo pecled open necessarily
have been the last one shot? By the same token, because
the ghost-demon photo was pecled open last, was it
necessarily the last one taken?

Ed Walters has offered many explanations in his
effors to get the ghost-demon off his back. Before he had
access to my paper al the Pensacola MUFON symposium,
he had related a definitive version of the Carol episode to
Maccabee, one involving the “ghost-eyes™ photo trick he
admits playing at his seance parties. This complicated
soenario required that Carol be the first or second person
photographed. Maccabee wrote the following in a letter o
Philip 1. Klazs on June 25, 1990 (before Pensacola):
“[Walters] says that, as he recalls it, in the case of Carol
she was the first of three to be taken,™ (Emphasis added.)

And yet after this Walters excordates CUFRDS for not
conducting tests based on Carol®s being the third girl
photographed. He can’t have it both ways.

At the end of his letter Walters intimated that the
ghost-demon phatos could result from an accidental
“operational error.” These photos were no accident.
Teenaged guests at the various parties testify that Walters
predicted when the ghost-demon images would oceur.

Zan Cverall
Redondo Beach, California

A view from the Isles
Tor the editor:

I would like to comment on two items that appear in
the MayTune ssue of JUR.

First, | congratulate Greg Long for his fine piece
“Earthlights: Science or Revelation™ His views of Paul
Devereux's Earth Lights Revelarion (1989) are much like
those of most British UFD researchers, who find Dever-
eux's theories unpersuasive. Many of the reports in his
book were taken directly from Quest Internationals files.
Devereux knew well that several such cases were submit-
ted by police officers who were fully satisfled that some
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form of physical structare was indeed atrbome over North
Yorkshire; indeed, photographic data acquired on one
such occasion seem certain to support this reading. For
many years hundreds of unusual incidents and observa-
tions have taken place in the heartland of the Yorkshine
Drales.

UFD phenomena are nol similarty spread across other
sections of the British landscape, however, and that makes
fior a problem. Throughout the Undied Kingdom large
areas of land have minor fault lines. If Devercux's theory
were commect, we would expect “earthlight™ actlvity there,
too. But such ks nof occurring, Devereux's use of evidence
i% selective, arificial and unscientific.

The forum on the MJ-12 controversy was interesting.
| can understand why UFD researchers atound the world
are split over the question of the reality or unreality of the
documents, bt a8 one who hag known Timothy Good for
many years, [ take exception to the [UR editor’s sugges-
tion that Good, who received a copy of the MJ-12 paper
independently of William Moon: and Jaime Shandera,
“tell what he knows.” Good has always kept faith with his
colleagues in the intelligence world—and he has many.
As a man of his word, he has on numerons oocasions
insisted the papers came from a credible intelligence
soures, one that he would never disclose. Why shoold he?

I remember how excited he was when he received the
papers, which came to him not long before he appeared on
il television broadeast in Leeds. He thought the documents
genuine for a number of ressons, not the least of them
their source,

Murk far Birdsall
Fearures editor, Quest International
Leeds, England
Nevada mysteries
To the editor:

I was interested to read the account of my meeting
with the mysterdous “Yellow Fruit™ at Rachel's Bar and
Grill {("In the Land of Dreams,” by Grant B, Cameron, T,
Scott Crain, and Chris Rutkowski, September/October
IR}

I pursued the story only because Yellow Fruit
claimed to possess personal Imowledge of activity in and
around the Nevada Test Site. My interests have extended
beyond those of most other ufologists in that T have
actively researched some of the more bizarre claims, such
as those involving underground bases. Yet, even though T
have repored on these claims, [ would not want to be
taken a5 an uncritical believer in them, Underground bases
are & logical possibility but hardly a proven fact.

What should interest others aboul Eobert Lazar's
story is that many visitors who have joumeyed 1o the so-
called mail-box road about 20 miles from Rachel, Mevadas,
have viewed UFD activity at specific times—exactly as
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Lazar claimed he had done. Witnesses repont typical UFD
maneuvers and lighting patiemns, Two individuals have
taken photos of the glowing domed discs using high-speed
(1600 ASA) film. I have a copy of one of the photos taken
by Gary Clark.

Remarkably, the UFO activity aver the Groom
Mountains occurs with such regularity and predictability
85 (o suggest the crafl were flying on schedule. Several

! persons have reported observing a glowing, pulsing light

rise above the Groom range on the lest site near Area 51
at exactly 4:50 a.m. on different days. In each case the
object proceeded to execute steplike movements and
zigzag flight behavior characteristic of UFO sightings in
generul. Some have camped out all night just to glimpse
these UFQs, The locals at Rachel’s Bar and Grill (now
called the Little Ale-y-Inn) take it all in stride. They say

they knover the UFOs are there,
William Hamilton
Glendale, California
Blum blast
To the editor:

In “In the Black™ (September/October IUR) Mark

| Rodeghier expresses “distress™ over author Howard

Elum's “penchant for getting his facts wrong™ in his book
Cur There (1990). Three paragraphs later Rodeghier
asserts, “Blum conducted lengthy interviews with Bill
Moore.”

Where Rodeghier got this idea 1 don't know, but the
fact of the matter is that Jalme Shanders and T spent all of
an hour and a half with Blom over lanch one afternoon,
and that was ji—no follow-up interviews, no correspon-
dence, not even a phone call. Far from being “lengthy,”
the interview (such as it was) was brief, cursory, and
shallow. As best [ recall, Blum exhibited an almost
disinterested attitude and took less than half 2 page of
handwritten nodes.

William L Moore
Burbank, Californiia

Mark Rodeghier responds:

Where I got “this idea™ is straight from the homse's
mouth, so to speak. First, Blum himself contradicts
Moore's sceount of only one interview when he writes:
“many of Bill Moore's comments and observations (Part
¥V, Counterintelligence) were made in the course of infer-
views with me . . . (emphasis added), Second, Blum
stated during an appearance on radio siation WGN in
Chicago that he had spent long hours with his sources,
including Moore, In any case, given the available evi-
dence that Blum has misquoted several individoals and
misrepresented the depth of his investigation, T am per-
fectly willing to believe Moore's aceount of his contact
with Blum. =



Gl fires on UFO in Korea

by Richard F. Haines

mm Dr. Richard F. Haines has spent most of his
career as a research sclentist investigating the
mysterles of human vision, perception, psycho-
physiology, and human factors. This article,
reprinted with the author's permission, is an
excerpt from his latest book, Advanced Aerial
Devices Reported during the Korean War, avail-
able from CUFOS.

ollowing is o irunscopt of an interview between

Mr. Francis P. Wall, a private first clazss in the

U.5. Army during the Korean War and Mr. John
Timmerman, who is project manager for the photo exhibit
of the I, Allen Hynek Center for UPD Studics, in the Fall
of 1987. It has not been edited in any way. This inlerest-
ing event began at dusk and ended at about 9 p.m. local
hme.

“This event that I am about to relate fo you is the
truth, 5o help me God.' It happened in the early Spring of
1951 in the country of Kores. We were in the Army
infantry, I was in the 25th Division, 27th Regiment, 2nd
Battalion, *Easy* Company.* We were in what is nown
o the military maps as the Iron Triangle, near Chorwon.
We were to the left of Chorwon, just scross the mountain
ridge fromm this city—town—whatever you want to call it
It is night. We are located upon the slopes of a mountain,
between the fingers of 8 mouniadn as they mun down
towand the valley below where there is a Korean village.
Previously we have sent our men into this village to wam
the populace that we are going to bombard it with artil-
lery, Upon this night that I'm talkin® abou, we were doin”
just that, We had seral anillery bursts comin® in. And we
sudidenly noticed doem, with the mountains 1o our backs,
we noticed on our dghi-hand side what appeared to be a
juck-o-lantern come wafting down across the mountain,
And at first no one thought anything about it So we
noliced that this thing continued on down 1o the village 1o
where, indeed, the artillery air bursis were exploding. And
we further noted, by the way, it had an orange glow in the
beginning, we further noticed that this object would get
right into . . , it was that quick that it could get into the
center of an airburst of arillery and yet remain unharmed,
And, suhsequently, this time element on this, I can’t recall
exactly, | would say anywhere from, oh, forty-five
minotes to an hour all told,” Fig. 1 is a sketch of the object

Fig. 1. Eyewitness sketch of UFO as seen from the side during
irs approach,

mada for the author by the witness on May 10, 1989,

“But then this object approached us, And it turmed a
blue-green brilliant light, It's hard to distinguish the size
of it, there's o way to compare it. It pulsated, The light,
that is, was pulsating. It wasn't, ah, regular. All right, this
object approached us. | asked for and received permission
from Lt. Evans, our company commander st that time,® to
fire upon this object, of which T did with an M-1 rifle with
armor-piercing bullets, or rounds in it. And T did hit it I
tmust have been metallic because you could hear when the
projectile slammed into it

“Now why do you say, why would that, ah, bullet
damage this craft if the artillery rounds didn®t? T don’t
know unless they had dropped their protective field
around ‘em, or whatever. That this, ah, technology
envisions, that they had to protect it, But the object went
wild and it . . . the light was goin® on and off and it wem
off completely once, bricfly. And it was moving erratic-
ally from side to side as though it might crash to the
ground. Then, a sound, which we had heard no sound
previous to this, the sound of, like of, ah, you've heard
diesel locomatives revving up.* That's the way this thing
sounded. And, then, we were attacked, 1 guess you would
call it. In any event, we were swept by some form of a ray
that was emitted in pulses, in waves that you could
visually sec only when il was aiming directly at you, That
is to say, like a searchlight sweeps around and the
segmenis of light you would see it coming at you

“Now you would feel a burning, tingling sensation all
over your body, as though something were penetrating
you. And ah, 5o the company commander, Li. Evans,
hauled us into cur bunkers, We didn't know what was
going lo happen. We were scared. We did this. These are
underground dugouts where yoo have peep holes 1o look
out to fire at the enemy. So, I'm in my bunker with
another man. We're peeping out at this thing. It hovered
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over us for & while, it up the whole ares with it Hght that
I'm telling you about, and then I saw it shoot off at a 45
degree angle, it"s that quick, just, it was there and was
pone, That quick. And it was as though that was the end
of it. But, three days later the entire company of men had
to be evacuated by ambulance. They had to cut roads in
there and haul them out, they were too weak to walk, And
they had dysentery and then subsequently, ah, when the
doctors did see them, ah, they had an extremely high
white blood cell count which the doctors could not
acomunt for.

“Mow let me inform you on this, In the military,
especially the Army, each day you file a report, a com-
pany repant. Mow, we had a confab about that, What do
we do about thist Do we file it in the report or not? And
the consensus was "no.” Because they'd lock every one of
s up, and think we were crazy. At thal tme oo such thing
a5 UFO had ever been heard of and we didn't know what
it was. And [ =tll don't know what it was. But [ do know
that since that time T bave periods of dizodentation,
memory boss, and ah, [ dropped from 180 pounds to 138
pounds after T got hack to this country, And I've hid great
difficulry keeping my weight up, Indeed, 1'm retired and
disabled today.”

I confacted Mr. Wall in May of 1989 to ask & number
of other questions,

Here are my questions and his answers,

3. “Please try o estimate how long & period of time
went by from the time your M-1 rifle fired 1o the time you
heard the round stoke the object™

A, "One to two seconds (hest as [ can remember),”

). "Did you ever have severe headaches from the
time the object departed to one week later?™

A, “Yes"

). "Please try o describe when they first slaned.”

A. “The next day or so afier contact with the
object,”

Q. “What other physical ailments did you experi-
ence within the first week after the expetience?™

A, “Diysentery, nausea.”™

Q. "Within the first week or 5o did you ever vomit?™

A. “Yes... forseveral days.”

Q. “Within the first month or so did your appetite
change?™

A "Yes . .1 lost my appetite,”

). “Within the frst month or so did your thirst
change?™

A, "Yes...my thirst mcreased.”

Q. "How many of the meh in vour company did
you talk to about this strange event at the time?™

A. “Approximately 25 or more, ., "

Q. “What compass direction (approximately) were
your guns firng from the hillside oward the toan?™

A. “North, ®

. “What compass direction did you first notice ithe
object?”

A. “Eas.”
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Q. “What compass direction did the object finally
disappear?”

A. “Forty five degrees up (and) then West.”

In another letter to Mr. Wall dated April 14, 1990,
provided him with a list of 72 names of personnel who
were in his company with the request that he try to recall
{(and mark on the letter) the names of a3 many of them as
possible. His reply of June 15t was terse;, he wrole the
word “none,™ :

Gieneral comments:

This close encounter of the first ard second kind
containg interesting corroborative data to the March 10,
1951, pilot sighting near Chinnampo, North Korea, the
January 29, 1952, sighting by three military pilots flying
near Wonson af night, the February 24, 1952, bomber
erew sighting over Antung, and the May 31, 1952, pilot
sighting south of Chorwon (all presented in the next
chapter), This particular sighting report also contains
valuable details related to the nature of this aerial reality
such as apparent three-dimensionality and mass, emitted
noises and Juminous redistion in a partially collimated
fashion (in seeming reaction to the impact of the soldier*s
rifle projectile), biological interaction (immediate skin
sensations and subsequent skin surface and internal
sequelac), and a responsiveness that is (allegedly) in direct
tesponse to the witness® “aggressive™ behavior, The
identity of what is behind this phenomenon remains
shrowded in mystery.

A number of issues of Jane ‘s ALl the World's Aircrgft
around the year 1950 were studied with regard to the
kinds of American and Russian aerial devices that were in
existence. There was no mention of any type of remately
piloted vehicles (RPY) nor other kinds of non-aerody-
namic vehlcles,

MOTES

1. Mr. Wall’s name, rank, serial nurmber, and ather
information was found on the official Army roster for his
unit as of July 1951.

2. Historical accounts by 5. L. A. Marshall, “Bayonet
Charge,” Combet Forces Jourmal 1 (1951): 22-32; M.
Michaelis and B. Davidson, “This We Leamed in Korea,”
Collier’s, August 1951, pp. 13-13, 38-44; J. Pear, “Woli-
hounds: Saga of the 27th Infantry Regiment,” Saga,
August 1963, pp. 48-50, 69-72; and R. Pullen, et al., eds.,
The Tropic Lighming in Korea (Atlanta, Ga.: Love, 1954),
provide interesting background information on the 27th
Infaniry Begiment “Wolfhounds."”

3. Lt. Evans" name and other information for him was
found on the official Army roster for “E™ Company.

4. A very similar event took place on March 17, 1981,
on the Columbia River, just east of Portland, Oregon.
Several eyewitnesses described an otange spherical light
which hung above the river while emitting a low throb-
bing, diesel engine sound that was tape recorded. An
analysis of this tape by the I. Allen Hynek Center for
UFD Studies, Chicago, linois could not identify it. =



